SWINDON BOROUGH COUNCIL
Municipal Year 2014/15

Monday, 23 February 2015

COUNCIL CHAMBER
CIVIC OFFICES
SWINDON

13 February 2015

Dear Councillor,

Summons to attend Council Meeting

A MEETING of the Council, which you are requested to attend, is to be held at the
CIVIC OFFICES, SWINDON, on Monday, 23 February 2015 at 7.00 p.m.

The business to be transacted will be as follows:-

AGENDA

1.  Apologies for Absence

2, Communications
To receive any communications or letters which the Mayor or Chief Executive
may have to bring before the Council.

3. Minutes (Pages 5 - 14)
To receive the minutes of the previous meeting.

4. Declarations of Interest
Members are reminded that at the start of the meeting they should declare any
known interests in any matter to be considered, and also during the meeting if it
becomes apparent that they have an interest in the matters being discussed.



10.

Public Question Time
See explanatory note below.

Council Budget 2015/16 (Pages 15 - 140)

To approve, following a recorded vote, the Council’s Budget for the Financial
Year, 2015/16. The Cabinet met on 4" February 2015. The following reports
considered at this meeting relate to the Council’'s Budget, 2015/16.

(i) Budget 2015/16 and Beyond.

(ii) Capital Programme 2015/16 to 2017/18.

(iii) Treasury Strategy Statement 2015/16.

(iv) Summary of Proposed Budget for 2015/16 by Function Directorate.

Minutes 61, 62, and 63 relating to these reports are attached.
(Pages 135 to 140)

Council Tax Setting, 2015/16 (Pages 141 - 158)
To enable Members, following a recorded vote, to formally resolve the Borough
Council’'s Council Tax for 2015/16.

Housing Revenue Account - Rents and Charges 2015/16 (Pages 159 - 182)
To approve the Council’'s Housing Revenue Account Budget for the Financial
Year, 2015/16. The Cabinet met on 4" February 2015. The attached report on
the Housing Revenue Account — Rents and Charges 2015/16 was considered at
that meeting.

Cabinet Minute 64 relating to this report is attached. (Pages 181 to 182)

Minutes for Confirmation (Pages 183 - 186)
(1) To consider Minutes for Confirmation from Cabinet:

e Minute 65 (Strategy to Prevent Child Sexual Exploitation)
e Minute 68 (Anti-Social Behaviour Crime and Policing Act 2014)

(2) To receive a Minute for Note from Cabinet:

e Minute 59 (Motion — Use of Police Community Support Officers in
Supporting Council Enforcement Officers)

Motion - Road Works
Councillor Bob Wright will move:

“This Council:

¢ Recognises the disruption caused to local motorists because of utility
companies commencing road works without any coordination or control.

e Believes that it needs to do more to address the lack of coordination and
control on utility companies undertaking scheduled road works in the
Borough.

e Notes that in order to address this problem in their area, the Greater
Manchester local authorities have introduced the Greater Manchester



Road Activities Permit Scheme which came in operation in April 2013,
following the Secretary of State for Transport’s approval. This scheme
introduced a new permitting regime that requires utility companies to apply
for a chargeable permit before undertaking any works on adopted roads.

e The Permit fee income has then been used by the 10 Highway Authorities
of Greater Manchester for additional resources to better manage and
coordinate these essential works and to minimise the congestion and
disruption they cause.

¢ Requests the Cabinet for Strategic Planning, Sustainability and Transport
to submit a report to Cabinet detailing how this scheme could be applied in
Swindon and to consider applying to the Secretary of State for Transport
seeking approval for the adoption of this scheme in Swindon.”

11. Swindon Pay Policy Statement (Pages 187 - 208)
To approve the Council’'s Pay Policy Statement 2015/16. The attached report on
the Council’'s Pay Policy Statement 2015/16 was considered by the Cabinet at its
meeting on 4" February 2015. The figures and salary information contained in
the report will be updated as of 1% April 2015 prior to publication on the Council’s
website.

Cabinet Minute 59 relating to this report is attached. (Page 207)

12. Polling Districts and Places Review (Pages 209 - 212)
To consider a joint report of the Electoral Registration Officer and Returning
Officer and Leader of the Council updating Members on proposed polling
arrangements for the Wroughton and Wichelstowe Ward.

13. Councillors Question Time
Questions (if any) of which notice has been given by Councillors in accordance
with Standing Order 15.

Yours faithfully

Director of Law and Democratic Services

Questions by Members of the Public in accordance with Standing Order 11

Swindon Borough Council remains committed to increasing its accountability to the
public and to promoting active citizenship. 15 minutes will be allowed at the start of
all Council meetings for questions to the Chair from the public about the work of the
Committee (except for confidential matters, and matters relating to planning and
licensing applications). We will give priority to those who submit questions in writing
at least two days before the meeting. Questions must be relevant, clear, and
concise. You may not use Public Question Time as an opportunity to make speeches
or statements.

Questions in writing should be sent to the Committee Officer whose contact details
appear on the agenda above or to the Director of Law and Democratic Services, we
will publish it, along with the answer, alongside the Minutes. The process associated
with asking a public question is set out in the “Public Question Time at Council



Meetings Protocol and Guidance” available on the Council’s Website
(http://ww5.swindon.gov.uk/moderngov/ecCatDisplay.aspx?sch=doc&cat=13338&pat
h=0) or from the Committee Officer named above.

Access Arrangements - The venue is wheelchair accessible and an infrared
receiver hearing system is provided. If you have any special requirements to enable
you to attend the meeting or would like to receive any of the pages contained in this
agenda in a larger print size, please contact the Committee Officer as soon as
possible prior to the date of the meeting.



Agenda ltem 3

COUNCIL
THURSDAY, 22 JANUARY 2015

PRESENT:- The Worshipful The Mayor in the Chair; Councillors Junab Ali,

Steve Allsopp, Abdul Amin, Paul Baker, John Ballman, Ray Ballman,

Andrew Bennett, Alan Bishop, Roderick Bluh, Michael Bray, Wayne Crabbe,

Mark Dempsey, Oliver Donachie, Mark Edwards, Toby Elliott, Fionuala Foley,

Brian Ford, Mary Friend, Jim Grant, John Haines, Neil Heavens, Dale Heenan,
Russell Holland, Fay Howard, Richard Hurley, Colin Lovell, Mary Martin, Nick Martin,
Cindy Matthews, Brian Mattock, Gemma McCracken, Des Moffatt, Derique Montaut,
Stan Pajak, Kevin Parry, Maureen Penny, Garry Perkins, David Renard,

Ann Richards, James Robbins, Eric Shaw, Carol Shelley, Kevin Small,

Timothy Swinyard, Vera Tomlinson, Joe Tray, Steve Wakefield, Nadine Watts,
Peter Watts, Steve Weisinger, Robert Wright and Julie Wright.

61. Apologies for Absence

Apologies for absence were received from Councillors Emma Faramarzi,
Nicky Sewell, Keith Williams and Dave Wood.

62. Communications
The Chief Executive reported that no communications had been received.
63. Minutes

Resolved — That the minutes of the meeting held on 6™ November 2014, be
confirmed and signed.

64. Declarations of Interest

The Mayor reminded Members of the need to declare any known interests in
any matters to be considered at the meeting.

(In accordance with the Code of Conduct Councillors Steve Allsopp, John Ballman,
Ray Ballman, Andrew Bennett, Mark Dempsey, Neil Heavens, Cindy Matthews,
Kevin Parry, Maureen Penny, Carol Shelly, Nick Martin, Gemma McCracken, Joe
Tray and Nadine Watts made non prejudicial declarations of interest in respect of
item 7 (b) (Motion — School Fines) as they were School Governors.)

(In accordance with the Code of Conduct Councillors Andrew Bennett, Nick Martin,
Gary Perkins and Joe Tray made non prejudicial declarations of interest in respect of
item 7 (d) (Motion — Firefighters Pensions) as they were Council appointed
representatives on the Wiltshire and Swindon Fire Authority.)

(In accordance with the Code of Conduct Councillor Joe Tray made a non prejudicial

declaration of interest in respect of item 7 (d) (Motion Firefighters Pensions) as he
was in receipt of a Fire Authority Pension.)

Page 5



65. Public Question Time

Mr David Parkinson submitted written questions regarding (a) documentation
relating to Queen Elizabeth Drive, Swindon, and (b) funding to make Queen
Elizabeth Drive, Swindon, suitable for bus usage. Written responses were tabled at
the meeting.

Mr David Parkinson asked supplemental questions seeking clarification on (a)
lost documentation relation to Queen Elizabeth Drive and (b) spending to make
Queen Elizabeth Drive safer. The Cabinet Member for Strategic Planning,
Sustainability and Transport responded at the meeting.

Mr Brian McLean submitted written questions regarding (a) incidents on
Queen Elizabeth Drive involving) road traffic collisions and/or buses, (b) guidelines
used in the construction of Queen Elizabeth Drive, and (c) the use of independent
consultants inspecting problems associated with Queen Elizabeth Drive. Written
responses were tabled at the meeting.

Mr Brian McLean asked supplemental questions seeking clarification on (a)
that Queens Drive was considered safe and suitable for buses, (b) interpretation of
guidelines used for the construction of Queen Elizabeth Drive, and (c) whether a
Freedom of Information request was required to gain information requested. The
Cabinet Member for Strategic Planning, Sustainability and Transport responded at
the meeting.

Mr Richard Symmonds asked a Public Question regarding an accident
involving a mechanical road sweeper in Swindon Town Centre prior to Christmas.
The Cabinet Member for Streetsmart indicated that a written response would be
provided.

Mr Richard Symmonds asked a Public Question regarding a public meeting at
Western Community Centre regarding Thamesdown Drive. The Cabinet Member for
Strategic Planning, Sustainability and Transport responded at the meeting.

Mr Richard Symmonds asked a supplemental question regarding an extension
to Thamesdown Drive. The Cabinet Member for Strategic Planning, Sustainability
and Transport responded at the meeting.

66. Minute for Confirmation
(1) Councillor David Renard moved and Councillor Jim Grant seconded:

“That Minute 54 of the Cabinet (Polling Districts and Polling Places Review) be
confirmed and adopted.”

The Motion was put to the vote and declared carried.
(2) Councillor David Renard moved and Councillor Jim Grant seconded:

“That Minute 45 of the Cabinet (Local Government Ombudsman Annual Review of
Swindon) be noted.”

Page 6



The Motion was put to the vote and declared carried.

(3) Councillor Brian Ford moved and Councillor David Renard seconded:
“That Minute 52(2) of the Cabinet (Recycling — Green Waste Services) be noted.”

The Motion was put to the vote and declared carried.

(4) Councillor Garry Perkins moved and Councillor David Renard seconded:

“That Minute 53(7) of the Cabinet (Motion at Council — Cars Parking on Grass
Verges) be noted.”

Councillor Mark Dempsey moved and Councillor Kevin Small seconded that
the Motion be amended to read:

“This Council recognizes the frustrations of many local residents who suffer from
messy grass verges in their neighbourhoods as a result of a lack of parking capacity
on some of Swindon’s roads. This Council requests the Head of Highways to bring a
report to Cabinet detailing how the Council could establish a fund to increase parking
capacity in residential areas suffering from severe parking congestion.”

The Amendment was put to the vote and declared lost.
The Substantive Motion was put to the vote and declared carried.
67. Motion - Licensing Applications
Councillor Stan Pajak moved and Councillor Anne Richards seconded:

“This Council believes in the need for local Councillors to be informed of new and
changes to applications for alcohol sales and entertainment licenses or an
application to review a current Premises Licence within their ward, and therefore calls
for Ward Councillors to be informed by the Council’s Licensing Manager of the
receipt of such applications and for this to become the adopted policy as is the case
with planning applications in the Borough.”

Councillor Vera Tomlinson moved and Councillor Emma Faramarzi seconded
that the Motion be amended to read:

“This Council believes in the need for local Councillors to be informed of new and
changes to applications for alcohol sales and entertainment licenses or an
application to review a current Premises Licence within their ward, and therefore calls
for Ward Councillors to be informed directly and in the Members’ Bulletin by the
Council’s Licensing Manager of the receipt of such applications and for this to
become the adopted policy as is the case with planning applications in the Borough.”

The Amendment to the Motion was accepted by the Mover and Seconder and
by Council becoming the Substantive Motion.

The amended Motion was put to the vote and declared carried.

Page 7



68. Motion - School Fines
Councillor Stan Pajak moved and Councillor Anne Richards seconded:

“This Council requests Swindon’s Members of Parliament to make representations to
the Government in order to enable the money raised from fines for taking children out
of school during term time to be allocated to the school concerned and not the
Council. This Council further calls on the Government to press for reduced Holiday
Company pricing during school holidays and consideration of a one fine policy for a
pupil and not a fine for each parent.”

The Motion was put to the vote and declared lost.

(In accordance with the Code of Conduct Councillors Steve Allsopp, John Ballman,
Ray Ballman, Andrew Bennett, Mark Dempsey, Neil Heavens, Cindy Matthews,
Kevin Parry, Maureen Penny, Carol Shelly, Nick Martin, Gemma McCracken, Joe
Tray and Nadine Watts made non prejudicial declarations of interest in respect of this
item as School Governors.)

69. Motion - Transport Infrastructure Working Group
Councillor Toby Elliott moved and Councillor Mary Martin seconded:

“This Council notes:

e Swindon has grown by more than 50,000 residents in the last 20 years.

e Swindon will, according to forecasts, grow by an additional 50,000 residents in
the next 20 years.

e This additional housing places a strain on our transport networks; which is not
always satisfied by Section 106 or Community Infrastructure Levy monies.

e A one size fits all approach to transport infrastructure very rarely works and all
options must be looked at.

e Swindon has a deep rooted heritage in the formation of the railways.

This Council resolves to invite the Scrutiny Committee to:

(i) Establish a Future Transport Infrastructure Working Group comprised of
members from the Resources Overview and Scrutiny Committee and the
Economy and Regeneration Overview and Scrutiny Committee, which
would report to the Scrutiny Committee.

(i) Ask that the new Working Group look into new transport. infrastructure
opportunities and how they could be financed.

(i) Ask that this work includes, but is not exclusive to, a new mainline or
commuter railway station at Mouldon Bridge.

(iv)  Ask that the new Working Group invite partners including, but not limited
to, Wiltshire Council, Network Rail, the Swindon and Wiltshire Local
Enterprise Partnership, First Great Western, Swindon and Cricklade
Railway to give evidence to the Working Group.”

Page 8



Councillor Jim Grant moved and Councillor Bob Wright seconded that the
Motion be amended to read:

“This Council notes:

e Swindon has grown by more than 50,000 residents in the last 20 years.

e Swindon will, according to forecasts, grow by an additional 50,000 residents in
the next 20 years.

¢ This additional housing places a strain on our transport networks; which is not
always satisfied by Section 106 or Community Infrastructure Levy monies.

e A one size fits all approach to transport infrastructure very rarely works and all
options must be looked at.

e Swindon has a deep rooted heritage in the formation of the railways.

This Council resolves to form a Future Transport Infrastructure Working Group
comprising of the Leaders and Shadow Leads for Highways on the Council’s
respective political groups. This Working Group should:

e Look at new transport infrastructure opportunities and how they could be
financed.

e Ask that the new Working Group invite key transport stakeholders for Swindon
to give evidence to the Working Group.”

The Amendment was put to the vote and declared lost.

Councillor Des Moffatt moved and Councillor Peter Watts moved that the
Motion be amended to read:

“This Council notes:

e Swindon has grown by more than 50,000 residents in the last 20 years.

e Swindon will, according to forecasts, grow by an additional 50,000 residents in
the next 20 years.

e This additional housing places a strain on our transport networks; which is not
always satisfied by Section 106 or Community Infrastructure Levy monies.

e A one size fits all approach to transport infrastructure very rarely works and all
options must be looked at.

e Swindon has a deep rooted heritage in the formation of the railways.

This Council resolves to invite the Scrutiny Committee to:

0] Establish a Future Transport Infrastructure Working Group comprised of
members from the Resources Overview and Scrutiny Committee and
the Economy and Regeneration Overview and Scrutiny Committee,
which would report to the Scrutiny Committee.

(i) Ask that the new Working Group look into new transport. infrastructure
opportunities and how they could be financed.

Page 9



(i) Ask that this work includes, but is not exclusive to, a new mainline or
commuter railway station at Mouldon Bridge.

(iv)  Ask that the new Working Group invite partners including, but not
limited to, Wiltshire Council, Network Rail, the Swindon and Wiltshire
Local Enterprise Partnership, First Great Western, and Swindon and
Cricklade Railway to give evidence to the Working Group.

(v) Invite the group of Parish, Community and Business leaders from North
and West Swindon known as TDeX group to participate and give
evidence at the first opportunity to the Working Group.”

With the agreement of the Mover and Seconder and Council the Amendment

was accepted becoming the Substantive Motion.

70.

The Substantive Motion was put to the vote and declared carried.
Motion - Firefighters Pensions

Councillor Jim Grant moved and Councillor Steve Wakefield seconded:

“This Council notes:

The Government's plans to increase firefighter pension contributions and raise the
retirement age of all firefighters to 60.

The breakdown in talks between the Government and the unions on this issue.

Strike action on this issue has been avoided in Scotland, \Wales and Northern
Ireland.

Council believes:

The firefighters across Swindon and Wiltshire do a brave and heroic job putting at
risk their own lives to protect our residents.

The fire fighters should be rewarded for this service to the public with a fair pension
settlement upon retirement.

The current Government's plan to force all firefighters to remain in active service to
the age of 60 will put the personal safety and mental wellbeing of firefighters at risk
and jeopardises the safety of the public.

That, if the Governments in Wales, Scotland and Northern Ireland have negotiated
a fairer deal the Government can do the same for England.

Council therefore resolves:

To write to the Fire Minister urging her to enter in to negotiations with the Fire
Brigades Union in England with a new offer over pension contributions.

To write to the Members of Parliament for Swindon and urge them to support calls
on the annulment of the Government's firefighter pension scheme.”

Page 10



Councillor Nick Martin moved and Councillor Tim Swinyard seconded that the
Motion be amended to read:

This Council notes the breakdown in talks between the Government and the unions
on this issue and that Scotland, Wales, and Northern Ireland have avoided strike
action.

Council accepts that firefighters will still get one of the most generous pension
schemes in the public sector after the current reforms. However, firefighter pensions
must be fair to both firefighters and the taxpayers.

Council further notes that:
e The normal retirement age has been sixty since 2006.
e The Government’s changes ensure that firefighters have the same pension
age as the police and armed forces under their reforms.

e The Government has made substantial changes to the Firefighters’ Pension
Scheme 2015 since discussions began in 2011.

e The average firefighter retiring at age 50 today is expected to live and draw a
pension for 37 years in retirement after a career of 30 years.

o A firefighter on £29,000 who retires at 60 after a full career will get a £19,000 a
year pension, rising to £26,000 with the state pension.

e Forevery pound a firefighter invests taxpayers are paying in an extra £5 into
the pension pot. Last year that cost taxpayers over half a billion pounds
(£557m).

o A firefighter would need to double their level of contributions to get the same
pension from a private provider.

Council believes:

e The firefighters across Swindon and Wiltshire do a brave and heroic job
putting at risk their own lives to protect our residents.

e The fire fighters should be rewarded for this service to the public with a fair
pension settlement upon retirement.

Council therefore resolves to request that the Cabinet Member for Housing and
Public Safety writes to:

(1) The Fire Minister urging her to enter in to negotiations with the Fire Brigades
Union in England with a fair offer over pension contributions, and

(2) The Members of Parliament for Swindon and urge them to support introducing a
fair firefighter pension scheme.

The Amendment was put to the vote and declared carried becoming the
Substantive Motion.

The Substantive Motion was put to the vote and declared carried.

(In accordance with the Code of Conduct Councillors Andrew Bennett, Nick Martin,
Gary Perkins and Joe Tray made non prejudicial declarations of interest in respect of

Page 11



this item as Council appointed representatives on the Wiltshire and Swindon Fire
Authority.)

(In accordance with the Code of Conduct Councillor Joe Tray made a personal
declaration of interest in respect of this item as he was in receipt of a Fire Authority
Pension.)

71. Motion - Major Road Works
Councillor Bob Wright moved and Councillor Steve Allsopp seconded:

“This Council notes the frustrations of many motorists across the town over the
recent extra traffic pressures as a result of major road works across the town. These
frustrations from motorists include not being aware of diversion routes around major
road works and the Council not taking enough measures to mitigate the traffic effects
of major road works.

Council believes there is more it could do in order to help mitigate the effects of the
major road works across the town. Council requests the Head of Highways to bring a
report to Cabinet detailing how the Council can improve how it mitigates the effects of
major road works in the Borough, including how the Council can more effectively
communicate diversion routes around major road works for motorists and
establishing panels of road stakeholders to recommend effective highways measures
the Council can take to mitigate the traffic effects of major road works.”

The Motion was put to the vote and declared lost.
72. Motion - Solar Panels
Councillor Mark Dempsey moved and Councillor Junab Ali seconded:

“This Council believes there is a significant opportunity to install solar panels on
Council houses by establishing a Swindon Solar Cooperative, as it could:

o Help cut fuel poverty.

o Reduce residents energy bills by an estimated £300 per year from lower
energy bills.

e Provide a return on investment for the Council through the Feed in Tariff
estimated at around 6-7% which could boost the revenue budget.

e Help boost our economy and create local jobs, restoring Swindon as an
economic powerhouse.

Therefore this Council requests the Chief Executive to bring a report to Cabinet on
how this proposal could be delivered, and how it could maximise the benefits of this
proposal to Council tenants, the community, and the Council including:

e How the Council could install solar PV systems for residents in Council owned
homes.

e How the Council could extend this opportunity to residents in privately owned
properties.

e How the Council could establish a Swindon Solar Cooperative and provide a
return on investment for taxpayers and attract community investment.

Page 12



e How the Council could benefit from each proposal.”

Councillor Toby Elliott moved and Councillor Oliver Donachie seconded that
the Motion be amended to read:

“This Council believes there is a significant opportunity to install solar panels on
Council houses by establishing a Swindon Solar Cooperative, as it could:

e Help cut fuel poverty.

¢ Reduce residents energy bills by an estimated £300 per year from lower
energy bills.

e Provide a return on investment for the Council through the Feed in Tariff
estimated at around 6-7% which could boost the revenue budget.
e Help boost our economy and create local jobs, restoring Swindon as an

economic powerhouse.
This Council notes that Cabinet agreed in September 2014 to the formation of a
Community Renewable Investment Scheme with partners that have the necessary
skills and expertise to deliver the scheme, to allow residents to benefit from potential
return on investments of 6+%”
Therefore this Council requests the Cabinet Member for Housing and Public Safety,
reports to Cabinet when practicable after consultation with Members and the Housing
Advisory Forum about:

(1) Whether a proposal has the support of Council tenants;

(2) How the Council could install solar PV systems for residents in Council owned
homes;

(3) How to extend this opportunity to residents in privately owned properties;

(4) How the Council could establish a Swindon Solar Cooperative and provide a
return on investment for taxpayers after increasing Council debt to attract
community investment; and

(5) How the Council could benefit from each proposal.

With the agreement of the mover and seconder and Council the Amendment
was accepted becoming the Substantive Motion.

The Substantive Motion was put to the vote and declared carried.
73. Minutes of Cabinet and Decisions Delegated to Cabinet Members
The Council considered (a) the minutes of the meetings of the Cabinet held on

22" October and 10™ December 2014, and (b) questions to the Cabinet Members
regarding their portfolio responsibilities and answers received.

Page 13



74. Minutes of other Council Bodies

The Council (a) received the minutes set out in the “Minutes of Other Council
Bodies” circulated with the Agenda, and (b) considered questions to Chairs relating
to the work of their Committees and other bodies and answers received.

75. Councillors Question Time

The Director of Law and Democratic Services reported that a Standing Order
15 question had been received from Councillor Derique Montaut.

Councillor Derique Montaut asked a supplementary question regarding the

use of the budget allocation for Village Centre Regeneration. The Cabinet Member
for Strategic Planning, Sustainability and Transport responded at the meeting.

Page 14



Agenda ltem 6
Budget 2015-16 and Beyond

Cabinet Date: 4™ February 2015

Author: Cabinet Member for Finance and

Board Director Resources

Wards: All
Locality Affected: All
Parishes Affected: All

1.1

1.2

1.3

2.1

2.2

2.3

2.4

2.5

Purpose and Reasons

This report proposes a Budget for 2015-16 and sets out the financial context for
2016-17 and beyond.

Under the Council’'s Constitution, the Cabinet is required to recommend a budget
and level of Special Expenses to Council as part of its formal Council Tax Setting
responsibilities.

The effective management of financial resources through robust financial
management processes underpins the Council’s ability to achieve its plans and
priorities.

Recommendations

Cabinet is recommended to note:

The projected out-turn for 2014-15 and that savings arising from the early
delivery of 2015-16 Budget Proposals will be used to partly finance one-off costs
incurred in-year to deliver the 2015-16 Budget, thus helping to preserve the level
of funding held in reserves for future years’ transformation;

That the Council does not expect to need to replenish General Reserves as part
of the 2015-16 Budget Setting process;

That no further consultation feedback has been received in relation to the Budget
proposals presented to Cabinet in October and December 2014;

At the time of publication of this report, that a consultation meeting with business
representatives from Swindon, on behalf of non-domestic rate payers is taking
place on 28th January 2015 and the minutes will be provided at the meeting;

That in line with the requirements of the Local Government Act 2003, the Board
Director, Resources, in his Section 151 capacity, confirms the robustness of the
estimates underlying the recommended Budget and having reviewed the financial
risks being faced by the Council concludes that the proposed level of General
Reserves (£6m) is adequate in the context of the earmarked reserves held,
specific contingencies and the proposed general contingency of £0.5m.

Further information on the subject of this report can be obtained from Kirsty Cole on (01793)
464610 or Email kcole@swindon.gov.uk

Page 15



Budget 2015-16 and Beyond

Cabinet Date: 4™ February 2015

2.6
2.7
2.8

29

2.10

2.11

2.12

2.13

Cabinet is requested to:

Agree the 2014-15 virements set out in Appendix 5;
Endorse the Medium Term Financial Strategy set out in Appendix 9.

Agree that there are no changes to the proposed fees and charges set out in
Appendix 1 to the report to Cabinet on 10th December 2014,

Agree the Specific Reserves held in support of the 2015-16 Revenue Budget set
out in Appendix 7,

Agree that the Head of Revenues and Benefits be authorised to increase awards
of Business Rates Retail Relief in accordance with the scheme approved in
March 2014 to £1,500 per annum in 2015-16 and to award ‘transitional relief’
payments that limit increases in Business Rates payments to 15% for small
businesses with rateable values up to £18,000 and 25% for medium sized
business with a rateable value up to £50,000;

Agree the key principles of the Public Power Solutions Limited (formerly Swindon
Commercial Services Ltd (SCS)) Business Plan for 2015-16 on behalf of the
Council in its shareholder capacity and authorise the Board Director Resources,
in consultation with the Leader of the Council, to agree any future changes to the
Business Plan on behalf of the Council in its shareholder capacity;

Recommend to Council the level of Special Expenses for 2015-16 shall be
£1,041,299 and the areas of land and services that will be charged as special
and general expenses set out in Appendix 10; and

Recommend to Council, subject to any changes resulting from the Government’s
announcement of the final Local Government Finance Settlement for 2015-16
that:-

2.13.1 The 2015-16 Budget be set at £136.554m and the Budget Requirement
for tax setting purposes be set at £134.554m, recognising the £2m of
funding from reserves;

2.13.2 There be no increase in Council Tax for 2015-16, and

2.13.3 It be determined that the proposed increase (that is no increase at all) in
the basic amount of Council Tax for 2015-16 is not excessive in
accordance with Schedule 5 of the Localism Act 2011.

Detail

Central Government policy has had a specific focus on reducing the public sector
deficit which has meant that Local Government (together with the public sector
as a whole) is required to reduce its expenditure. The 2015-16 Budget is the
third year of the new Local Government Funding reforms, which includes a

Further information on the subject of this report can be obtained from Kirsty Cole on (01793)
464610 or Email kcole@swindon.gov.uk

Page 16



Cabinet

Budget 2015-16 and Beyond
Date: 4™ February 2015

general reduction in the overall level of income available to councils and the
Chancellor of the Exchequer has recently confirmed his intention to continue with
public sector funding reductions as part of an overall deficit reduction strategy.
Although Swindon Borough Council has benefitted from the New Homes Bonus
funding, in real terms, there has been a significant reduction in funding. It is
therefore vital that budget setting takes into account projected on-going
reductions in funding as set out below.

Table 1 — Medium Term Funding Gap

2016-17 | 2017-18 | 2018-19
Changes compared to 2015-16 £°000 £°000 £°000
Predicted Grant Funding Reduction 10,000 9,500 9,000
Inflation 4,000 4,000 4,500
Social Care Packages 2,500 2,500 2,500
Pension and Debt Charges 3,000 2,000 2,000
Pay Incremental Progression 700 700 700
Other Cost Pressures 1,500 1,500 1,500
Reduction in Collection Fund Surplus 800 300 300
Less Council Tax Base Growth (1,000) (1,000) | (1,000)
lllustrative Council Tax Increase (1,500) (1,500) | (1,500)
Funding Gap 20,000 18,000 | 18,000

Within this context, it will be necessary for the Council to continue to drive
significant savings from its services and set aside any resources delivered in
advance of future year grant reductions to help achieve the annual budget
challenges in future years. Current indications are that the grant reductions in
future years will be more significant than we have seen during the last three
years. This means wherever possible it is desirable to deliver savings within year

Members are reminded that, prior to the 2015-16 Budget round, £83m of savings
have already been implemented during the last six years, over 500 post deletions
have been identified during the last four years and management capacity was

As part of its on-going strategy to remain financially sustainable, officers operate
an on-going cycle of savings identification. Recognising the sustained nature of

the challenging financial position, the Council needs to use its one-off reserves to
fund the implementation of significant transformation programmes rather than

3.2
in order to generate additional revenue for future years.
3.3
reduced by nearly £1m during the period 2006 to 2013.
3.4
relying on them to fund on-going expenditure, where possible.
3.5

The Council’'s Medium Financial Strategy is set out in Appendix 9. This sets out
the strategic approach adopted to develop budget proposals within the national
and local financial and economic context, which Members are asked to endorse.

Further information on the subject of this report can be obtained from Kirsty Cole on (01793)
464610 or Email kcole@swindon.gov.uk

Page 17



Budget 2015-16 and Beyond

Cabinet Date: 4™ February 2015
4. The Forecast Out-turn 2014-15
4.1  The starting position for the 2015-16 Budget is the current year's Budget for
2014-15. Table 2 below sets out the forecast position to 31st March 2015, which
shows that the Council expects to be able to deliver the 2014-15 Budget without
drawing on General Reserves. On that basis, no provision has been included in
the Proposed Budget for 2015-16 to replenish Reserves as a result of projected
drawings in-year.
4.2  As part of the continuous cycle of savings identification and implementation and
the strategy adopted by Cabinet to implement savings as early as possible,
officers have delivered a significant proportion of the 2015-16 Adult Social Care
savings in-year. This has created some in-year funding capacity that can be
redirected on funding costs incurred in year than were planned to be funded from
reserves. In particular, £4m of costs are being incurred in-year to reshape the
ICT service and insource services from Capita plus £3m is being used to fund the
transfer of recreation and golf assets to the private sector. As a result, it is
proposed that the funding accumulated from the early delivery of savings is used
to partly fund these activities. This approach is reflected in Table 2 below.
Table 2 — Forecast Out-turn 2014-15
Department Budget | Full-Year| Projected Of which is | Movement
2014/15 | Projected | Variance | early delivery | since last
Out-turn of 2015-16 report
Savings
£'000 £'000 £'000 £'000 £'000
Chief Executive 982 642 (340) (55) (32)
Resources 12,728 12,678 (50) 0 0
Corporate (4,795) (4,795) 0 0 555
Commissioning 96,271 94,826 (1,445) (1,581) (1,183)
Service Delivery 37,482 38,375 893 0 (254)
Total General Fund 142,668 141,726 (942) (1,636) (914)
Contingency Fund 0 (500) (500) (500) (500)
142,668 141,226 (1,442) (2,136) (1,414)
Contribution towards
one-off 2014-15 costs 0 1,442 1,442 (1,442) 1,442
Net Position 142,668 142,668 0 (694) 28

4.3 A number of budget virements have been proposed since the last meeting and
Members are asked to approve the budget transfers set out in Appendix 5.

Further information on the subject of this report can be obtained from Kirsty Cole on (01793)
464610 or Email kcole@swindon.gov.uk

Page 18




Budget 2015-16 and Beyond

Cabinet Date: 4™ February 2015

5.2

5.3

6.2

6.3

6.4

The 2015-16 Provisional Finance Settlement

On 18" December 2014, the Government published information to advise
councils of the impact of the 2015-16 Provisional Local Government Finance
Settlement. This showed that Swindon’s expected funding position compared to
that assumed in the December Cabinet report was £0.77m worse than had been
predicted.

As a result, a number of additional savings proposals have been identified to
meet this additional amount along with the £1m funding gap that existing at the
time of writing the December Budget report. These are set out later in the report.

The recommendations of this report are based around the provisional grant
funding levels and any minor change announced in the Local Government
Finance Settlement, due within the next week or so, will be managed
through the Council’s £0.5m contingency fund.

Council Tax 2015-16

One of the new grants announced as part of the 2010 Comprehensive Spending
Review (CSR) was the Council Tax freeze grant, which replaces the level of
income generated from an assumed Council Tax increase with grant funding if
Council Tax levels are frozen. Swindon has frozen its Council Tax levels since
2010-11. Had Council Tax levels been increased in line with the referendum
level from 2011-12 to 2015-16, the Council would have generated an extra £9.9m
of income. As things stand, Swindon’s average Council Tax bill is £7.4% below
the unitary average.

The Council Tax freeze grant available to councils freezing council tax levels in
2015-16 is equivalent to a 1% Council Tax increase using a base-line level of tax
base before the 2014-15 Council Tax support changes. For Swindon, this
amounts to £861k, which is slightly higher than previously assumed (£830k).

In accordance with Schedule 5 of the Localism Act 2011, the Council has a duty
to determine whether any increase in its basic level of Council Tax is considered
to be excessive in which case it would be required to hold a referendum. For
2015-16, the Government is expected to set the threshold at 2% for Swindon.

One of the key decisions for Members is whether to accept the freeze grant or to
increase Council Tax levels. The Government has again set the referendum limit
at 2% and a Council Tax increase set just below the referendum limit at 1.9%
would generate an additional £643k above the level of the freeze grant. Both the
freeze grant and Council Tax income are on-going funding sources.

Business Rates Changes 2015-16

In 2014-15, 450 businesses have been awarded retail relief of up to £1,000 each.
A total value of £432k has been awarded to assist these businesses. In the

Further information on the subject of this report can be obtained from Kirsty Cole on (01793)
464610 or Email kcole@swindon.gov.uk

Page 19



Budget 2015-16 and Beyond

Cabinet Date: 4™ February 2015

7.2

8.2

8.3

9.1

Autumn Statement in December 2014, the Chancellor of the Exchequer
announced that Local Authorities could increase awards to eligible shops,
restaurants and public houses to £1,500 during 2015-16. On the basis that
Central Government will recompense the Council for these payments, Members
are asked to approve this increase.

Transitional relief payments are awarded to businesses to limit increase in rates
bills following a general revaluation. The limits are usually prescribed for five
years at a time. Due to the postponement of the revaluation in 2015 until 2017,
there is no legislation in place to extend the current limits after 1st April 2015.
During the Autumn Statement the Chancellor of the Exchequer asked that Local
Authorities use their discretionary powers to extend the ‘transitional relief’
scheme and to limit increases in the rates paid by smaller businesses to 15% and
medium sized businesses to 25%. In 2014-15, 44 ratepayers were awarded
transitional relief of £32k. The Department for Communities and Local
Government has also advised that they will recompense councils for these
payments and, on that basis, Members are asked to approve these changes.

New Homes Bonus 2015-16

Cabinet initially agreed a strategy in November 2011 to use New Homes Bonus
(NHB) primarily for a mix of large-scale and more local one-off capital schemes.
Subsequently, Council agreed that £2.2m of the 2014-15 allocation would be
used to support the revenue budget, with the remainder being used to help fund
capital expenditure. As part of the December 2014 report, Members agreed to
use all of the on-going New Homes Bonus up to value being received in 2014-15
(£5.1m) to support the on-going revenue Budget from 2015-16.

The Council has recently been notified of its allocation for 2015-16 which is
£6.1m. The level of growth between the 2014-15 level and 2015-16 has slowed
with the increase based on the number of new homes generating an extra £1m
compared to £1.5m between 2010-11 and 2011-12.

Due to uncertainty around the New Homes Bonus in the event of a change in
national government as a result of the May 2015 General Election, it is proposed
that the extra £1m receivable in 2015-16 is not used to support the base budget.
Instead, it is proposed to use this to fund future years’ savings initiatives with any
balance being added to reserves for use in future years.

Public Power Solution Limited (PPS) (formerly Swindon Commercial
Services (SCS)) Business Plan 2015-16

PPS is required to share with the Council, as its shareholder, its Business Plan
for the following financial year in January each year. The Business plan was
considered by the PPS Board and Council officers late in 2014 and the key
messages from the Board are set out below.

Further information on the subject of this report can be obtained from Kirsty Cole on (01793)
464610 or Email kcole@swindon.gov.uk

Page 20



Cabinet

Budget 2015-16 and Beyond
Date: 4™ February 2015

10.
10.1

9.1.1

On 1st November 2013, SCS underwent a major change to refocus the
company on 3 distinct business areas; waste, energy and heat, as
previously approved by the Council. This was a significant change to the
company, and as such, PPS should be viewed as a start-up company,
with 2013-2014 being classed as its’ first year of trading. Linked to this
refocusing, from January 2015, the company formerly known as Swindon
Commercial Services Ltd (“SCS”) has been rebranded as Public Power
Solution Limited (PPS).

In order for the company to start-up, it has received financial support from
the Council, its 100% shareholder, in the form of company loans. These
are in place to finance the Solid Recovered Fuel (SRF) plant, historical
loans from 2010, acquisition of DW Dunn and future loans for the can
baler. There is an overarching objective for the repayment of these loans
and this is shown within the financial sections of the plan as reductions in
cash and loan balances as profits are generated. These repayments will
also result in a reduction in interest payments. The loan repayments will be
achieved through the success of the energy solutions business (PV)
through developer fees; at this stage the loan repayments could not be
achieved through profits made from the SRF plant as a standalone
business.

PPS is awaiting the outcome from the Public Inquiry into the Wroughton
Solar Park Project, which is expected by 6™ March 2015. The outcome
from this inquiry is significant to the Company’s initial trading position,
interest charges and the speed at which the loans can be repaid. This is
due to the significance of the fees the company will receive should the
project be given the green light. Due to this, where there is an impact from
the project, two sets of financials have been produced; ‘with’ Wroughton
and ‘without’ Wroughton. SCS delivered its first solar park at Braydon
Manor Farm, Wiltshire, in December 2014 and has a number of other solar
opportunities in the pipeline.

Members are asked to note and endorse the key principles of the PPS
Business Plan for 2015-16 on behalf of the Council as shareholder of the
company and, in the event of any update to the Plan being required, it is
suggested that the Board Director Resources be authorised, in
consultation with the Leader of the Council, to agree any future changes to
the Plan on behalf of the Council as shareholder.

The Proposed Budget 2015-16

A number of changes to services and resulting Budget savings have already
been approved by Cabinet at its meetings in October and December 2014
following consultation with residents and stakeholders. The Council is
undertaking further consultation with the Business community. The meeting with
business representatives from Swindon, on behalf of non-domestic rate payers,

Further information on the subject of this report can be obtained from Kirsty Cole on (01793)
464610 or Email kcole@swindon.gov.uk

Page 21



Budget 2015-16 and Beyond

Cabinet Date: 4™ February 2015

10.2

10.3

10.4

10.5

at the time of the publication of this report, will take place on 28" January 2015.
The minutes of the meeting with Business Representatives will be circulated as
Appendix 6 at the meeting.

No changes to the Draft Budget are proposed as a result of feedback from the
general consultation but further changes have been required to close the
remaining gap between income and expenditure commitments.

One specific change announced in the Provisional Grant Settlement relates to
the withdrawal of the specific grant for Welfare Funding. As a result of this
national policy, and recognising the increasing financial pressure on Council
Budgets, the Cabinet is minded to withdraw base budget funding for its
Emergency Assistance Fund which is directly financed from this grant.
Recognising the support this fund provides to some residents, the Council has
sought the views of key stakeholders and submitted a robust response to the
Provisional Local Government Finance Settlement Consultation asking the
Government to reinstate this grant. The Final Settlement is due within the next
few days and, if this specific grant funding is reinstated, the Cabinet will withdraw
this proposal.

Should the Government not reinstate the specific grant, it is proposed that the
specific reserve created as part of closing the 2013-14 accounts to supplement
this Fund is used to cashflow the existing scheme during any consultation period
and also to pump-prime the introduction of alternate forms of support. A specific
consultation will be launched around this proposal with the intention of working
with key stakeholders to co-design a reshaped service not requiring on-going
funding from the Council. This proposal will be brought back to Cabinet after the
consultation period ends and a detailed proposal has been developed. Further,
the Cabinet Member for Finance is minded to review the position in respect of
local welfare with the Cabinet Member advisory group and will consider whether
it is possible to make a business case to consider use of reserve funding with a
view to the Council taking a transformative approach towards this matter.

All proposals that have been added or amended since the Draft Budget was
presented to Cabinet on 10" December 2014 are shown in Table 3 below and
Appendix 4. Should any changes be required to any of the proposals in
response to consultation feedback prior to implementation, these will be reported
to Cabinet as part of the 2015-16 scheduled Budget Management reports. The
summaries set out in Appendices 4 and 5 include all proposals that make up the
total 2015-16 budget including those proposed by Cabinet in October 2014.

Further information on the subject of this report can be obtained from Kirsty Cole on (01793)
464610 or Email kcole@swindon.gov.uk

Page 22



Budget 2015-16 and Beyond

Cabinet Date: 4™ February 2015

Table 3 — Changes between the Draft and Final Proposed Budget 2015-16

£'000

2015-16 Draft Budget (10™ December 2014)

138,603

Net reduction in Specific Grant income compared to December report

676

Section 31 grants shown as financing in December Report moved to
service income

(1,000)

Changes since December 2014

Reduction in the use of the £1m contingency allowed for in the December
Cabinet report for new cost pressures and under-delivery of assumed
savings targets

(305)

Reduction in allowance for inflation by assuming those contracts linked to
RPI are increased by 2% rather than the 2.5% assumed in the December
Cabinet report and negotiating no uplift for Children Centre contracts, an
uplift linked to pay for Seqol and no uplift for voluntary sector organisations

(468)

Move the management responsibility for the Crematorium and Cemeteries
Service to the Register Service. This will allow the deletion of one vacant
post and enable a review of the operating model for the merged teams

(60)

Additional deferred payments income as funding is beginning to be
recovered as properties are sold

(100)

Localities saving from restructuring the team to accommodate Community
Navigators and Sustainable Transport work

(70)

Reduction in Public Health grant covered from transfer of responsibility for
Bariatric clinic provision service from SBC to CCG and reduction in
Smoking Cessation contract expenditure

(122)

Adoption grant - reduction in the number of posts previously funded from
Adoption Reform Grant from 5 to 4. Base budget still assumes funding for
4 posts despite the grant ceasing

(49)

Consult on the removal of base budget funding for the Emergency
Assistance Fund (Welfare Scheme) following the Government
withdrawing the specific grant funding for this purpose and use the £300k
earmarked specific reserve to cashflow the scheme during the
consultation period and fund the transition to alternative forms of support
not reliant on on-going Council funding

(321)

Additional Adult Social Care Learning Disabilities work linked to on-going
work to reduce expenditure recognising our spend is above the level of
comparator authorities

(234)

Final Proposed Budget 2015-16

136,554

Further information on the subject of this report can be obtained from Kirsty Cole on (01793)

464610 or Email kcole@swindon.gov.uk

Page 23




Budget 2015-16 and Beyond

Cabinet Date: 4™ February 2015

£000
Financed By:

~ Formula Grant 57,348

~ Council Tax Income 77,544

~ Collection Fund Surplus — Council Tax 1,662

~ Collection Fund Deficit — Business Rates (2,000)

Budget Requirement for Tax Setting Purposes 134,554

~ Reserves Funding (Business Rates Appeals) 2,000

Final Proposed Budget 2015-16 136,554

11. Relationship between Revenue and Capital Budgets

11.1 The 2015-16 Revenue Budget includes a cost pressure of £1m to cover the
estimated increase in debt charges to finance the capital programme being
delivered during 2014-15 and any interest incurred on schemes starting in 2015-
16. This is modelled on previous years’ capital cash outflows, which tend to be in
the order of around £60m per annum.

11.2 The 2015-16 Capital Programme is set out elsewhere on the agenda and any
significant increase in the published programme will have an impact on the
annual revenue budget to the tune of £0.8m per £10m of capital expenditure
financed from corporate resources.

11.3 For future years, it is envisaged that an annual cost pressure of £1m may not be
enough due in particular to the significant requirement to create new school
places over the next three years, which is highlighted in the capital programme
report. This is reflected in the medium term funding gap set out in Table One.

12. Members Allowances

12.1 The Council agreed at its meeting on 6" November 2014 (Minute 54(2) of the
Council) to increase Councillors’ Basic and Special Responsibility Allowances by
an amount equivalent to the percentage increase in pay awarded to local
authority staff nationally in the 2014/15 Pay Round. The 2015-16 Budget allows
for a 2.2% uplift in staff pay and therefore Councillors’ allowances. Appendix 8
sets out details of the Basic and Special Responsibility Allowances applying to
Councillors for the 2015/16 Municipal Year.

13. Special Expenses (charges for services provided in the non-parished area)

13.1 As part of the Borough of Swindon is parished and part unparished, the Borough

Council is responsible for providing some services to a proportion of its residents
that parishes provide elsewhere within the Borough. In order that the cost of
these local services are only charged to residents in the non-parished area (to
avoid residents living within parishes paying for the same services twice) a

Further information on the subject of this report can be obtained from Kirsty Cole on (01793)
464610 or Email kcole@swindon.gov.uk

Page 24



Budget 2015-16 and Beyond

Cabinet Date: 4™ February 2015

13.2

13.3

special calculation has to be made as part of the annual Council Tax setting
process.

The cost of “parish-type” services provided by the Borough Council in the non-
parished area are called special expenses. Whilst Council Tax levels have
remained frozen, the Council has also tried to freeze the special expenses
charge. As service levels have remained broadly unchanged and any growth in
the tax base has been broadly matched with new grounds maintenance work in
the new areas, it is proposed that the charge for 2015-16 remains at £27.81 per
band D household.

A breakdown of the sum to be charged as special expenses is summarised
below with full details set out in Appendix 10. Members are asked to approve the
value of £27.81 for 2015-16 in order that this figure can be included in the
Council Tax calculations to be presented to Council on 23™ February 2015.

Table 4 —Level of Special Expenses 2014-15 and 2015-16

2014-15 2015-16

£ £

Total value of Special Expenses 1,004,978 | 1,041,229

Divided By the tax base for the non-parished area 36,137.3 37,440.8

Charge per Band D Household 27.81 27.81

13.4

14.
141

During 2014-15, a number of parish councils approached the Borough Council
with proposals to enhance the level of grounds maintenance and street cleaning
services within their area. Recognising the financial challenges of the Borough
Council, they put forward proposals to take over some of the Borough Council
services and to fund an enhanced service through their local precept. As agreed
by Cabinet on 22" October 2014 (Cabinet Minute 41(5), 2014/15 refers), a
number of service transfers are being agreed before the start the 2015-16
Financial Year. Although not material at this stage, further service transfers
could affect the special expenses calculation in future years as the profile of
services provided by parishes will increase resulting in a respective increase in
the range of services that need to be charged as special (chargeable to
households in the non-parished area only), rather than general expenses
(chargeable to all households) in future. This will be kept under review over the
next couple of years.

Contingencies and Risk

Each of the savings proposals put forward as part of the Budget setting cycle has
been individually risk assessed and the levels of contingency built into the
proposed Budget for 2015-16, and alongside the level of general and earmarked
reserves, reflect the overall potential risk associated with delivering the Budget
proposals. The corporate contingency find has been set at £0.5m and the

Further information on the subject of this report can be obtained from Kirsty Cole on (01793)
464610 or Email kcole@swindon.gov.uk

Page 25



Budget 2015-16 and Beyond

Cabinet Date: 4™ February 2015

15.
15.1

16.
16.1

17.
171

18.
18.1
19.

19.1

19.2

specific reserves held to support the budget are set out in Appendix 7. In light of
these, the Board Director Resources, as part of his Section 151 responsibilities,
is content that the 2015-16 Budget as proposed, including the specific reserves
and general contingency is deliverable.

One-Off Resources Commitments

No additional one-off funding is required to support the 2015-16 Budget over and
above that included in previous reports and referred to in section 4 and Table 3 of
this report.

Fees and Charges

No changes are proposed to the fees and charges proposed to Cabinet on 10"
December 2014 and therefore the charges for 2015-16 that have been increased
by more than 3% remain unchanged from the Draft Budget.

General Reserves

The Comprehensive Performance Assessment ‘rule of thumb’ introduced for
2003/04 suggested that a level equivalent to not less than 5% of net revenue
expenditure excluding School budgets should be considered, unless there is a
formal risk assessment, which would justify a lower level. This implies a level of
around £7m for Swindon. However, despite the significant level of savings
identified since 2006/07, the Council has not overspent and is on track to deliver
the Budget in the current year despite the challenging financial climate.
Protection against budget risks is also provided through earmarked reserves and
contingencies and benchmarking suggests that Swindon is holding higher levels
of reserves than other Councils of a similar size and complexity. In this context, it
is recommended that the level of General Reserves the Council holds is
maintained at £6m.

Alternative Options
The full range of options is set out in the body of the report.
Implications, Diversity Impact Assessment and Risk Management

Financial and Procurement Implications

Where there are financial implications these have been reflected in the body of
the report and in the appendices.

Legal and Human Rights Implications

All legal and human rights considerations have been taken fully into account in
compiling this report. It is considered that the recommendations of this report are
compatible with Convention rights.

Further information on the subject of this report can be obtained from Kirsty Cole on (01793)
464610 or Email kcole@swindon.gov.uk

Page 26



Budget 2015-16 and Beyond

Cabinet Date: 4™ February 2015

19.3

19.4

20.
20.1

21.
211
22,

22.1
22.2
22.3
22.4
22.5
22.6

22.7

22.8
22.9
22.10

23.
23.1

All Other Implications (including Staff, Sustainability, Health, Rural, Crime and
Disorder)

There are no such direct implications.

Diversity Impact Assessment

A Diversity Impact Assessment (DIA) has been produced for each of the savings
proposals that could affect minority groups that were published on the Council’s
Internet alongside the Draft Budget proposals considered by Cabinet on 22"
October 2014. For new proposals, a full consultation process will be undertaken
before the changes are implemented and a DIA will be considered as part of that
process. In particular, the proposal to withdraw on-going revenue funding for the
Emergency Assistant Fund (Welfare Fund) will be brought back to Cabinet with a
full DIA before a final decision is taken.

Consultees

The Board Director, Resources (Section 151 Officer) and Director of Law and
Democratic Services (Monitoring Officer) are consulted in respect of all reports.

Background Papers
None
Appendices

Appendix 1: Forecast Out-turn by Directorate and by Service Type 2014-15
Appendix 2: Summary of Proposed Budget By Group 2015-16

Appendix 3: Summary Budget Proposals By Directorate 2015-16

Appendix 4: Detailed Budget Proposals 2015-16 By Group

Appendix 5: Virements 2014-15

Appendix 6: Minutes of the Ratepayers meeting on 28th January 2015 — To be
tabled at the meeting

Appendix 7: Reserves Policy and Specific Reserves held to support the 2015-16
Budget

Appendix 8: 2015-16 Members Allowances
Appendix 9: Medium Term Financial Strategy
Appendix 10: Special Expenses 2015-16

Key Decision/Decision in Cabinet Work Programme and Forward Plan

The Council’'s Budget will be determined by the full Council on 23™ February
2015. This is therefore not a key decision for the Cabinet at this meeting. It is
included in the Cabinet Work Programme and Forward Plan for February 2015

Further information on the subject of this report can be obtained from Kirsty Cole on (01793)
464610 or Email kcole@swindon.gov.uk

Page 27



This page is intentionally left blank

Page 28



JoquWanoN 1S} JO ajep Jajsuel) ay) o) dn saijuad

$90INI9S papel|

ainsig| pue sasinod jjob ayy Bunesado Jo s}s09 Jo-auo ay} sapnjoul| /GL 69 LLO‘L 689 (zzg) Q@ 2INYN) ‘sauelqr] ‘ainsia
*aWwodUl Ul 9sealoul
llews e pue puads Jayjo ul uononpal pue Buyels woly sbuines|(yz1) YA €G6¢ 29l'el 606°CL Heuwsieals
JUSWAIIA
sbuines |eonoey ay} jo ped se ajelsodio) o} panow Ajuanbasgns
ng pauodal Alsnoinaid sbuines YNN O} Sa)ejal aduelep | 9z (g¢) zL) G0Z'L /121 S92IAIS |BIDJBWWOD Kianljeq 291198
(e8L°}) (z92) (svv'L) 9786 11296
diysiauped
Ajajes Ajunwiwo) ay} pue s}oeuUOD [eulalxa 0} ajejal sabuey)|(zg) (g6) (221) Gol e sa21M8S BuisnoH
‘UaJp|Iyd Jaye payoo|
10} sjuswaoe|d pauoIsSIWWOD A||BUIBIXS 10} PUBWISP Pasealdu|| 8GZ 89 6 92602 ¥8G'61 sal|lwe4 pue uaip|iyd
‘H J0 @ woJj aduepInb ypm aouepIodd. Ul 9-G| Ul SIDIAISS
Ul PaJSaAUI-a) pUB SAISAI YYESH 2l|qnd 3y} Ojul palldjsuel) a4 [|Im yyeeH a1gnd
puadsiapun }SB2210} Y] JGEEF Isea) je jo sbuines pajelauab sey
S9IDUBDEA JE}S pue $92IAI9S Yjjeay dlignd awos jo Buunjonisay| zz (y2) 2 0£8'6 2£8'6
YoJel 0} pajyun
aq 0} saloueoeA Ag pajebiiw ‘sbuines juud yym jasyo ainssaid
Buiyeys yuawdinba jsieioads pue sjeunguy Joj s}sod pasealou||(€z) vz 1 1992 0992 Juswule)y / Awouoog
$9JEJ UVIVYI|IVY BWLVUI
panoidwi aney sassadoid A1on023l }gap Mau uolippe u| “yjeaH
wouy poddns Buinleoas sased Jo Jaquinu Jaybly e pue saseo
ay} Jo awos jo Ajxajdwod Jajealb o} anp Ajed si 49/ 3 Jo awooul
Ul 9SBaJOUl Uy “9.eD Ul SUOIJBLEA pue syealq wodj sbuines pue
SJoeIU0D 21D BulAll papoddns Jo uoljeljobaual |NySSa00NS ‘SMBINBL
91ed 0} anp S| 3Z883F JO SIS0 Ul UOIIONPal Y "Seale Jo Jaquinu
e ssoJoe G0z [Udy 1s| Aq pajuswajdwi aq 0} sbuines pajabie; jo
Wz ¥3 8y} Jonilep oy sbuines 1ebpng G1-G1.0Z aus jo Aaniep Aue3|(8Ge‘L) (X)) (161'2) 226'09 €L1€9 SHNPY ¢ UJpliyd
0 (81) (1) ccL oL juswabeuely Buluoissiwwon
GGS (509) (0s) €88 €€6°L
0 0 0 6L€ 61€ Bisu| 3 uoneslUNWWOD
0 0 0 GES'9 GES9 dH % 1l
“Joesjuoo ejde) ayj Japun papiAoid SaOINIBS
SWOS JO uoljeuIlLIB) YIM P3JeIo0SSEe S)S0D 8y} SpJemo} uonguiuod| GGG (gg%) 0 (g6.'%) (562'%) 8jesodio)
awooul ApIsgns JJouaq pue s}s09 UNod pasealdu|| 0 (05) (09) /89°L /€2°1 sjijauag R sanuanay
0 0 0 LEL'Y LEL'Y aoueul4 $92IN0SAY
(ze) (g0¢) (ove) v9 286
sbuines Juswabeue
saiioe MNQ pue ("018 asesjal Jueuanod) sjdisoal BuLinoal UoN| 0 (¥€2) (¥e2) (ovz'e) (z10'e) s|INS @ Awouoo3
qnH uonew.ojsuel |
0 0 0 0 0 uopuims auQ
salyiioe) AJunwiwod uo sadsueleA Joulln|(z) 0 2) 9e6 felole} S9ljI|e007]
‘alnyipuadxa
uonoald ueadoiny JO JUBWSSS JUBWUIBA0LS) SapNnjoul uoijaalold|(0z) (69) (62) 86/ €82 S92IAJISS DljeIO0Wa(J R MET
Koueoen yeis|(01) (G1) (G2) 16€ [444 Jipny |eulsiu| pung
0 0 0 161 /61 Jayyabo] sebuons aAIIN29X3 JaIyo |elauan
000.3 000.3 000.3 000.3 000.3
Modal Hodai jse| uin}Ino
)se| 9ouIs - 9oueLeA aouelep pajoaloid SLIYL0Z
aoueLIBA 10} SUOSEAY UO AlRjJudWWO) [JUBWAAOI pajoaloid pajoaloud 1eaA-|In4 19b6png uoljoung g 1911 Jejjid | 4911

el xipuaddy

juawpedaq Ag uiny-3nQ pajoaloid - GL-¥10Z Juswabeuep 396png

Page 29



(09¢°L) (€28) (e€2'2) Sev'ovl 899°¢L |ejo] puels
_ |
(L2) (269) (8¢6) (8¢€6) 0 [eJO1 JUN0DOY enusASY PUISNOH
1seda.0} JHQ PasIAal 0} Buijejal eoueleA %63 6 (622) (0z2) 625'GC 6v.'Se Buroueur4 [ended vyH
623
10 s|euajew pue sjuswAed JoeJjU0D Ul asealoul ue Buasyo si 0zZ3F
40 dwooul u aseasoul Jyblis e pue 3giz3 Jo sbuines yejs leuonippy ((¥£2) (VX4 L€ LwL'0lL ¥0L°01 sieday
S)SE2210}
Buyeys pasinal 0} sejejal | 'GZ3 Jo ainssald }S00 [BUOHIPPY | 62 (¥9) (62) 68 8Ll S90IMIDG [e10adS
3013 jo ainssaud Junoddy
Je)s Jasyo sey yoiym o3a abesjiw ‘sjeusjew se yons s}abpngq JUNo22y| anuaAady
J9||ews uo sbuines |euonippe payiuapl sey s}abpnd jo mainay|(L) (589) (9z2) (262'2€) (L2G6'9¢) wswabeuey g uoisinedng anuanay BuisnoH BuisnoH
(ss2) (281) (zvy) (zvy) 0 [ejJoL juelin sjooyag pajealpad
slaquinu
lidnd sieaA Alies uj sseauoul Jau e Jo Jnsal e se Buipuny jeuol (0£2) 0 (og2) (9ze'vs1) (960'751) Juel9 [00YoS pajedIpag
ymoub
nd pasealoul ‘puads |enjoe Aed |enba ‘yuads jou Aouabunuo) NH juels)
‘'s,9| }sod paoejdun paseaiou| ‘8yep anow jo abueyd 1@ uonnquuoD sjooyoss
uyesH ‘sdn doj @ sjuswAed (NH) spaaN UbIH [euonippy ((52) (281) (z12) ¥88'€G L 960'%S 1 juswureny / Awouoo3 Hsq|Bulucissiwwo)d 9sa| Pajealped
0S 6€ 68 68 0 1e3ol yjjeaq
‘saseyound Jieysjaaym Jo s}sod }aaw 0} 9O wodj buipuny [eyde pueibu3
’ 939 ’ 1080 YA 74 (L) (021) (812'8¢) (8v0°g¢) SHN pue 900 WoJj swodu|
‘eale sy} ul sbuines pasejoap Ajsnoinaid paonpas sey Juswaies saljlwe ISEINIE o
Aed pasiape Ajjuadai ay) Buimojjo} sjuswwwod Alejes Ul 9Sealdu| QL (62) ) gze'l 6eeL pue uaipjiyD yjesH 991AI9S Y)|eaH
‘Jow ag ||im sjuswade|d uo
Buluoissimwon
sainssaid MOY UO SUOISSIWWOD Yyeay ypm Bujob-uo suoissnasiq S)iNpyY pue ualp|iyd yjeaH eo
"Jobpng sJreyo@aym pue juswade|d yjesy s,uaip|iyo Joy puewaq|(§12) G8¥y 0.2 6.6°9€ 60.'9E 'HIESH B
(v16) (82) (zve) 9zLLvL 899l [eJOL pun4 [eJausg
(vs2) Lyl £68 G.£'8¢ z8v'LE
0€3 AINJaS pue 31z3 199]4
puE S310}S Ul S}S09 Bulye)s [euonippe ale SeduUeLIBA JO 9sSned ule\| Z9 L6E foyer 1052 $50°‘C sjassy AanlpQ
yoddng
‘s}obpnq jo Jaquinu e ssooe sbuines |eonoe] |(y¥) (92) (oz1) 865°‘8 81/ ¥ S9OINI9G Ssauisng
Mp83 awodul Buiousdl| Ixe) pue sabieyo pue| ‘|osu02 Bulpjing
paseaudul pue Y0GEF swodul 83} buluue|d o suo paseasou|| ¢ (68€) (98¢) 118 /6Ly Aiojenbay 1 buluuelq
'$]S09 [euoljesado pue Buijels uo sease Jo
Jaquinu e ssouoe sbuines pue Bupjied Jed woly awodui [euol (yee) 14 (90€) cov's 608 podsuel] g shemybiH
000.3 000.3 000.3 000.3 000.3
Jodal uodal )se| uinynQ
jse| aouls - aoueleA aoueleA pajoaloid SLIV1L0Z
aouelIBA 10} Suoseay uo Alejuswwo)|juswanroly (pajosloid pajoalfoid 1eaA-|In4 ja9bpng uonoun4 g a1l 1ejjid | 4911

Page 30



(09€°L) (e28) (eg22) gev'ovl 899°Z¥L lejo] puein
(0¥2) (869) (8¢6) (8¢6) 0 VdH lejol
6¥ 6¢ 68 68 0 UjesH [ejol
(952) (281) (zvv) (Z¥¥) 0 OSsd [elol
(¥16) (82) (zve) 9zl LYl 899°Z¥L pund |eJaua9 |ejo]
(0) 0 (0) 9GL'6 oGL'6 (syuswysanu| % sabiey) jgaQ) Juswabeuely 1geg
0 0 0 10G ,0G Ino |ds Aousbunuod
GOt (L9g) 4% org8‘zlL 208zl SSOINISG [esjua)
:uoddng @ 9jesodion
292 oS 208 L6L2e 68€°'LZ ualp|iy - a1e [e100s
(26€°1L) (618) (921°2) €26'%S 660°.S s}npy - ale) |e100g
0 (09) (09) G6E'L Ghi'lL sjjouag g senuanay
€C 8 LS G69'6 ¥99'6 ujlesH algqnd
(0¥) (¥99) (+09) (L89'c) (220'¢) Juswdojaneq % Buiuueld
(2) (62) (98) GPe'e Ley'e 49 BuisnoH
(€vL) G9 (82) 6SL°L L€T'L Hodsuel] g skemybiH
(GL2) €0¢ 88 vEL'LL ov0°'LL Aioje|nbay g |e}uswUOIIAUg
Z 0Ll A2 GoY'/ €62, S90IAISS UBIp|IyD JaYl0 pue uoieonpy
/Sl 6G. 916 16S'S G/9'V sallelqi] 1@ ainsia] ‘ainyn)
000.3 000.3 000.3 000.3 000.3
podal jodail )se| uinyjnQ
}se] @JulIs - 9Jduellep oJduellep 3300.—0._& Ql
juswaAoly |pajoaloid pajoaload Jea -|In4 10z 39bpng S1-710Z Alewwng ealy 991A19S

q} xipuaddy

99IA18S Ag uin}-3nQ pajoaloid - GL-¥10Z Juswabeuep 3obpng

Page 31



This page is intentionally left blank

Page 32



ySS9El

S05°8€

16186

(see)

€6. }ebpng 91-5102
(rLL'9) €20°L 0z6‘L (898°8) (681) ¥ xipuaddy ul Jno }as sabueyo jaN
QL¥'1) (gz2) (08) (1ze) 0 sabuey) aoIneS
(298'6) (9z9) (200'¥) (009'Y) (reL) S92IAI9S Bull-juoly Bunoedwi Ajoauip jou sbuines
1988 06+ GLL'Y 651 (947 sainssald }S0) J8yl0
olLv'e vee'l 1GLL €ce 20l uonejul
(€L1'L) 0S 99¢ (62¥'L) 0 (Jueso ejnwio4 apisino) Buipun4 ul sabueyy
899°Cy1 85¢'L¢ 0£8'S6 86¥'8 286 }obpng aseq G1-¥102
0 (vez1) (Lvp) 695 0 Buipuny JJO 2UQ JO |eSIoAdYy
899°Zy1 43 VR 1L2°96 €€6°L 286 }ebpng G1-¥102
000.3 000.3 000.3 000.3 000.3

S,9A1}N29X3

|elol AiaAlj9g 9921M198 [BuluolsSSIWIWIOD)  [S92INOSAY JoIyn
Z Xlpuaddy (71320 18uIge) Aq paroadde sjesodoad Buipnjoul) 91-610Z dnoug Ag jobpng pasodoud jo Alewwng

Page 33



(suonouny sa21A195 1oddng usamiaq se8ueyd |eandNLIS 1991434 10U s90Q) Alewwing 91e40302.1Q - ¢ddy

$G5‘oc] (91L¥'L) (00og) |(czv'e) (6€1‘9) [298‘8 (Lev)  |evs‘z g6zl |(c1L'2)  [899‘zkL |0 899°2vl pung |eiduds Joj [ejo |
18£'8¢ (sz2) (002) |0 (9z¢g) 06 (2z2)  [s06 965 0S gsese  [(v2L) z8b'Le | Aoaleq 9o1nRS 10) [BJO |
2.2’ 0 0 0 (0¢) GOl (Z1) €Tl /€ 0 ¥50'C ¥50'C sjessy AlaalleQ - 0294d
150'6 0 0 0 0 (G1) (V) 41> L. 0 689'S (62) 8L.'8 poddng g s80IA1eg ssauisng - 0994d
rL'y 0 0 0 (09) (8) (¥€) L L 0 16L'p lBL'Y AioyeinBay % Buluueld - 0594d
/¥8'8 0 (0oz) |0 (69) 0L (98) €12 oLl 0 60.'8 60.'8 Hodsuel] 3 skemybiH - 0¥94d
S92IAIBS
(G19) (z2) 0 0 (201) (ze) (29) €g G8 0 (eze) (zze) papel] '3 8inyng ‘sauelqi] ‘ansioT - 0294d
Les'el 0 0 0 (02) e () 8cL Xe] 0§ 606'C) 606'C) Hewsyeais - 0L.94d
8ylL'L 0 0 0 0 (8) 0 Gl 6l 0 44N (G6) yAYA S9OIAIBS [BIOJBWWOYD - 0£Gdd
K1aAljaq 921A13S - 900dd
05.°L6 (028) (oo1) |(szv'e) (6¥) GlLL'Y (g91) |vs¥L (134 992 oes‘'s6  |(Lvv) L1Z2'96 | buluoissiwuwio) Joj [e30 |
L€ 0 0 0 0 (2) (12 €l 0z 0 Zre Zre $90IAI9S bUISNOH - 0£94d
G80'LZ (o01) 0 (¢z2) (08) yAYA (02) 102 6.2 861 cL9'6L |62 ¥85'61 salliwe4 pue uaIpiyd - 0094d
G5.'6 0 0 0 (zz)) 1z (Q) L 8¢ 0 z£8'6 z£8'6 YjleaH oljand - 0vS4d
GSY'C 0 0 0 0 ol 0 L v 89 06T (0L¥) 099 Juswureyy / Awouod3 - 0ZG4d
LGE'c9 (022) (ook) |(0ozZ'€) (LL2) 16E'C (VARD) 85T'L Ly 0 cLL'e9 cLL'e9 SHNpY 8 UIp|IYd - 01.54d
1GL 0 0 0 0 € 0 0 vl 0 ov. oyl juswabeuel - 0054d
m:_:o_ww_EEOO - G00dd
(02¢) (1zg) 0 0 (009‘v) [6SL‘S (Z1) 621 902 (62v‘L) |s6¥‘S G9G £€6°,L $92IN0SdY 10 [€JO |
Lee 0 0 0 0 G 0 0 1 0 6LE 6LE ybisu| 3 uonedIUNWWOD - OL¥d4d
€65'G 0 0 0 (oo0't)  |(9) 0 8 9l 0 Ges'o Ges'9 ¥H % 11 - 0624d
,0Z'0L 0 0 0 0 000°'L 0 0 0 0 102’6 1026 sebieyd 19eq - 0vz4d
105 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 106 10G Aousbunuog syeiodio) - opz4d
(gze'e) 0 0 0 (GLo'¢) |osi'c (o) L L1 (esL'e)  |(bsg'cl) |[ss9 (605'17L) 8jesodiog - Ovzdd
0SL'e (1ze) 0 0 0 (¥) 0 4 ol vel 1€1°) LE1°) sjjousg g senusAsy - 0l.z4d
102y 0 0 0 Gl 8 (@ €0l o¢ 0 L¥0'Y (06) LEL'Y 8oueuld - 0024d
S$921N0S3Y - 200dd
£6. 0 0 0 (rel) (344 (gg) 13 901 0 786 0 786 9AINJ9XJ JOIYD 104 [BJ0 |
(280°¢) 0 0 0 (029) Ly (61) 62 8 0 (zro'e) (zLo'e) S|IMS 3 AwouodT - 0Eydd
9y 0 0 0 (02) (q) 0 0 €l 0 8¢S 8¢S $a1}l|eo0] - 00v4d
61.'C 0 0 0 (¥6) (+2) (G1) Z €/ 0 1£8'C 1£8'C $90IAI8S Oljeloows( @ MeT - 0LE4d
oy 0 0 0 0 (€) (1) 0 8 0 444 444 HpNny [eutsiul - 0L L4d
661 0 0 0 0 ) 0 0 4 0 161 /6l Jayyebo] sebuons - 00l dd
aAlIN23ax3 a1y - 100dd
000.3 000.3 000.3 000.3 000.3 000.3 | 0003 000.3 000.3 | 000.3 000.3 000.3 000.3
sBuines SL-7102
sobueysy  awodu| uonewlojsues] Koualdiyg /| ainssaid | awoou]  sjpe)UOD Ked Jebpng | syo-auQ | SL-¥102
wrumFON 92IAISS MBN 9210 Juou4 92130 Noeg }so0) = uonjejju) = uolnjeyjujl - uoneyu| wmmm 0%;0>01 wwmﬁv:m
10} }2b6png S)S0D sabueys
pasodoud <-------3WO0JU| M3 *® sbBuireg-------- > Y10 <- uonjepuj--------> Buipung

¢ xipuaddy

71390 19UIg8) Aq panroidde sjesodoid buipnjoul) 8jejojoaiiqjuonound Aq 91-GL0Z 10j }obpng pasodoid Jo Aewwng

Page 34



(Lz1) (Lz1) N JueIS uoneuswajdw] gNIS MON
(oL) (¥01) N JuUBIS) S8210/\ AJIUNWWOYD pUE WIoJeY (8207
(L1) (11) N POWNSSE %0583 9A0Q. 91-G0Z JUBIS 98814 Xe] [Iouno) EAxJ
(slaquinu aAebau) aWwoduU| [euonippy
(uelin
zs z< Uoddng saoiAlag |e007 jo Med jo Led) Juels AjLoyiny poo|{ [B00T peaT JO uonessa)
143 14> JuBl9 ulwpy Hoddng xe] |1IounoD Ul UoONPaY
00l 00l JUBl9) Ulwpy }ijsusg Ul uollonpsy
2 2 (ueio poddng seoiAIag 2207 JO Led) JUelS) |aAR1] 8814 0} SIybIy papus)ix] Jo uonessa)
e 1ZS uonesisiuiLpe pajeIdosse pue puny aleyapA Joj JuelB Jo uonessan
861 861 juel9 wJojey uopndopy jo uolessad
44" [44" Jueis) yjjesH 21|gnd ui uononpay
Hodal
JauIge) Jaquusoa sy} Ul pawnsse Uey) Jamo| sem awsyog poddng [1ouno) |eo0] mau
(Lp) (Lp) ay} 0} uonisuel} 0} papJeme Buipuny Alelodws} ul uoionpal sy} — Buipuny susping maN
Hodal Jpuige) Jaquiadaq ay} ul pawnsse uey) ssa| sem [idnd Jad /83 0} £ 1 F wol} ajel
(y8) (¥8) Ul [[B} pUB SUOISIBAUOD Awapede 0} anp uoljonpal ay} - Juels) uoddng saoiAIeg uoieonpg
(siaquinu aA}isod) sainssaid }S0)
(229°€) paroidde Ajsnoinaid sjesodoig
N/A épadinbay
juedeA |pajiid 000.3 000.3 000.3 uonejnsuon lesodo.d
91-5102 10} ] A4 vioz
pasodo.d Arenuqoa Jaquiaosa(g
(s314) 91-51L0Z | sobueyn | ui pasodoid | ul pasodouid
suonajeq 3sod |ejol abueyo abueyo

¥ Xipuaddy

Buipung - ealy 92IA19S
(S10z Arenigad
pue 11,02 Joquada ul pasodoid sebueyd) sjesodoid pajiejaq - 3obpng 91-G 102

Page 35



00 00 (ovz'9) (895°1) 0 s|esodo.d 326png 91-6102Z |ej0L
00 00 (896°1) (895°1) 0 ¥1-20-10 38uiqed Aq paroidde aq o0} sjesodoud jo jejo|
"oV ale) ay} Jo sanjigisuodsal
(9g2'1) (9g2')) N [eUOlIppE B} JBA0D 0} Y}|edH 40 Juswpedsq sy} woly Buipuny Joy a1ed esjx3 [euolippy
ja119Y |1le1ay pue
(000°L) (000°L) N ‘deD uoneju| ssjey ssauisng ‘Jaljay sejey ssauisng |[BwS spJemo) sjuels LS ¥ANN
N/A épadinbay
jueoep |pajii4 000.3 000.3 000.3 uone}Nsuo) |esodoud
91-510Z 10} G102 ¥102
pasodoud Aieniqaqy Jlaquiadaq
(s314) 91-S510Z | sobueyn | ui pasodoid | ul pasodoud
suol}a|aqg 3sod |eyoL abueyn abueyn

¥ Xipuaddy

Buipung - ealy 92I1A19S

(S10z Arenigad
pue 11,02 Joquada ul pasodoid sebueyd) sjesodoid pajiejaq - 3obpng 91-G 102

Page 36



0°C 00 (59) 09 0 sjesodoud jabpng 91-G10Z [ejoL
0l 00
0l 00 [09 09 0 ¥1-20-¥0 32uiqe) Aq panoidde aq 03 sjesodoud jo [ejol
pbunnonisal
Joulw uo "swea)} pabisw ay} Joj [spow Bunelado
SUOIB}NSUOD |8U} JO MBIABI B 9|qeus pue }sod JuedeA auo JO UoIS|op SYl MOJ[E |[IM SIY] 92IAISS JaisiBoy
0L (09) (09) Hels - A By} 0} 92IAI8S SaLIB}sWa) pue WnLojewal) ay} Joj Ajljiqisuodsal Juswabeuew ay) aAop
bunnonnsal
Jouiw uo
suolne}Nsuod ‘swwelboid sbueyo ainyn) 1 ainsia ay} JO SoUBApPE
g1 (0g) (0g) Hes - A ul sa1oualole Alessadau JaAlep 0} uoisiroid Bulsied Buluiewsal s,|1I0unoy ay) MaINnSY
(s1aquinu aAREboU) SBUIAES [E21}0€] JaY3I0
0S1 0S1 saje|oAoal ajes ay} o) saolid 1oyiew Ul e} e 0} anp awooul BuljpAoal ul uojonpay
(siaquinu aA}isod) sainssaid }S0)
(czL) panoidde Ajsnoinaid sjesodoigd
N/A épadinbay
juedeA |pajiid 000.3 000.3 000.3 uonejnsuon lesodo.d
91-510¢ 10} §510¢ 1494
pasodoud Aieniqaqy Jaquiaoaqg
(s314) 91-51L0Z | sobueyn | ui pasodoid | ul pasodouid
suonajaq 3sod |ejol abueyn abueyn

P10  xipuaddy

KI9AIaQ - ealy 92IAI9S

(S10z Arenigad
pue 11,02 Joquada ul pasodoid sebueyd) sjesodoid pajiejaq - 3obpng 91-G 102

Page 37



"Wea} oy} UIYNIM o|ge|lBAE SINOY JO oSN JUSIo}d 21oW ybnoiy)

(sp) (sp) N 314 | Jo uoidonpal e ul pajnsal sey s}abpng Buiyels Jo mainal e - adIAles uondopy
"AISAISp punoJe ysH Jaybiy
Apubiis os 610z 1Mdy Is| Aq ueyy Jayjel ‘9l-G1.0g Bulnp usAlp &q [|im sBuines [euonippe
asay ] "sanuoyine Jojeiedwod Jo [8A8] 8y} dA0ge S| puads uno Buisiubooas ainjipuadxe
(ve2) (ve2) N 2onpaJ 0} YJom BuloB-uo o} paxul| 3Jom sapljigesiq Bulules aied [B100S }NpY [BUOHIPPY
ainjpuadxa
10BJIUOD Uoessan Bujows ul uononpal pue o9 0} DES Woly 992IAISS uolsiAoid
(zz1) (zz1) N 21Ulj0 oujeLleg Joy) Ajljigisuodsal JO Jajsuel) Wody paIanod Juelb yjjesH oljgnd ul uoonpay
"awayos |obag ay)
(52) (s2) N uiof yeys mapN “laaouin) jeis ybnolyy jobag 0] uonguiuoo uoisuad Ul UoONPaY - S}NPY
p|os ale saijadoud
(0o01) (001) N se palanodal aq 0} Buluuibaq si Buipuny se swooul sjuswAed pallajep |euocppy
(siaquinu aAjebau) SBUIAeS [ed3oe] Joyl0
"S90INISS
08y 08y Jo} spuewap Buisealoul }J@aw 0} uoisinoid Aousbe pue jjejs aul| JUoJy [BUOIHIPPE - S,UBJIp|IyD
yilesH Jo juswuedsq
9eC’|l 9eC’|l 2y} woyy Juelb |euonippe Aq papuny aq o} Joy 8Ied 8y} Jo saljigisuodsal [euolippy
}ebpng 91-G10¢
08 08 8y} ul pawnsse sbuines aALIp 0} anuniuod o} uoiisod Jabeuepy Ajjigesiq Bulules] meN
}sod |eiuasss
zZs zZ¢ ue sl pue sieak g Joj Buipuny JJ0 BUO WOy papuny usag sey - Jaoio Buluue|d Aousbiswg
AlIAIjOE JusDal Jo sIsAjeue pual) pue sainbl uoneindod
00l 001 WoJ} uonewlIoUl 1sa)e| uo paseq - a|doad Jap|O O} S2IAISS 1o} puewap Buisealou|
(siaquinu aA}isod) sainssaid }S0)
(89z‘z) panoidde Ajsnoinaid sjesodoigd
N/A épadinbay
juedep |paj|id 000.3 000.3 000.3 uonejnsuon lesodo.d
91-510¢ 10} §510¢ 1494
pasodoud Aieniqaqy Jaquiaoaqg
(s314) 91-51L0Z | sobueyn | ui pasodoid | ul pasodouid
suonajaq 3sod |ejol abueyn abueyn

P10  xipuaddy

31doad o9|qeJou[n/ - ealy 9JIAI9S
(G102 Meniged
PUE 7102 JoquiadaQ ul pasodoid sebueyo) sjesodoid pajiejeq - 3obpng 91-G102

Page 38



0l 0L (998) Zov'lL 0 sjesodoud j96png 91-510Z [ejoL
0l 0l
00 0’0 oL oL 0 ¥1-20-70 12uiqe) Aq panoidde aq o} sjesodoud jo jejo|
N/A épadinbay
juedep |pajjid 000.3 000.3 000.3 uoneynsuo lesodoid
91-G10Z 10} S1L02 v10z
pasodoud Aieniqaqy Jlaquiataq
(s314) 91-S510Z | sobueyn | ui pasodoid | ul pasodoud
suonajaq 3sod |eyol abueyn abueyn
P30 7 Xipuaddy

31doad o9|qeJou[n/ - ealy 9JIAI9S

(S10Z Ateniqgaj

pue 11,02 Joquada ul pasodoid sebueyd) sjesodoid pajiejaq - 3obpng 91-G 102

Page 39



(02)

(02)

uo1ednd20 8)IS apIsIsjep) Blixa pue Joddns [eloueul) [euollippe 1o} (P11
S9OIAISS [BIDJBWLIOD UOPUIMS AlJSWLIOY) Py SUOHN|OS JBMO 21|gnd WOJ) UoNgLIU0D

(L1)

(L1)

way) 0} pied juelb poddng Xe] |Iouno)
3y} ul uoonpal |lews e ybnouyy saysued o0} pajiodssed uononpal juelb JUsWUIBA0D) %L

(8¢)

(8¢)

N

ainjonJjseljul ||oJAed 10UN0D 8109 §,|10UN0Y BY} OJUO PaLIBJSURI} USBJ MOU BARY Jey}
Jels y)esH |obag o0} papinoid ao1AISS ||0JAed JO [8AS] pasealoul Joy |0bag Woly awoou|

o4l

(02)

(02)

BULNJONIISa]
Jouiw uo
suole)NSuUoD

HEIS - A

ylom Jodsuel| ajgeule}sng pue sioyebineN Ajunwwo)
ajepowwoooe pue sailold s |louno) 198w o} wes) ayy bulubijeas wouy Buines saiyieooT

0l

(2)

(2)

pajuswa|dul
Apeale
‘padinbal JoN

(poaibe sem Aouepunpal) uoioas Aunniog ul 3sod JUedeA JO uoialaQg

(G1)

(G1)

S[eA8] ainjipuadxa [eNjoe 0} paubljeal buleq aJe sjebpnq
8y} se s|aAs| 821AJSS Joedwi Jou Op pue seale 80IAIeS Auew ssoloe Jno sbulnes asay |
‘uosiiedwod }abpng G-10Z SNSJoA UIN}-INO 1-€10Z & Ubnouy) usALp suoionpal Jobpng

(Slequinu aAjEDoU) SDUIAES [EJNOE] JOI0

(L1)

(L1)

uoneldxs J0enuod
ay) Buimojjos Aioyiny a4 8y} 0} SeoIAIes Bulj|es WoJ) 8WOooUl JIpNy [Bulaiul JO SSOT

(00¢g)

(000°1)

004

JUSWUISA0D) oy}
woJ} paAi@oal Juswajpes juelb [enjoe pue suondwnsse juelb usamiaq sabueyd pue G10g
judy 1S puB $10g 1990300 usamiaq asue Aew jey} sainssalud }so0o Jayjo 1oy Aousbunuo)

(£66)

(LL¥)

(919)

Idy Buley Jo 1ybi| Ul 9% 0} %¢ WOo.) UOIE[IUI JOBIIUOD 10} 9OUBMO||E 8y} 8oNnpal 0}
uolsiosp 8y} Buimojjoy spodal snoiaald Ul 1oy pamojje ainssald }So0 uoneul Ul Uononpay

(Silequinu 9ARISOd) Sainssaid }S0)

G59°L

panoidde Ajsnoinaid sjesodoigd

juesep |pajiid

000.3

000.3

000.3

N/A épadinbay
uole}nsuo’n

|esodolid

(s314) 91-5102
suol}a|aqg 3sod

91-510¢ 10}
pasodoud

sabueyn

jejol

] A4
Aieniqaqy
ul pasodo.id

abueyn

147114
JaquiaosaQ

ul pasodo.id
abueyn

P10  xipuaddy

S901N0S9y pue 9jelodio) - ealy 92IAI9S

(S10z Arenigad
pue 11,02 Joquada ul pasodoid sebueyd) sjesodoid pajiejaq - 3obpng 91-G 102

Page 40



0°C 0C (evL) (ev6°L) 145 sjesodoud jabpng 91-G10Z [ejoL
0l 0¢
ol 00 (862°1) (ev6°L) Svl ¥1-20-10 12uiqed Aq paroidde aq o) sjesodoud jo |ejo |
"spaadoud 1 Ji yoddns aaeulsye aoe(d ul ind pue ajdoad s|gesaujnA uo Joedwi sy} aonpal
0} pasn aq os|e pjnom Buipuny [euoiISUBl} SIY| "USYELISPUN S| 8SI019Xa UOIJE}NSU0D
B JS|Iym Joddns jo uoienuijuod sy} a|geus 0} paylewles usaq sey Buipuny [euolisued)
usyelspun 10 Y00¢€3 juelb oy10ads JUBSWUIBAOS) 8y} JO uolenunluodsip ayj Buimolo) (puny aieyspn)
(1zg) (1zg) 8q 0} IS - A pun4 asuejsissy Aouabisw3 uopuimg Joy Buipuny 196png aseq Jo uonjessad pasodoid
N/A épadinbay
juedeA |pajiid 000.3 000.3 000.3 uonejnsuon lesodo.d
91-5102 10} gLoc vioz
pasodo.d Arenuqoa Jaquiaosa(g
(s314) 91-S510Z | sobueyn | ui pasodoid | ul pasodoud
suonajeq 3sod |ejol abueyo abueyo

P10  xipuaddy

S901N0S9y pue 9jelodio) - ealy 92IAI9S

(S10Z Ateniqgaj

pue 11,02 Joquada ul pasodoid sebueyd) sjesodoid pajiejaq - 3obpng 91-G 102

Page 41



00 00 002 0 (02) sjesodoud j96png 91-G10Z [ejoL
00 00 (02) 0 (02) ¥1-20-¥0 J2uiqed Aq paroidde aq o} sjesodoud jo |ejo|
(0€) (0¢g) N uoNQIU0D 81j0d - gnH d13ud) umo| Aouaby-BIn
(siaqunu aA3ebau) sbuiaes |edn3oe] 1aylo
3]IS VD 9y} 0] payul| Jodaq episialepn 1e ouled; builbeuew Buipnjoul 0}e Ajejes
o€ 0¢ 9 U)|eay JO swia) Ul syuawalinbal uone|siba) pue a21AIaS J9aW 0} S1S09 A}LINDaS [BuolIpPY
saljiadold pIOA 1o} S3S02 HANN
(02) (02) pue aWwooul [Bjudl JO SSO| YIM PaJeIdosSe Y0 /3 01 Y00GF Wol) ainssald 1S00 Ul uononpay
(s1aquinu aAnisod) sainssaldd 1S09)
(1144 panoidde Ajsnoinaid sjesodoiyq
N/A épadinbay
juedep |pajiid 000.3 000.3 000.3 uone}nsuo lesodoid
91-G10Z 10} S1L02 v10z
pasodoud Aieniqaqy Jlaquiadaq
(s314) 91-51L0Z | sobueyn | ui pasodoid | ul pasodouid
suol}a|aqg 3sod |eyoL abueyn abueyn

P10  xipuaddy

S}oSSY pUE S||D|S 'AWoU0d] - Baly 9dIAIoS

(S10z Arenigad
pue 11,02 Joquada ul pasodoid sebueyd) sjesodoid pajiejaq - 3obpng 91-G 102

Page 42



899yl L0S €8Y°'LE 0.2°96 Sev'l €86 S1/20/v0 3dulqe)
0
_ . 10BJJU0D By} Jo} 9|gisuodsal eale Alanlag
0 besl (leg'h) 92IAI9S U}IM Joe1ju0D 3)sem 1o} }1bpnq jo Auswubijeay
0 (01) ol sbuines JeaA-ul Jayuny Jo uoneosluap|
0 662 861 (9¥S) 6¥ sjebpnq 90IA18S 0} N0 PalIA pieme Aed
ainyn) % ainsla ‘salelqi] JO peaH Jo Juswall}al
0 (eg1) 6v €0l 3y} 0} @np SuUOI}oUN} SSOIOE SBIIAISS JO UOIeI0||e-aY
(cp) 0dsS 0} Yoeq saoiniag ejde)
0 eV ey JO Jajsuel} ay} 109|}a1 0} panow sj}abpng jeuonippy
() (ov) a4 S92IAIBS ss0uoe Ss}abpnq Buiyels-uou uo Jajsuel |
0 6L1) 61) g¢cl s90IAI9s SS0Joe S19bpnq Bulyels Jo Jaysuel |
SJusWali\ MaN
899yl L0S 166°GE 28096 1526 1€8 vLiZLI0l yduiqe)d
000.3 000.3 000.3 000.3 000.3 000.3
pung pung ojelsodion 9A1}ND9X T
|esduan |ejo] |Aouabunuon |Aiaalj@ag |Buluolissiwwos) |@ s92i1n0sdy (Jo1YH

G xipuaddy

J10dal }se| 9y} 92UIS SJUBWBAO - GL-10Z SIUSWAIIA

Page 43



This page is intentionally left blank

Page 44



Appendix 6

Budget Consultation - National Non-Domestic Ratepayers

Background

Under Section 65 of the Local Government Finance Act 1992 Swindon Council has a
duty to consult with representatives of Non-Domestic Ratepayers about its proposals
for expenditure. ("Non-Domestic Ratepayers" include not only industrial and
commercial undertakings, but also certain educational and/or health care institutions
and non-profit making organisations.)

The Public Notice was placed in the Swindon Evening Advertiser on 8" January
2015 seeking comments from the public. A notice and information was also
available on the Council website from 6™ January 2015. A meeting was arranged for
Wednesday, 28" January at 9.00 a.m. at the Civic Offices to which 166
representative from 122 businesses were invited. A link to publically available
agenda papers that included the Budget Management 2014/15 and Budget 2015/16
report submitted to Cabinet on 10" December 2014 was included in the invitation.

The minutes of the meeting held on 28" January 2015 are attached as an annex to
this Appendix. Apologies were received from Councillor Peter Watts, Jean Wilson
(Innovate UK), Matt Moore (Science Museum), Caroline McBeth (Hochtief), Paul
Jenkins (Thamesdown Transport), Les Durrant (Development Planning Design
Services Consulting), Richard Lay (Lay Holdings Group), Craig Shuttleworth
(Debenhams), Elizabeth Rhodes (English Heritage). Unfortunately, due to
unforeseen circumstances, Mr Martin Draper (Zurich Insurance) who sought to
attend was unable to do so. No further comments were received.

Page 45



This page is intentionally left blank

Page 46



BUDGET CONSULTATION - NATIONAL NON-DOMESTIC RATEPAYERS

WEDNESDAY, 28 JANUARY 2015

PRESENT:- Councillor David Renard (Chair and Leader of the Council) and
Councillor Russell Holland (Cabinet member for Finance).

Swindon Borough Council: Stuart McKellar (Board Director Resources).

Apologies for absence were received from Councillor Peter Watts, Martin Draper
(Zurich Insurance), Jean Wilson (Innovate UK), Matt Moore (Science Museum),
Caroline McBeth (Hochtief), Paul Jenkins (Thamesdown Transport), Les Durrant
(Development Planning Design Services Consulting), Richard Lay (Lay Holdings
Group), Craig Shuttleworth (Debenhams), Elizabeth Rhodes (English Heritage).

1. Budget Management 2014-15 and Budget 2015-16
Councillor David Renard, Leader of the Council, opened the Consultation meeting.

It was noted that Under Section 65 of the Local Government Finance Act 1992 the
Council had a duty to consult with representatives of Non-Domestic Ratepayers
about its proposals for expenditure. The Council had set out to achieve this by way
of (a) a Public Notice placed in the Swindon Evening Advertiser on 8th January
2015, (b) a similar notice and information being placed on the Council’'s website
from 6th January 2015, and (c) arrangements being made for this meeting to which
166 representative from 122 businesses had been invited.

The Chair noted that a link to the publically available agenda papers that included
the Budget Management 2014/15 and Budget 2015/16 reports submitted to the
Cabinet on 10th December 2014 and that included the Cabinet’'s Budget proposals
had been included in the invitation.

It was noted that no responses or submissions had been received to date. It was
agreed that any comments or submissions that were received from the business
community prior to the Cabinet meeting on 4" February 2015 would be reported at
that meeting.

Page 47



This page is intentionally left blank

Page 48



‘Aem s1yj ul }36pnq jenuue ay} poddns 0} saalasal o119ads Jo uoiuodoud jueolyiubis
e Buisn puswwooal Jou a10j218Y} P|NOM S32IN0S3Y 1030311 pleog 8y ‘9|geulelsnsun Ajbuisealoul syjabpng sieak ainjny
ayew pue }26png [enuue ay} UIYIM XSl JO |9AS] 8y} 8Sealdul P|NOM SIY} ‘JIOASMOH 9% | Aq paonpal aq p|nod Jeak |eloueuly
Jey} Jo} asealoul Xe] |1ouno) ay) 186png ay} aouejeq djay o0} 8ainos Buipuny e se }2bpng anuanal ay} ojul yoeq jybnouq
w/ 03 AJana 10} ‘@ininy Ul SBAISSAI JO S|DAS| JBMO| POy 0} SpIoap |IDUN0) 3y} pinoys “(9%8°0 PUNOJe JO SUIN}aJ JUSWI]SSAUI
Buiwnsse) wnuue Jad YZL£3 punole JO }saldjul JuswisaAul Buinioode si |1Duno) ay) ‘saalasal asayy Buipjoy Ag ‘pung
[elouag) ay} poddns WEEF YOIym JO ‘S9AISSal JO WIEGF punote Buipjoy aq 0} sjoadxa |1ouno) ay} ‘9L/51L0Z JO Hels ayl Ag

"Spasu pue sysl Jo MalAal ybnoioy) e Buimo|jo) paysijgelse uaaq aAey 8say| SjusW}WwWod
alnin} pue sysu Aey woddns 0} saAlasal oloads Jo Jaquinu e Buipjoy SI [IDUNOD 8y} ‘SAIasay |elauss) ay) apisbuoly

‘sleah xis Jse| ay) Joj 16png uIyim seolAlas s) BullsAljap [1IoUNo) 8y} JO 1X8JU0D 8y} Ul SI SIY| W93 SI
196png 91/G10Z @Y} woddns 0} pjoy O} SPasU |IOUN0Y BY} SSAISSDY [BIBUSL) JO [9AS] WNWIUIW 8Y} By} popuUsWILLIODal SI )|
SoAlesay

196png 91/5102 s¥ woddns 0} wg 0F J0 puny Aouabuiuod jesauab 6png aseq e sey |1Duno) ay |
sapuabunuo)

sue|d oibajel)s 0] UoiNQUIUOYD) e

saljienba uo joedw| e

uonejuasws|dwi jo Axajdwo) e

92IAISS UO Joedw| e
:Ajldweu ‘siojoey Jo Jaquinu e
Jsuiebe passasse ysii Ajjenpialpul usaq sey 9|oAo Buipss 196png ay; Jo Jed se piemios Ind sjesodoud sbuines ay) Jo yoeg
JUSWISSaSSY Ysiy

‘sueaw Jo Jaqwinu e Buisn sysil asayj buibeuew si 1ouno) ay] "sabueyd aininy uo yiom awnd-dwnd 0} spuny
1o} paau |enjuajod ay} jo 10adsal ul Ajpuooas pue sbuines Jo6pnq Bulobuo ay) Jaalep 0} palinbal sabueyd |euoijewlojsuel)
ay} jo awos jo Auxsdwod sy} 0} uonedl ul yjoq ale sysu asay] ‘sabueyd paddels pauueld sy} JoAlBp 0}
Ajoeded s [1ouno) ay} 0} uoljejal ul sysu way} yum Buliq pasaniep buiaq sbuines jo sjeds ay} pue [1ouno?) ay} je abueyo
JOo @oed 8y -uleljs shopuawal} Japun Ss[IDUNO0Y |ed0| Jo sadueuly ay} Bund ase sainseaw Ajusisne |euoljeu usym
awi} e }e eale |Bo0| a8y} anoidwi pue sadlAIas Bulwlojsuel) anuijuod o} suejd yum [1ouno) snoiique AIoA e SI Uopuims

Ao1j04 sonlasay

J Xipuaddy

Page 49



sleak ma) xau ayj ul (wg ¢3F) dJom uonesauabal puny 0}
pasealoul usaq Ajojelaqiiap aAey eyl (wz'|3) saAalasal oi1oads pue (wg L3) [elauab yjoq bunuasaidal saouejeg YyH JO w93

(W 3) 8nIBsal ©S(Q paulelal s|ooyos
-uou ay} pue (w/3) sedoueleq pJemio}-pa||ol ,S|00YDS [eNpPIAIPUI ||e JO |B}0} paulquiod 8y} Bunjuasaidal seoueleq s|ooyos Jo wg3

(Wyp3) sSpund 1200

sj09loid papIwwod 104

payJew.es 10 Buipuny) [euUISIXS WO} padueUl; USYO SaAIasal O1j108ds-20IAI8S Ja||ewsS JO Jaquinu v/ | W 'Z3 18y10
uonensIuILPY
sydisoal gQ| uonoag wols papuny syosloid ay) BullsAligp wes) ay) punyo| | w03 90} uonoasg

swniwsa.d ul uoionpal

weoniubis e Aq 1osyo sem yoiym Buipuni-§|as Jo s|ana| Jaybiy pue asnoy-ui yoeq SOS buibulq
YHM pajeloosse sallljigel] pasealdoul 8y} 109)jal 0} €10 Ul pasealoul sem }| "1eak jeioueuly Aue

ul AJjiqel) ssaoxa ajebalbbe ay) 901m) Bullano9 JO |9A8] plepuels Aljsnpul ue Je 18s si puny siy| | We3 pun4 asuelinsuj

-:MO|a( }NO 189S SaAIasal o1j10ads 80IAI8S JO W93

‘Al1ea sbuines j196png s eak aininy Alaniep o0y ABajelys Bulob-uo s [1ouno) ayy ybnolyy pajeald usaq sey buipun) anlasal

sIy] 938 (wgz3) buipuny Buideysal aoinles || ‘(wz3) noyaq sjeaddy sajey ssauisng ‘(WEF) S1ajsuel) }9SSe J09) pue uoljealoay
ay} se yons sbuines 91-GL0z 2y} swud-dwnd o} Jauiqe) Aq panoidde Apealje sjuswiuwod snid ‘S}S0d 90UBISASS 10}

weg3 se yons ‘uoneyuswajdwi sbuines s eah ainyny 1oy Buipuny sapnjoul siy| “sjesodoud 126png 91-G1.0Z @43 4o Alanap poddns
0] pasn sem w3 Jey} Bunou ‘s}ebpnq sieah aininy Janldap 0} ¥lom Jo sswwelboid puny 0} sanlasal Buimojs yseo Jo wGLF

“JUBWIUIBA0L) 8y} Aq panss! (WgZ $3) shuog SSWOH MaN
pue juels) Alanljeq Buluueld ay) wouy Ajurew paoinos usaq sey yoiym ‘Buipuny uonelsusbal pue ainjoniseljul 0} sajejal wgF

"(8MO]S|BYDINNA JO BSeD
3y} Ul ‘a1049q [1oM) 3y s 10sloid yoeas jo pus ay} Aq pajsjdap Ajny aq |m pue joaloid yoes Jo smoj) yseo Alieah ayy uo Buipuadep
ajenjony|j sanlasal asay| "s}oaloid (WG3) |4d pue (WG3) amols|aydipA Jolew ay) mojy ysed 0} swns paosuay-bull o) sajeal wigL3

(WeE3) pund [e1ausn

-’lenoidde pue uoljeIapISUOD 10) [BWIOU SB JBSA |BlouBUl{ }Xau 8y} ul Ajjes
Joulged 0} xoeq Jybnoliq a9 [|Im s|ie}ap |IN4 "MO[Sq pasliewiwns si 91-GL0Z Ul Py 8q 0} pajoadxa weG3 syl "uonisod
saniasal piemuopybielys aiow e apinosd 0} pasodosd aq |im sadueeq ay} jo Auew jo uoljewebjewe pue pamalral
Buiaqg si saoInles poddns 0} sieaA Juadal ul paysi|ge)ss SaAIasal JO Jaquinu 8y} SJUN0d2e GL/yL0Z 3y} Buisol jo ped sy

J Xipuaddy

Page 50



2015-16 Members Allowances Appendix 8
ALLOWANCES APPLYING TO ALL COUNCIL MEMBERS

The Council at its meeting on 6™ November 2014 agreed to support the
recommendations of the Council’'s Independent Remuneration Panel on Councillors’
Allowances that the level of Councillors’ Basic and Special Responsibility Allowances
for 2015/16 should be indexed linked to the percentage increase in pay awarded to
local authority staff nationally in the 2014/15 Pay Round, it being recognised that this
was still to be agreed. (Minute 54(2) of the Council refers). The award subsequently
agreed nationally equated to an overall pay increase of 2.2%.The effect of this
increase for Councillors Allowances in 2015/16 rounded to the nearest pound is set
out below:

Basic Allowance*

(a) Basic Allowance is intended to recognise the time devoted by Councillors to
their work, including approved duties, Council meetings and such inevitable
calls on their time as meetings with Constituents, and incidental costs for
which no other provision is available.

(b)  The Basic Allowance for each member will be £7,880 for 2015/16.

ALLOWANCES APPLYING TO CERTAIN COUNCIL MEMBERS AND
CO-OPTED NON-ELECTED MEMBERS

Special Responsibility Allowances*

For each year a Special Responsibility Allowance shall be paid to those Councillors
who hold special responsibilities in relation to the work of the Council. Only one
Special Responsibility Allowance is payable. If a Councillor is appointed to more than
one position where a Special Responsibility Allowance is payable, then the larger of
the allowances will be paid. The Council has agreed that the following Special
Responsibility Allowances will be payable in the 2015/16 Municipal Year.

Type of Allowance Allowance
Leader of the Council £20,107
Deputy Leader of the Council £11,956
Cabinet Member £10,053
Chair of Audit £4 347
Chair of Overview £3,804
Chair of Scrutiny and Leader of the Opposition £10,053
Chair of Scrutiny if not | eader of the Opposition £5,038
Chair of Planning £6,521
Leader of the Opposition if not Chair of Scrutiny £4,773
Leader of Minority Group £1,630
Chair of Licensing £4 347
Licensing Committee Members £1,086
Chair of Standards £4 347
Co-opted Standards Members / Independent £1,022
Persons

Chair of Joint Swindon and Wiltshire Police and £5,037
Crime Panel if a Swindon Councillor

Vice-Chair of Joint Swindon and Wiltshire Police £2 555.
and Crime Panel if a Swindon Councillor

Page 51



This page is intentionally left blank

Page 52



Appendix 9
MEDIUM TERM FINANCIAL STRATEGY 2015 - 2020

1 Background and Scope

1.1 In common with all local authorities, Swindon Borough Council is facing
unprecedented pressures on its resources due to a combination of increasing
demands for services and cumulative reductions in Government funding as part
of the Coalition Government’s response to the national funding deficit. The 2014
Autumn Statement and its accompanying forward projections confirmed that this
position is set to remain in place at least until 2019/20.

1.2  The Council has, to date, been successful in responding to the financial
challenges it has faced. Expenditure each year has been contained within the
approved budget, while spending reductions that have had to be implemented
have largely protected key front line services. However, against a backdrop of
savings totalling £100m over the past 7 years (including those for 2015-16), it is
becoming increasingly difficult to identify options to ensure a sustainable
spending position over the medium-term that reflects the level of resources that
will be available.

1.3  Over 80% of recent years’ savings have been achieved through reducing the cost
of services with no discernible impact on service users. A particular focus has
been on reducing back office and management costs. Within this, the number of
staff employed in corporate support services was 44% lower in 2014 than in
2006. While increasing the efficiency of current services will need to remain an
element of any future financial strategy, there is now significantly less scope to
pursue this as a major element. For this reason, the Council has changed its
focus to resourcing a smaller number of more strategic programmes, aimed at
taking a more transformational approach to changing service delivery.

1.4  The purpose of this Medium Term Financial Strategy (MTFS) is to set out the key
financial management principles, budget assumptions, corporate and service
issues and an outline strategy to address the funding deficit. It is used as the
framework for the detailed budget setting process to ensure that resources are
managed effectively in order to deliver the aspirations of the Council and its
agreed priorities as set out in the Corporate Strategy;

Work with residents to create well cared for neighbourhoods

Right skills, right jobs, in the right places

Together, find new ways to reduce vulnerability and improve health for all
Work with people and families to help them fulfil their potential

Consistently make the best use of all available resources and focus them on
what matters most

1.5 The MTFS and the annual budget process have close links to the corporate
planning process that ensures Business Plan activities for all services relate to
the Corporate Strategy priorities and reflect available budgets. Arrangements are
being put in place to ensure that service planning, financial planning and
performance monitoring arrangements are fully integrated and informing future
workforce development plans, to ensure that the Council is considering the use of
all resources (not just financial), in delivering its priorities.

Page 53



1.6

1.7

The MTFS focuses primarily on the General Fund Revenue Account, which
records the majority of the expenditure and income relating to the day to day
running costs of the Council and is the element of the Council’s budget that is
partly funded by Council Tax. Reference is made to investment in assets, which
is classed as capital expenditure, since any additional borrowing required to fund
such expenditure needs to be financed from the General Fund Revenue Account.

The Housing Revenue Account, which records income and expenditure relating
to tenants in the Council’s houses, is ring-fenced from the rest of the Council’s
finances and has its own financial strategy, which is part of a 30 year business
plan.

2 Forecast Resources

21

2.2

2.3

24

2.5

The main income sources for the General Fund Revenue Account are
Government Grant (Formula Grant and specific grants) and Council Tax. Related
to the former, local authorities have the opportunity to benefit from increases in
Business Rates income in future years, as explained below.

Government Grant

New funding arrangements for local authorities were introduced by the Coalition
Government from April 2013. From this point onwards, Formula Grant levels (the
general grant support provided to local authorities) will no longer be changed
each year to reflect movements in demographic and socio-economic profiles of
individual areas. Instead, the proportion of overall general grant provided to
individual authorities is expected to remain constant until around 2020, with any
changes to individual Formula Grant allocations simply reflecting the change to
the national level of grant determined by the Government. This represents a
particular challenge for growing areas such as Swindon, as population growth will
no longer be taken into account in the resources received.

The new system does, however, include an element of ‘Localisation of Business
Rates’. Local authorities are able to retain a share of the net increase in income
that they receive in Business Rates, to provide funding to meet additional costs of
service provision. Retained Business Rates income for individual areas is subject
either to a tariff or a levy on any Business Rate growth that may be achieved
(both annually increased by inflation). The level of tariffs and levies is unique to
each local authority. As a tariff authority, Swindon Borough Council receives
£0.28p for every £1 increase in Business Rates receivable.

While the new system removes some of the unpredictability in previous grant
funding mechanisms, it introduces a number of new risks. The level of change in
the overall rateable value is proving impossible for local authorities to predict with
any degree of accuracy, due to the scale of changes in exemptions and reliefs
claimed by landlords due to different property usage and, most particularly, the
number and scale of successful Business Rate appeals. It is expected that the
level of volatility will reduce in future years as the historic backlog of appeals is
reduced by the Valuation Office Agency.

A further challenge is changes made by the Government each year to specific

grants for particular purposes, outside of the main Formula Grant. Typically a
number of such grants are said to be “rolled into” the Formula Grant each year,

Page 54



2.6

2.7

2.8

2.9

2.10

meaning that like for like comparisons are very difficult to determine. Sometimes
the overall level of Formula Grant is increased to reflect the funding associated
with the former specific grant. Often it is not, meaning that the change is merely
presentational. Since 2011-12, Swindon Borough Council has seen £29m of its
specific grants rolled into the Formula Grant, although the latter has only
increased by £3m, i.e. the net reduction in specific grants has been £26m.

In order to incentivise house building, the Coalition Government introduced the
New Homes Bonus, a grant which matches the level of Council Tax income
payable for each new property for a period of 6 years. It also includes a reward
for bringing empty homes back into use. As a growth area, Swindon has
benefited more than many areas from this grant. It is not universally supported,
as it is felt by many to unfairly reward areas which typically have thriving
economies at the expense of others which have less opportunity to benefit from
growth. Hence, although it has brought welcome additional resources to
Swindon, the Council has been more cautious in previous years than some in
using this grant to support its base revenue expenditure, although plans for 2015-
16 include using £5m of the £6.1m for this purpose.

Council Tax

The level of Council Tax is a matter to be determined by individual local
authorities. Successive Governments have attempted to restrict increases in
Council Tax levels by a variety of means, including capping individual local
authority budgets and offering grants to incentivise Council Tax freezes. Through
such measures, changes in Council Tax levels across the country have become
much more uniform in recent years. Most authorities, including Swindon Borough
Council, have frozen their tax levels since 2010, although an increasing number
have raised tax within the 2% threshold permitted in the past two budget years.

As a result of continuing housing development in the Borough, there is an
expectation that the Council Tax yield will grow each year, regardless of the
decision on the Council Tax level. For planning purposes, an average increase of
800 Band D equivalent properties each year is assumed.

Swindon Borough Council has not yet formally determined the level of its Council
Tax for 2015-16 and subsequent years. For the purposes of this MTFS, a 1%
increase has been assumed for 2015-16, which reflects the equivalent increase
through accepting the freeze grant in recent years. An alternative increase of
1.94% would generate an additional £643k of annual income in 2015-16.

From 2016-17 onwards, in line with many Councils and recognising the
increasing difficulty of balancing the annual Budget, an increase just below the
2% current referendum threshold has been modelled. If Council Tax levels
remain frozen, the cumulative funding gap assuming a tax base increase of 800
per annum increases by an estimated £2.95m over the period to 2019/20. If
growth reverts to 2011-12 levels (1,200 band D equivalent households per
annum), this rises to £3.1m.

Page 55



3 Forecast Expenditure

3.1

3.2

3.3

3.4

3.5

3.6

This section builds on the Council’s current base expenditure level and sets out
the key corporate and service pressures that will need to be addressed over the
MTFS period as a result of significant demographic, legislative and economic
issues.

Inflationary Pressures

The level of inflation has recently fallen below the Government’s target rate of
2%. As aresult, the Council has been able to reduce its provision for inflation
relating to contracts for goods and services in 2015-16 below that in previous
years. With inflation seemingly set to remain at relatively low levels for the
foreseeable future, predicted inflationary cost pressures are now lower than they
have been for many years, but are expected to rise slightly throughout the MTFS
period.

The position on pay inflation is slightly different. After a number of years of zero
or minimal salary cost rises, an increase of 2.2% was agreed for most local
authority staff from 1 January 2015, equivalent to just over 1% per year over the
2014 — 2016 period it covers. In addition, Swindon Borough Council has allowed
a figure of £0.7m in its proposed 2015-16 budget for the cost of incremental
progression, equivalent to a further 1% salary increase overall. Looking beyond
2015-16, an allowance of 2% has been modelled to cover pay inflation and
incremental progression.

Demographic Pressures

Between the 2001 and 2011 censuses, Swindon’s population grew to 209,000,
this 16% increase being the highest in the South West. It is estimated that our
population could increase to 240,000 persons by 2021 and 265,400 by 2031,
equivalent to growth of approximately 14% from 2011 to 2021, and a further 10%
from 2021 to 2031. This increase is significantly higher than that predicted for
England overall.

The age structure of the population is also projected to change, with significantly
higher growth in the older age groups than in the younger groups. This will result
in an increase in the ratio of children and older people to working age people so
that by 2031 for every one person under the age of 16 or aged 65+ there will be
1.5 persons of working age instead of 2 persons of working age in 2011.

The 2 most significant impacts on the Council’s expenditure levels associated
with demographic change are as follows;

a) The underlying costs of providing Adult Social Care services are rising at a
rate of between £3m - £5m per year. Actions have been identified that
have partly mitigated these increases in recent years.

b) The increasing school age population has necessitated Swindon
expanding existing schools and building new schools at a much faster rate
than most local authorities. To date the impact has been at Primary level,
but this is naturally translating into requirements for further Secondary
places over the next few years. With Government grant providing only a

Page 56



3.7

3.8

3.9

3.10

3.11

small proportion of the funding for these facilities, the associated
additional borrowing requirement is creating an annual pressure on the
revenue debt charges budget.

General Pressures

The Council continues to respond to the ever changing national economic and
policy landscape. New legislation, such as the Care Act 2014, regularly means
changes to the services the Council is obliged to deliver, often with insufficient
resources being provided to meet the associated additional costs. A current
example is the change to Local Welfare provision, where the Council needs to
consider whether to continue funding emergency support to individuals as the
funding from the Department for Work and Pensions is set to be withdrawn.
Although it is impossible to predict the specific future legislative changes that will
impact on local authorities, past experience gives a strong indication that
additional costs will regularly arise from such changes that needs to be allowed
for.

The pension fund for Swindon Borough Council employees is administered by
Wiltshire Council. Every three years an Actuary is required to revalue the fund
and adjust the contributions required from councils and other employers in the
scheme to ensure the liabilities of the fund will be fully funded over the long-term.
The reductions in workforce, the increasing age profile of staff and the relatively
low returns from investments in recent years mean that, based on historic
actuarial advice the Council’'s employer contributions could be increasing by
several million pounds each year.

However, in an attempt to avoid large “knee-jerk” increases, on 13th May 2010,
the Wiltshire Pension Fund Committee agreed to put in place a stabilisation policy
which limits increases or decreases in employer contributions to +1 or -1% per
annum from 1 April 2014 onwards. The objective was to stabilise employer
contributions rates over the next 24 years by underpaying in unfavourable market
conditions and overpaying in more favourable times. A 1% increase amounts to just
under £1m for Swindon and, as a result, the annual increases for the MTFS period
have been modelled at £1m per annum and this level of increase is expected to
continue for the foreseeable future.

Swindon is growing, with large new housing developments being constructed in
several parts of the Borough. This is accompanied by additional costs associated
with maintaining new roads and open spaces and expanding universal services
such as waste and recycling collections. The Council clearly benefits from
additional Council Tax from the new properties (and New Homes Bonus, for a
period of time), but no additional Government funding is provided to help meet
such additional costs.

In addition to the need for new schools highlighted in paragraph 3.6, the Council
also needs to fund capital investment associated with its other assets, notably
highways and footways and operational property, plus equipment associated with
enabling individuals to continue to live independently. Government grant is
received for highways maintenance through the Local Transport Plan, which the
Council has chosen to supplement in recent years through additional borrowing.
Most other capital expenditure is unsupported by external resources and is reliant
on Council borrowing or other funds held such as s106 deposits.

Page 57



3.12 Table 1 below sets out the Council’s current net budget, the predicted funding
reductions and expenditure requirements to show the funding gap expected for

the next five years.

Table 1 = MTFS Funding Position

15% Reduction in Formula Grant
Other Grant Reductions

Predicted Grant Funding Reduction
Inflation

Social Care Packages

Pension and Debt Charges

Pay Incremental Progression
Other Cost Pressures

Reduction in Collection Fund Surplus
Less Council Tax Base Growth
Less Council Tax Increase (1.94%)

Predicted Funding Gap
Council Tax Income

Formula Grant ##
Predicted Net Budget

2016-17 2017-18 2018-19 2019-20
£000 £000 £000 £000
8,600 7,100 5,700 4,300
1,400 2,400 3,300 3,400

10,000 9,500 9,000 7,700
4,000 4,000 4,500 4,800
2,500 2,500 2,500 2,500
3,000 2,000 2,000 2,000

700 700 700 700
1,500 1,500 1,500 1,500
800 300 300 300

-1,000 -1,000 -1,000 -1,000

-1,500 -1,500 -1,500 -1,500

20,000 18,000 18,000 17,000

79,985 82,489 85,061 87,701

48,748 41,648 35,948 31,648

128,733 124,137 121,009 119,349

## The Formula Grant predictions are likely to vary from the above figures due to the
likelihood of specific grants being discontinued and some elements being added to it.

Page 58



4 One-off Resources

41

4.2

4.3

4.4

45

The Local Government Act 2003 states that the level of reserves is a matter for
each local authority to determine and they must set a level of reserves in
consideration of the risks and uncertainties that might force them to spend more
on their services than they planned for at the beginning of each financial year.
The Section 151 Officer has a statutory responsibility as well as a duty under the
Council’'s Constitution to advise members on what he/she feels is reasonable as
part of the annual budget setting process. This is particularly important within the
context of the financial challenges currently facing councils and the need to
consider financial sustainability in the years to come.

Sections 26 and 27 of the Act give the Secretary of State power to determine
minimum reserves for local authorities in England by regulation. This has not
been done in recent years but the guideline issued refers to general reserves
being at least 5% of the authority’s net revenue budget. It should be noted that
the current financial context is considerably more challenging than when the
guidance was developed, indicating this figure probably should be higher.
Swindon Borough Council’'s 2014-15 Net Budget is £143m which would suggest
a level of General Reserves of £8.6m to cover unforeseen costs. Through sound
financial management over a number of years, the s151 officer has concluded
that a minimum level of £6m is manageable for Swindon, which has been
accepted by External Audit, with the current balance held being £6m.

In addition to General Reserves, authorities are required to keep specific
reserves to cover known risks and expected costs falling outside of their
budgeted expenditure. For Swindon, the level of reserves is higher than many
similar authorities at £67m, with £15m of these relating to the Housing Revenue
Account and Dedicated Schools Grant and the balance of £52m supporting
General Fund activities.

The Council has deliberately pursued a strategy over recent years of seeking to
maximise such one-off resources, recognising the challenge of responding to
continuing reductions in funding alongside increasing demand for services. This
has been achieved predominantly through early delivery of savings identified for
future year budgets, that have led to underspends by the end of each financial
year. This both gives the Council resilience and cover against any need to take
knee-jerk reactions when unforeseen costs arise and has also allowed significant
pump priming of transformation activities that lead to lower on-going costs.

Table 2 below sets out uses of one-off reserves to support the last 2 years’
revenue budgets, which includes some of the £52m currently held;

Page 59



Table 2 — Recent Use of One-Off Resources

£m On-Going
Saving
Hills Landfill 1.6 | Agreed at Cabinet October 2013 to £630k pa +
Contract Buy-Out enable the Council to benefit from future
lower costs through the SCS Waste surplus on
Plant plant
Leisure/Golf 3.2 | Agreed at Cabinet October 2013 to £1m pa on-
Transfer fund the project and implementation going plus
costs to enable the transfer of backlog
assets to GLL and Twigmarket maintenance
Green Waste 0.5 | Agreed at Cabinet December 2013 £0.9m pa
implementation as part of the introduction of on-going

charging for the new service
Capita Severance 5.0 | Agreed at June 2014 Cabinet as On-going
and IT Reshaping part of insourcing some services £3m pa
Severance Costs 0.6 | Agreed as part of annual Budget Part of
above the £1m pa Reports staffing
base budget saving
Cash flowing 2.0 | Agreed at December Cabinet to On-going
Business Rates allow SBC to benefit from future £1impa+
Appeals growth growth in
2016-17
PFl Top-Up 2.3 | Underspend on debt charges Cost
budget in 2012-13 and 2013-14 avoidance of
redirected into the PFI reserve to £1m pa x
avoid a cost pressure on the 3.5 years

revenue account
15.2

4.6  Specific reserves fall into two categories, although both are earmarked for

specific purposes:-

e Corporate - £37m

e Service Specific - £30m (£15m for General Fund services)

Corporate

4.7  £11m relates to ring-fenced sums to cash flow the major Wichelstowe and PFI
projects. These reserves fluctuate depending on the yearly cash flows of each
project and will be fully depleted by the end of each project’s life (well before, in
the case of Wichelstowe). These sums are not available to be used to
supplement other general expenditure.

4.8 £5m relates to infrastructure and regeneration funding, which has been sourced
mainly from the Planning Delivery Grant and New Homes Bonus issued by the
Government. Much of this funding is currently unallocated and could potentially be
redirected on to other types of local authority expenditure. However, growing the
Swindon economy is a key priority for the Council which is likely to require some up

Page 60




4.9

410

4.1

412

413

414

4.15

4.16

417

front public sector investment, which would be difficult to identify without this funding
being available.

£7m of cash flowing reserves have been established to fund programmes of work to
deliver future years’ budgets. This sum is not yet earmarked for specific activities,
although the value should be considered within the context of the £15m one-off
spend incurred to deliver the last 2 Budget rounds.

£3m for severance costs, against average spend of £1.2m pa over the last 3 years.
Note that the base budget provision for severance is proposed to be removed in
2015-16.

£3m has been set aside to facilitate the leisure and golf transfer to GLL and
Twigmarket.

The remainder is available to support a range of potential or committed costs,
including £2m to cover the anticipated cost of business rates appeals in order than
additional income from business rates growth can be used to support the 2015-16
budget and £1.5m for the Council’s contribution to the Superfast Broadband
Extension programme.

Service Specific

£3.3m relates to the Insurance Fund, which is set at an industry standard level of
covering twice the aggregate excess liability in any financial year. It was increased
in 2013 to reflect the increased liabilities associated with bringing SCS back in-house
and higher levels of self-funding, which was offset by a significant reduction in
premiums.

£2m is to reshape the ICT Infrastructure, as approved by Cabinet in June 2014.

£0.8m is being spent to fund service improvements including pothole repairs, as
approved by Cabinet in determining the 2014-15 budget.

£0.6m is to cover the Council’s payments under the Carbon Reduction Commitment
scheme.

The remainder consists of lower sums earmarked for specific service initiatives,
many of which are due to be spent in the current financial year. All of these sums
will be reviewed by the end of the year to simplify the current arrangements and
determine whether any can be released to supplement corporate reserves.

Page 61



5 Responding Strategies
Core Principles

51 The Council has a number of agreed principles as a basis for financial management
and budget planning, which are set out in the Financial Procedure Rules within the
Council’'s Constitution. The key points are summarised below:

e Budgets and resources should be aligned to key priorities as set out in the
Corporate Strategy;

e Detailed budget estimates reflecting annual service plans should be
developed and future liabilities anticipated, with any proposals that require
additional financial commitments being considered by the Cabinet prior to
being introduced,

e Where overspends or new pressures occur in individual budgets, appropriate
corrective action should be identified and implemented by the relevant senior
officer to ensure that expenditure remains, wherever possible, within the
existing approved cash limit;

e Revenue and capital budget planning should be fully integrated and no capital
scheme should progress unless all required finance and other approvals have
been obtained and the scheme is formally included in the capital programme.

Budget Planning Approaches

5.2  The Council has adopted the Stronger Together vision that sets out a new way of
working for and with local people. In this, the strands of commissioning and joined
up service delivery are both closely linked to a more localised approach to
engagement and co-creation with residents, voluntary sector providers and other
partners. No single approach is, however, capable of ensuring that the Council
maintains a sustainable financial position over the medium term. A number of
different strands will therefore be pursued in parallel, as follows;

a) Cost reduction — a continuing drive to reduce all costs associated with the
Council through systematically reviewing the justification and cost
effectiveness of all current budgets and focusing procurement resources on
large and medium sized contracts, to identify opportunities for cost reduction
to obtain the best price. This strand is expected to diminish in the years
ahead, given the significant focus on efficiency savings over the past 5 — 10
years;

b)  Asset rationalisation — ensure that premises overhead costs are kept to a
minimum by optimising the number of different buildings used by the Council
and its partners across the Borough, realising the potential for joint use as
much as possible and disposing of assets not needed for operational or
investment purposes;

c) Alternative service delivery models — consideration of whether other current
organisations, such as Parish Councils, voluntary organisations, community
groups, private companies or entirely new organisations can take on delivery
of current Council services. A localised approach to service delivery was

Page 62



acknowledged as a key strand in the Stronger Together objective of stemming
the increasing demand on public services, which is being manifested in the
changing role of Localities to focus on the key pressure area of social care;

Strategic commissioning — a focus on what outcomes are most desirable for
Swindon residents and exploration without preconceptions of the role that the
Council can best play in order to secure these, with or without direct
involvement. This approach is expected to provide the evidence base to
direct the Council’s resources towards those activities which have the greatest
impact on outcomes and, consequently, to justify withdrawing from those that
have the least impact;

New income generation — adopting commercial practices to better understand
both our current and potential future customers and the supply markets that
they and the Council on their behalf use to fulfil service needs, in order to
identify opportunities to maximise current and realise new income streams.
Evidence nationally is that local authority income from fees and charges has
fallen since 2010, hence the particular focus of this workstream is expected to
be on maximising the potential of the Council’s new opportunity to benefit from
business rate growth;

Develop its borrowing and Treasury management strategy to ensure the
optimum approach to strategic corporate financing, reducing borrowing costs
where possible and identifying opportunities to improve returns on the
Council’s cash resources, recognising the prime aim needs to be security of
sums invested.

Optimising Use of Resources

5.3  The following general principles should be applied in determining the most
appropriate use of financial resources;

a)

b)

The use of specific grant funding should be managed to ensure that it does
not lead to on-going revenue budget pressures if / when the grant is
subsequently withdrawn;

Service specific reserves should be used for the specific one-off purposes for
which they have been created, which should align with the agreed corporate
priorities;

Corporate reserves should be used to pump prime programmes or activities
that will help ensure a more sustainable financial position is reached over the
medium-term rather than as a primary method of covering on-going pressures
in the budget;

Further borrowing for capital expenditure purposes should be focussed on
statutory or essential items for which no or insufficient grant or other funding is
available or to support schemes that will secure a satisfactory financial return
for the Council over time;

Page 63



5.4

5.5

Engagement and Lobbying

There are increasing examples of local authorities taking very different approaches
to engage with local residents around the scale of their challenges and the choices
they face. This was a key part of the Stronger Together intent and is an area which
the Council will develop further as work progresses towards highlighting different
options for its future year budgets. Creating a dialogue about alternative ways to
reshape, deliver and access services will best ensure that delivery of the Council’'s
priorities is achieved in ways that best secure the outcomes that local people most
value as individuals and communities.

With the local government funding system being effectively frozen for the
foreseeable future, the Council will focus its lobbying efforts on maximising the
funding and partnering opportunities associated with being a high growth area,
building on the success of our recent Local Growth Fund allocation. We will seek
opportunities to work, both formally and informally, with similar authorities who face
the same challenge. This will include seeking recognition of the additional burden
high growth areas face around education provision in particular as well as more
generally as a consequence of a rapidly ageing population. Looking specifically at
Swindon, we will see government support to help remove the limitation on wider
economic growth resulting from its relatively underperforming town centre.

Page 64



uojybnoipn
ybBnoisoquepp "Sjuspisal |B20| WoJ) s}dadald yslied 40 uoioa|od ayj Ag Joj pied ale pue
josebuepy 3s uopens SaAjasWay] s[1ouno) ysued Ag papiaold alse suig 6oq ‘ybnolog ay; jo seale Jayjo uj
uojBbuippi
yuomybiH ‘Aluo ease paysiied-uou sy} ul siehed-xe} Aq suloqg aq pjnoys
YOI uophAeH S)S02 8y} aJ10jaI8y]  AjUO UMO} By} JO Bale payslied-uou ay} ul 1ounod ybnolog 000953
uopjasiyy ay} Aq papinoid aq ||im suig 6o jeuy) si s|Iouno Yslied Yim juswasbuelle ay | SNIg ©90d
"sjuapIsal [Boo| woly sjdadald ysiied JO uoijos||oo sy} Aq o) pied aie pue saAjesway)
s|1ouno) ysued Aq papiaold ale sanua) Ajunwwo) ‘ybnolog ayj jo seale Jayjo uj
"z Xipuaddy ul uaalb ale sanua) asay} JNoge S|ie}sp alow
- M3INB|0D puk ByJAN e papiroid sasua) Ajunwwo) ay} ale sy} 0} suondaoxs ay |
uojybnoupp ‘'saJjuao Ajlunwwoo ‘Aluo eale paysiied-uou ayj ul sieked-xe} Aq auloq aq pjnoys S}so9 8y} alojaiay | 6.2'8L13
josebiepy 3s uopens se asn 1o} sbuipjing| AjuioiA sjeipawiwi ay} ul ajdoad jiyeuaq Ajjelauab pue umoy sy} jo eale paysied-uou SIYINID
uojsiey ynog| dinbs pue apiroid 0} 1amod ayj ul aJe |1puno) ybnolog uopuims Ag papinoid ale jey; sasjuad Ajunwiwo? JSo ALINNININOD
uojybnoipn
ybnoioquepp
josebiepy 3s uopens
uaiiemzyi4 uojuels sjuapisal |eo0] wolj sydadald yslied Jo uoios|joo ay} Aq Joj pied aie pue saAjasway)
uojsie| yinos s|louno) ysued Aq papinoid ale siayays sng ‘ybnolog auyj Jo seale Jayjo uj
yuomybiy
YOIAN UopAeH ‘Aluo ease payslied-uou ay} ul siehed-xe) Aq suloqg aq pjnoys
uopjasiyo 'sI8)|ays snq uiejuiew S]S00 8y} aJ0jalayl AjUO umo) 8y} jo eale payslied-uou ayj ul 1Iouno) ybnoliog 0LS‘ZL3
auojsdoysig pue apirold 0} Jamod ayy Agq papinolid aq |im sI8}ays sNq Jeyi S S|Iouno) yslied yim uswabuese ayl | s¥Y3113IHS SNg
uojybnoip
ybnoisoquepp ‘paysnesun "Sjuspisal |B20| WoJ) sjdadald yslied 40 uoioa|od ayj Ag Joj pied ale pue

josebiepy 3s uopens
uojsie| yynos

puewsp Ji suspieb
Juswioje apiaoid 03 Aing

SaAjasWaY) s|1ouno) ysiied Aq pepiaoid aie syuswioljje ‘ybnolog sy} Jo seale Jayjo uj

Y2IM uopAeH "Ajuo umo} ay} jJo eale paysled-uou
yuomybiH "Sjuswioje ay} ul siakedxe) Aq auloq 8q p|NOYS S}SOD 8y} 210818y "UOPUIMS JO eale paysled ovv'ev3
auojsdoysig apinoid 0} Jamod -uou ay} ul (suspJteb ainsia) syuawiofy sapiaoid Ajuo 1ouno) ybnoiog uopuimsg SININLOTIV
91L02/51L02
ul sa21AI9g apinoad S3921AI9s apinoad 0}
M yoiym saysued| Ajuoyiny jo Ajngamod asuadx3 |eloadg e se pabieys Buiaq 10} uoseay RIVVETS

eQ| xipuaddy

9102 / S1L0Z ui sosuadx3 |e1oadg se pabieys aq 0} pasodoad sway|

Page 65



uojybnoipn
ybBnoidoquepp
jalebae 3s uonens
uojsiel\ yynos
uojBuippi
yuomybiH

%9IM uopAeH
uopjasiyo
uopsun|g
auoj)sdoysig

"MOYS
Aue 1oy uonnyysul/Aiieyo
olgnd Aue 0} swes ay)

Jo asn jueub pue oignd ay}
0] spuno.b ainses|dyed
8S0|9 0} Jamod

‘spunoib ainses|d

10 sylem 21ignd ajenbal

0] Sme|aAq a)ew 0} Jamod
‘'spunoib

alnses|d 1o syjem 2ignd

se pasn Buiaq Joj spue)
anoidwi pue jue|d ases| uo
aye} Jo aseyoind 0} Jamod —
spunolb ainsea|d pue syied

V 8|Npayos 98s UoIjewWIoUl pa|ie}ap 1o

NOILVIHOFA

uojybnoipn
ybBnoioquepp
jalebaey 3s uonens
uaiiemzyi4 uojuels
uojsiel\ yynos
yuomybiH

%9IM uopAeH
uopjasiyy
auoj)sdoysig

‘'saoeds suado Jo joadsal
ur smejAq axew pue saoeds
uado ulejulew 0} Jamod

‘loJuod
pue juswabeuew ‘aled
S}l @Yeuapun pue aoeds

uado aJinboe 0} Jamod

V 8|Npayos 98s UoIjewWIOUI pa|ie}ap 1o

(uonealosoy
‘lout)  000°‘0¥.3
S320VdS N3dO

9102/5102
ul s391A19g apinoad

1M YaIym saysiieqd

S991A13S apinoid 0}
Aoyiny jo Aingramod

asuadx3 |e1oadg e se pabieyds Buiaq 10} uoseay

CRITNETS

eQ| xipuaddy

Page 66



Special Expenses 2015-16 - Open Spaces

Appendix 10b

Location

Previously listed as:-

Angel Ridge

Camden Close Grange Park

Eastleaze Field

Play Area

Folly Field.

Freshbrook Field

Greendown Field

Bess Road Play Area

Greendown Plantation

Hayland Copse

Hay Lane Copse

Hesketh Crescent Play Area

Horseshoe Crescent

Kiln Field

Langstone Way

Liden Green

Liden Parkway

Mayenden Field

Mead Field Freshbrook

Okus Wood

Plough Furlong

Nine Elms

Royal Mead

Sandringham Rd Open space

Shanhill Field Freshbrook

Snodshill Park Eldene

Sparcells Farm Field

Toothill Parkway

Toothill Park

Turnpike Field Freshbrook

White Edge Moor Play Area

Whitehill Field

Wick Lane, Liden

Wick Lane Play Areas

Withymead Field

The Chesters

Page 67



Special Expenses 2015-16 — Recreation

Appendix 10b

Location

Previously listed as:

Alanbrook Crescent Play Area

Alton Close Play Area

Barnum Court Play Area

Deaves Court

Broad Green Play Area

Cambria Bridge Rec Ground

Churchward Park

Penzance Drive under open spaces

Clay Hill Play Area

Clay Pit Park

Collingsmead Play Area

Concord Drive

Edinburgh St Rec Ground

EIm Ridge Play Area

Euclid St Recreation Ground

Godolphin Close Play Area

Guildford Avenue Open Space

Hay Lane Grange Park

Huntley Close Play Area

Iffley Road Open Space

Lordsmith Green Play Area

Minety Road Play Area

Munro Close Play Area

Nine Elms Play Area

Oliver Close Play Area

Pembroke Park Play Area

Penhill Park Play Area

Pinehurst West Play Area

Quarry Road Rec Ground

Rodbourne Recreation Ground

Savenake Street Play Area

Spring Gardens Rec Ground

The Circle

The Holbeins Play Area

The Park, Faringdon Road

The Quarries

Uxbridge Close Play Area

Walcot West Play Area

Eastern Avenue Play Area

Westcott Recreation Ground

Wilcox Close

Wills Avenue Play Area

Page 68



uojybnoupp "$8J3U82 AJUNWWOD se asn Joj|  awos Jo} (sebleyd aoueusjuiew pue sajel SIYINID
“asebaey )s uopenys ‘yuomybiH|  sbBuipiing dinba pue apiroid 0} Iamod|  Se yons) S}S09 [BWIUIW SINDUI [I9UNOYD 8y | ALINNININOD
‘asuadx3 |eroadg
B Jou pue |eJausab e se auloq aq 0} anunRUOD
jaleBuey 3s uopesyg| "sanIoe} JAY0 puUB 8oUaI8JU0D BpiAoid pINOYS 2104219y} 1S00 3} ‘UOPUIMS Ul SalLNIoOv4
‘ypomybiH ‘HoIAn uopAeH ‘auolsdoysig pue siojisiA abelnoous 0} Jamod| Sjuspisal ||e 0} 9|qe|leA. aJe salji|loe} 9say | JONIYI4ANOID
‘asn |esauab Joj aie seale
jaJieBiepy 3S uopens '$)00]0 21jgnd apiacid 0} Jamod paystied-uou ay} ul papirosd s¥00|0 ay | SM2019
‘leliajew Jou 21oyaIay} pue snuwiuiw
Josebiep ap, se papJlebal aq }I ey} paysabbns
}S uopens ‘ypomybiH ‘NIM uopAeH 'sooeds uadQ SI )1 ‘|lews S| }s09 8y} Se jng ‘uoljeoo|
ay} 0} pabueyd aq pjnoys smejahq ayj dn
jaJebiepy Buimelp Jo 1800 ay] "suoneso| paysied-uou
1S uopens ‘yuomybiH ‘YoIA uopheH 'spunoub jeung| pue paysiied yioq Joj paiedaid aie |19uno)
"0} spunoib ainses|d| ybnoiog ay} Ag paumo spuno.b uonesiosl
jo1ebuepy 1S uopess YoIp uopheH 0} psebal ur smejaAq axew 0} Jamod pue aoeds uado Bunosye se mejahg SMV13Ag
joseBiely }S uojpes)S ‘ualiemzyi4
uojuejs ‘uojsiely ynos ‘ypomybiH " SNWIUIW 8p, 8¢ 0} paIapISu0d
‘uopjasiyy ‘uopsunig ‘auojsdoysig "spunolb [eling ulejuiew o0} Jamod S| PaA|OAUI ASUOW JO Junowe ay |
‘punoub |eLng
yons Aue jo |053u0D pue juswabeuew
2Je0 9¥ElIapUN pue juswaalbe " SNWIUIW 8p, 8¢ 0} paIapISu0d
ja1ebuepy 3S uojpeuls ‘uopsunig Aq puno.ub [eling alinboe 0] Jemod S| paAjoAUl ABUOW JO Junowe ay |
jo1ebaepy
}S uojpel}s ‘uolsiely Yyinos ‘yuomybiH " SNWIUIW 8p, 8¢ 0} paIapISu0d
‘uopjasiyy ‘uopsunig ‘auoysdoysig| ‘psehysinyd pasoo e ulelulew o} Jamod S| PaA|OAUI ASUOW JO Junowe ay |
‘asuadx3 |eroadg
B JoU pue |eJausab e se auloq aq 0} anuiRUOD VINOLVINTIN)D
"BLIOJEWSID pUE S3LIS)aWa0 pINOYS 810j8J8Y) }S00 8y} UopuIims ull ANV SIINILINID
jaJeBiep 3s uopen}s ‘ypomybiH ‘uopsun|g ‘spunolb [eLing apinoid 0} Jamod| Sjuapisal [|e 0} 3|ge|ieAe ale saljiioe) 8sayl| ‘SANNOVO 1VIi¥Ng
91/5102 Ul ainjipuadxa anoaul A asuadx3 jesauan
ng/iamod
0} A]3)1] ale YyoIiym s|1ouno9 ysied e se pabieys Buiaq 10} uoseay uonouNn

20| Xipuaddy

910Z / S10Z ul sosuadx3 |esauan) se pabieys aq 0} pasodoud sway|

Page 69



uojybnoapp ‘ypuomybiH ‘auoysdoysig

‘uyesy
0} [eroipnfaid aq 0} Ajax| ale yey) sayoyp
pue sjood ‘spuod yim |eap 0} Jamod

"asuadx3]

[e1oadsg e jou pue |esauab e se aulog aq 0}
BNUIIUOD 810848y} P|NOYS }SOD 8y} UOPUIMS
ul sjuapisal |[e Jyauaq saly|ioe) abeuleliq

JOVNIVYd

ybnoioquepp ‘usiiemziyi4 uojuels
‘NoIM uopAeH ‘weybuinog ‘auoysdoysig

‘sjuawinoop jo Adoo olydesbojoyd desy
0] Juawoeus ue Aq palinbal aiaym Aing

ybnoioquepp

“JoseBiel\ }S uojjel)s ‘ualiemzyi4 uojuels
‘uojsiely ynos ‘yuomybiH ‘¥o1M uophey
‘weybuinog ‘uopsunig ‘auoysdoysig

"uonoadsul
0} uado aq 0} Ajuoyine jJo suswnoo0Q

uojyBnoapp ‘ybnosoquepp

“aiebiel\ }S uojel}s ‘ualiemzyi{ uojuels
‘uojsiely ynos ‘yuomybiH ‘¥o1M uophey
‘weybuinog ‘uopsunig ‘auojsdoysig

1ouno) ysued
ay} 0} Buibuojaqg se payoads siaded
[|e Jo} sauoysodap Jadoud Jo uoisinoid

uojybnoipp ‘Jasebiepy 3s uoypesls
‘uasiemzyi{ uojuels ‘uojsie|\ yinos
‘yomybBiH oIp uopAeH ‘weybuinon
‘uopjasiys ‘uopsunig ‘auojsdoysig

"WIaY} YIm payisodap spuswinoop uiela.
0} Ajioyine o Jaouyo Jadoud Jo AinQg

"apim-ybnoiog pabieys aq

pinoys ‘aioyaiay} ‘s}sod ay] Ajuo ybnoiog
ay} Jo Jed oioads e Jysuaq 0} papusiul

JOU ale yons Se pue uoljoun) uoneljsiuiupe
s,Jlouno) ayj Jo Jed |elbajul ue ale
sjuUswWINoop [elolo bunosye sjuswabuelly

SIN3INND0Ad

‘asuadxa |esausb

e se s}s09 asay} abieyo o} pasodoud

SI }l ‘asuadx3 |elausn) e se pabieyo

uaaq Ajleouo}siy sey sajuad asay} Jo

1s09 8y} se pue 9|qibibau aje swns ay} se
‘JanemoH -sasuadx3 [eioadg se pabieyd aq
a10jaIay} p|nod pue seale sasuadx3] [eroadg
3y} UIylIMm pajeoo| ale sasjua) Ajlunwwo)
M3IAB|0D pue ayiAN ‘ybnolog sy} ul
suolesiuebio AJunwwoD 0} pases| salljioe}

91/S10Z Ul ainjipuadxa Jnoul
0} A|a)1] a4e YdIym sjIouno) ysiied

fingjiamod

asuadx3 |elauan
e se pabieys Buiaq 10} uoseay

uonoun4

20| Xipuaddy

910Z / S10Z ul sosuadx3 |esauan) se pabieys aq 0} pasodoud sway|

Page 70



joaebaepy
}S uopess ‘uojsiely ynos ‘uojbulppi
‘ypaomybiH ‘uojbuiuuey ‘uopjasiyn

‘Ajioyine Aemybiy

3y} JO JUasuU0d ay} ypm asuadxas olgnd
1e s|geuleluiew Aemybiy e ul sabian
sselb 1no Ae| pue seal} Jueld 0} Jamod

ybnoloquepp ‘uojsiepy ynos ‘uojbuiuuey

‘sAema|plig pue syyedoo;
paulejuiew AjayeAud uiejuiew o} Jamod

uojyBnoipp ‘ybnosoquepp
‘uojsiely ynos ‘uojbuippi ‘yuomybiH

‘'sAema|plLiq

‘asuadxa |eiausab e se auioq aq
PINOYS S}S0D 8y} pue Sjuspisal ||e Jyauaq 0}
papuajul ale uonelsiba| AeemybiH uo Buihjal

‘uojbuluueH ‘uopjasiyg ‘auoysdoysig pue syjedioo} uiejulew o} Jamod| pue |1ouno) ay} Ag papinoid suoiouNy 3SON SAVMHOIH
" snuwiuiw
ap, se pap.tebal aq p|noys pue |ews si
‘Auadoud jo spyib ‘suonouny| Buisue }s00 Auy "ybnoisog sy} Jo sjuspisal
s} Jo Aue BuiBieyosip jo asodind sy} Jo} 8y} ||e Jyduaq 0} pasnh aJe pue SadIAIeS
jaJeBiepy 3s uopenys| Jasiuiwpe pue pjoy ‘1dedoe 0} Jamod| [einynD Aq paniedal ale syib ‘sased jsow uj s14d19

uojyBnoapp ‘ybnosoquepp

“yJoseBie\ }S uojjel)s ‘ualiemzyi4 uojuels
‘uojsiey Yynos “YoIpn uopAeH ‘weybuinon
‘uopjasiys ‘uopsunig ‘auoysdoysig

‘3 Jo ued Aue Jo

Bale JIsy} 0} Jauad Joalip Bulg jim pue
O s}salajul 8y} ul S| uoluido s,|lounoD
8y} Ul yoIiym ainjipuadxa Jnoul 0} JoMod

" Shwiuiw ap, 8q P|NOM PSAJOAUI JUNOWE
3y} Jey} Jo ‘Jyauaq pjnom ybnoiog sjoym
au} Jayya jeyy Ajaxi| st )l ‘PaAjOAUL Jou S| ple
Juelb usym suoises20 ayj uQ ‘uodal siy} Jo
sasodind ay} 40} papn|oxa 8q alojaiay} ued
SJS00 9S8y 'JOV SduBUld Z661 dY} 0 (2)
GE UOoNnoas Japun uonouny e Bulwiopad aq
0} PaWaap J0U 310433y} SI [IDUNOD BY} pue
pie juelb jo wioy ay} ul Ajulew si ainyipuadxa
s 1ouno) ay) ‘Jamod siy} uodn Buikjal usypp

(3ov @oueul z661
ayj Jo Lg| uonoasg)
J¥NLIANILX3
‘JONVNIL

josebuepy 3S uopens

‘asuadx3 |e1oads e jou

pue |eJauas) e se aulog aq pjnoys BuisLie
1800 8y ‘ybnoiog sy} Jnoybnouy; syuspisal
[|e uyuaq 0} pue syisIA Bunoelpe Jo suesw e
se yjoq ybnolog ayy Aq papiroid aie asay |

S1¥V 3HL ANV
LNINNIVLIYILNT

91/S10Z Ul ainjipuadxa Jnoul
0} A|a)1] a4e YdIym sjIouno) ysiied

fingjiamod

asuadx3 |elauan
e se pabieys Buiaq 10} uoseay

uonoung

20| Xipuaddy

910Z / S10Z ul sosuadx3 |esauan) se pabieys aq 0} pasodoud sway|

Page 71



‘uoysiepy yjnos ‘uojbulppi ‘ypomybiH
‘4oIMm uopAeH ‘uojbuluuey ‘weybuirnon

‘KlleJauab auloq aq pinoys }S00 oy}
pue ybnoiog sjoym ayj Jeuaq 0} papusiul

‘uojeg apsen ‘uopsunjg ‘auojsdoysig "SuIq JBYI| JO UOISINOI]| SI ‘sulg o uoisinoid Buipnjoul ‘|0Jju09 JanIT NETRIg
‘asuadxa |esauab e se pablieyo
‘Auoyne 8q p|noys buisue s3s09 |y “Ajuo ybnolog
jaJefiepy }S uopel}S ‘UslieMZ) 4 UOJUR)S 3y} JO BaJe 8y} UIYIM S|qe|iene ay} jo ued e Aq aulog aq 0} papusjul jJou
‘uojsie|l Yinos ‘YoIpn uopAeH ‘weyBuino)| SSOIAISS JNOCE UOIBWIOLUI JO UOISIAOID| S| paIndul 1SOJ 8y} PUB SB2IAISS S}l Jnoge
‘uopjasiyy ‘uopsunig ‘auojsdoysig ay) ul Jsisse 1o apinoid 0} 5amod| o1gnd ay} wuoyul 0} Aaijod s 1ouno) 8y si NOILVINYMO4NI
ja4eliep }S uoye.lS ‘uojsie|y ynos
‘ypomybiH ‘uojbuluuey ‘auoysdoysig saoeds Bupjied apinoid 0} Jamod
‘sAema|pLiq pue syjedjoo;
auoj)sdoysig 10 j0adsal ul ajnosasold 0} Jamod
‘asuadxa
olignd je Aemybiy jo aoueusjulew
JO Juswauinbal Jo [eAOwWal 0} JUBSUOD
auojsdoysig 0} 8shjal IO 0} JUSSU09 0} JI8MOod
‘Remybiy e jo
uolsiaAlp Jo dn Buiddo}s ayj 03 Juasuod
yuomybiH ‘euoysdoysig 0} 8SNjal IO 0} JUSSU0I 0} Jamod
‘Auoyine
Remybiy o} waysAs bunybi Jsysuesy (3u09)
0} S[19UN0od ysiied Jo JOLISIP JO Jamod SAVMHOSIH
‘(Ruoyyne
Aemybiy ayj Jo Jusasuod ay} yym ydaoxa
pasIolaxa aq Jou |jeys siamod asay})
yuomybiH| seaoeld oignd pue speol Jybi| 0} Jamod
josebuepy "suoljelooap BulAe|dsip 1o} sainonis
}S uojpens ‘yuomybiH ‘auoysdoysig Jayjo pue sajodbeys 10818 0} Jamod
91/5102 Ul ainjipuadxa anoaul A asuadx3 jesauan
nqg/iamod
0} A]3)1] ale YyoIiym s|1ouno9 ysied e se pabieys Bulaq 10} uoseay uonouNn

20| Xipuaddy

910Z / S10Z ul sosuadx3 |esauan) se pabieys aq 0} pasodoud sway|

Page 72



ybnoitoquepp ‘Jareliepy

JS uojjel}§ ‘ualiemzyi4 uojuels ‘uojsiep
ynos ‘ypomyBiH ¥o1M uopheH ‘uopjasiyo
‘uojeg ajysen ‘uopsuni|g ‘auoysdoysig

‘Juswebeuew pue Apojsn)

ALd3dO¥d HSI™Vd

jaJebiepy 3S uopens
‘uojsiey Yyinos “YoIpn uopAeH ‘auoysdoysig

saoeds uado
J0 10adsal ul smejahg ayew 0} Jamod

uojyBnoapp ‘ybnosoquepp

“JoseBiel\ }S uojjel)s ‘ualiemzyi4 uojuels
‘uojsiely ynog ‘uojbuippi

‘yomyBiH oIpn uopAeH ‘weybuinon
‘uopjasiyo ‘uopsunig ‘auojsdoysig

"'saoeds uado ulejuiew 0} JoMod

uojybnoapp ‘Jasebaepy 3s uoyesls
‘uojsiely ynos ‘yuomybiH ¥o1M uophey
‘weybuinog ‘uopsunig ‘auoysdoysig

"|0J3u0d
pue juswabeuew ‘aieo s) axyelapun
pue adeds uado alinboe 0} Jamod

‘g 8|npayos a8s ases|d

S33VdS N3IdO

ybnoioquepp ‘jJaiebie }S uopess
‘uojsiey Yynos YoIpn uopAheH ‘auojsdoysig

'S9J1]0U 9AI3S 0} JaMOd

ybBnoioquepp
‘JaseBliel }Ss uopens
‘uojsiely ynos ‘yuomybiH ‘¥o1M uophey

"eale Je|naijed e jiysusq jou op

Aoy} asneoaq asuadxe |eisusab e se pabieyo
8q alojalay} p|noys palinoui s}sod Auy
"uoneJjsiuiwpe sy Jo yed se saojou Aejdsip

‘uopjasiyo ‘weybuinog ‘auoysdoysig "sao1jou 21ignd jo Joadsal ul Jamod pue aAIss 0} slamod sey [1Iouno) ay | S3D1LON
jaJefliepy 3S uopens ‘yuomybiH ‘uopjasiyo "Slie} pue s}ayJew ajenbal 0} Jamod ‘asuadxs |essuab e
‘sJ9jjew yons| se auloq aq pjnoys sisod Aue Ajusnbasuon
uo smeaAq axew o0} siamod sIajuod ‘louno) ybnouog ayy Ag aoinles
Yolym JoV |ED0T B USpun sjeyew e J0 uoisinoid Joalip 8y} Jussaidal Jou SyIV4
yuomybiH| Joj sebieys pue sawi) juiodde 0} Jamod| Op pue [jlews ale A3y} ‘INd20 S}S0D SIBYAA ANV SLIMYVIN
uojybnoips ‘ybnosoquepp
‘Jasefliel }S uUojeI}S ‘UudlieMZ)I4 UOjue)S
91/5102 Ul ainjipuadxa anoaul A asuadx3 jesauan
nqg/iamod
0} A]3)1] ale YyoIiym s|1ouno9 ysied e se pabieys Buiaq 10} uoseay uonouNn

20| Xipuaddy

910Z / S10Z ul sosuadx3 |esauan) se pabieys aq 0} pasodoud sway|

Page 73



jaJebiey 3S uopens
‘uojsiey Yyinos “YoIpn uopAeH ‘auoysdoysig

"MOYS

Aue 1oy uonnysul/Ayieyo olgnd Aue
0} awes ayj Jo asn Juelb pue 2iqnd ay)
0} punoib ainses|dpyed asojo 0} Jamod

jaseBuepy }S uoyesS HIIM uopheH

"'spunoJB ainsea|d Jo syjem aignd
ajenbal 0} smesAq axew 0} Jamod

uojybnoipn

“JaJeBuey }S uojes}s ‘uojsiely Yyynos
‘ypomybiH ‘YoIan uopAeH ‘uojbuluueH
‘weybuinog ‘uopjasiyy ‘auoysdoysig

"'spunoJb

ainsea|d 1o syem olgnd se pasn

Buiaq jo asodind 1oy spue| ancidu
pue jue|d ases| uo axe} Jo aseyoind

0} Jamod - spunolb ainses|d pue syied

‘sjuapisal

[|E JO JyBuaq 8y} Joj aq |IM moys Buiynsal
U} Jey) papuajul si §i ‘lounoY ybnolog
oy} Aq pasioiaxa si Jamod siy} a1sypp

‘g 9|Npayos a9s asea|d

NOILYINOFA

‘suosiad pa|gesIp J0 spaau
8y} Joj [eonoeld pue s|geuoseal si se
Jejosul uoisinoid 83ew 0} S80USIUSAUOD

yuomybiH Aejues Bupenspun usym AinQ
"S9OUSIUSAUOD
yuomybiH ol|gnd aje|nbas pue apinoid 0} Jamod

‘asuadxa

|elouab e aqg pjnoys wayy Buluiejuiew

pue Buipinoud Jo 100 ay} pue ‘ybnoiog ay;
‘0] SIOJISIA puUB ‘J0 SjuspIsal ||e 0] a|ge|ieAe
ale saouaIuUaAU0d aljgnd s JlIounoD ay

S3ON3INIANOD
aland

uojyBnoipp ‘ybnosoquepp

“oiebiey }S uojje)s ‘ualiemzyi4

uojuejs ‘uojsiely ynos ‘ypomybiH

“4oIM uopAeH ‘uojbuluueH ‘uojeg

ajysen ‘uopjasiyn ‘uopsun|g ‘auoysdoysig

‘saljquiasse
pue sbuii@aw 21jgqnd 1oy asn 1o} S210
‘sbuipjing apiaold Jo aninboe 0} Jeamod

‘asuadxs |elousb

B Se auloq aq p|noys way} bulurejuiew
pue Buipiroid o 3509 ay} pue ybnolog

ay} inoybnouy} suoneziueblio pue syuspisal
|le Aq sajiquiasse pue sbunesw 21qnd

10} 3|gejieAe aJe sbuip|ing s,|IouNo0D ay

SONIATIng d119nd

ybnoloquepp ‘Jasebaepy

1S uojjel}s ‘ualiemzyi4 uojuels ‘uojlsiep
ynos ‘ypuomyBbiH Y2IM uopheH ‘uopjasiyo
‘uojeg apsen ‘uopsunjg ‘auojsdoysig

‘Auadoud ysued
0} UOIE[aJ Ul SHJOM 3}NJaXa 0} JoMOod

91/S10Z Ul ainjipuadxa Jnoul
0} A|a)1] a4e YdIym sjIouno) ysiied

fingjiamod

asuadx3 |elauan
e se pabieys Buiaq 10} uoseay

uonoung

20| Xipuaddy

910Z / S10Z ul sosuadx3 |esauan) se pabieys aq 0} pasodoud sway|

Page 74



'$9s1n09 J|06 apinoid 0} Jamod

uojybnolipp ‘uojbuiuuey

‘syoel) 9[9A0 apinoid 0} Jamod

uojybnoapp
‘yBnosoquepp Jalebiep 3S uopens
‘uojsiey yinos YoM

uopAeH ‘uopjasiyn ‘uopsun|g ‘auojsdoysig

‘soweb
wea} 4o} sayoyd apinoid 0} Jamod

auojsdoysig

"solpn}s aouep apinoid 0} Jemod

ja.ebuep 3s uoyens ‘ypomybiy

"SHN0D UOJUILUPE] SpIAcId 0} 1aMOod

ypomybiy

"S1IN02 ysenbs apinolid 0} Jamod

uojybnoipy ‘'ybnosoquepp ‘yuomybiH
‘uopjasiyo ‘uopsunjg ‘esuoysdoysig

"SHN0D SIuUS) apIAoId 0} Jomod

ypomybiy

‘sjood Bulwwims apinoid 0} Jemod

ybnoloquepp ‘Jasebaepy
1S uopess ‘yuomyBiH ‘auojsdoysig

"S9J1Ud0 suods apinoid 0} Jamod

- saljIj10k} [eUOI}BBIDAI JBY}O

"sooe(d Buiyieq je (3u09)
yuomybiH| seoueidde Buines-ayl| apiaoid 0} Jamod NOILVINOIN
yuomybiH "sjood Buiwwims apiaoid 0} Jemod

- saoe|d Buiyjeq ‘sjood Buiwwims
"sjeas apino.d
uojyBnoapp ‘ybnoloquepn ‘SWO00J JUBWYSaJal Ulejulew pue
‘JaseBliel 1S uopens apinoid ‘suoljiaed pue swoo. Buipeal
‘ypomyBbiH “Y2IAN uopieH | uiejuiew pue apiaold ‘uoieasoal/saweb
‘uojbuiuueH ‘weybuinog ‘uopjasiyg| 1oy saniioe) apinoid 193210 IO ||BQI00) ‘asn |esauab Joy papusiul
‘uojeg apsen ‘uopsunig ‘auoysdoysig 10} Jed jo ped apise }8s 0} Jamod | a.ie siajuad suods pue saiioe} ‘sayoyd ay |
91/5102 Ul ainjipuadxa anoaul A asuadx3 jesauan
ng/iamod
0} A]3)1] ale YyoIiym s|1ouno9 ysied e se pabieys Buiaq 10} uoseay uonouNn

20| Xipuaddy

910Z / S10Z ul sosuadx3 |esauan) se pabieys aq 0} pasodoud sway|

Page 75



uojybBnoipn
“o1ebiep 3s uopells ‘auoysdoysig

*10} pa)oaIa SeMm JI YoIym jey)
0} Juanbasqns Jem Aue yjm uoiOsuUoD
Ul |[elIOWSW B SEe SAISS })I 9)ew

0} Se 0S |euowaw Aue Jsj[e 0} [eLowaw
Jem e uo ainjipuadxa inoul 0} Joamod

uojyBnoIpp ‘ualiemz)yi
uojuels ‘Jasebiepy 3§ uojjel}s ‘uolsiep

"JoulsIp Ajuoyine |B20| B UIYIM [BLIoWSW
Jem Aue jo9101d pue diedal ‘uiejuiew oy

‘asuadxa |essuab e se auloq aq p|noys
210}2J8Y} S}S02 Y] ‘sjuapisal e Jo Jauaq
By} o} 0S S80p INg ‘||lBH UMO] 8y} Jeau

yjnos ‘uopjasiys ‘uopsun|g ‘euolsdoysig| ainjpuadxe ajgeuoseal JNdul 0} JoMod [BLIOWSI\ JBAA Y} SUlejulew Iouno) ayl|  STVIMOWIIN ¥VM
uojbuluuey ‘uopsun|g "99)snJ) BuiBeuew se joe 0} Jamod Ssnuwiuiw
uojybnoupp ‘Jesebaep }S uope.ls ‘uojsie ap, se papJebal aq pjnoys pue |jews
yinos ‘uojbuluuey ‘uopsun|g ‘auojsoysig "98)SNJ} UBIPOISNO SE JOB 0} JaMod Alswaixe aq pjnom patinoul s3sod Auy S1SNyl
‘©/61 1oV Buluiel] pue juswAhojdwg
ay} Japun a)e1s 4o Alejaloag moys Bunnsau
8y} Jo uolssiwwo) Bulures| sy 8y} Jey} pspusaiul si )l ‘1ouno) ybnolog
josebiep 3 uopesys| yum sjuswasbuelse ojul Jojus 0} Joamod ay) Aq pasiolexa s Jamod siy} aI1sypp ONINIVYL
‘gsuadx3 |e10adg e jou pue [eseush
e se auloq ag p|noys Buisiie 1s00 ay |
‘ybnolog ayj Inoybnoiy} syuspisal Jysuaq
“Jalebiep) 1S uojellS ‘usLiemzyi 0} pue syisiA Buijoelje Jo sueaw e se yjoq
uojuels ‘yuomybiH ‘auoysdoysig ‘wis1ino} abeinoous 0} Jamod| ybnoiog ayy Aq papinoid ale sanijioe) asay | NSINNOL

yuomybiH ‘auoydoysig

‘Bunybi| 198438 Jo sesodind
10} palinbal aq Aew se snjesedde
pue saul| 213098 ‘sadid ‘s}ayoelq
‘sdwie| Buip|ing e 0} Xije 0} Jamod

‘asuadxa |eiauab

e se pablieyo ag pjnoys pue ybnolog

By} 0} SIOJISIA puUB ‘JO SjUapISal JO Jjauaq
|esauab ayj Joj aq pjnom Buistie s3s09 Auy

ONILHOIT 133¥1S

uojybnoipp ‘ybnosoquepp

"suaalb Buimoq apinoid 0} Jemod

91/S10Z Ul ainjipuadxa Jnoul
0} A|a)1] a4e YdIym sjIouno) ysiied

fingjiamod

asuadx3 |elauan
e se pabieys Buiaq 10} uoseay

uonoun4

20| Xipuaddy

910Z / S10Z ul sosuadx3 |esauan) se pabieys aq 0} pasodoud sway|

Page 76



Appendix 10d

List of sites, by statute, which are recommended to be charged generally

Function Power/ Duty Location Reason

Recreation Purchase/lease plant & Angel Ridge Playground

lands for public walks or Bruddel Woods.

pleasure grounds Canal Walk.
Cavendish Square Playground
Cheney Manor Ponds
Cheney Manor Rec. Ground.
Clanfield Road Play Area
County Ground.
Covingham Walk.
Cowdrey Close Play Area
Crawford Close East Play Area
Crawford Close West Play Area
Croftwoods
Deerhurst Way Play Area
Dorset Green Play Area
Dulverton Play Area
Fleetwood Court Play Area
Freshbrook Way Play Area
Gainsborough Way Play Area
Great Copse
Hawthorn Road Play area
Hreod Burna Parkway.
Kimberley Play Area
Kingshill Canal
Leslie Close Play Area
Linden Avenue Play Area
Longthorpe Close Play Area
Lydiard Country Park
Lyndhurst Crescent Play Area
Mannington Recreation Ground
Markenfield Play Area
Marlborough Road Recreation

Ground
Medlar Court Play Area

Melksham Close Play Area
Monkton Close Play Area
Moredon Canal

Moredon Playing Field & Sports
Oakham Close South Play Area
Penhill Copse.

Penhill Park Area.

Pheasant Close Play Area
Pilgrim Close Play Area
Queens Park

Ramsbury Avenue Play Area
Risingham Mead Play Area

WOWNOWWONDNODNDNWWLWW N ONDNDNOWWWLWWWNDNODNOWWLWLWWLWWLWNWWLWWLW-_ADNWDNDNOWDNDNDW

Page 77




Function

Recreation
ctd.

Open
Spaces

Power / Duty

Power to acquire &
Power to maintain.

Location

Rodbourne Cheney Rec. Ground.

Wheeler Avenue Play Area
Sevenfields

Shaftesbury Avenue Play Area
Shrewton Walk & Play Area
Southbrook Recreation.
Stamford Close West Play Area
Stanfield Close East Play Area
St Marks Recreation Ground.
The Meads Play Areas Eldene
The Lawn Amenity Area.

The Park

Tintagel Close Play Area
Tovey Road Play Area

Town Gardens

Tulip Tree Close Play Area
Wakefield Play Area

Walcot Recreation Ground.
Wichelstowe Playground
Winterslow Road Play Area

Basil Close.

Blackland Copse
Blagrove Parkway
Bryony Way Field
Caraway Drive

Clover Park Woodhall Park
Conisborough Play Area
Dalefoot Woodhall Park
Fenland Close

Fiveways Field Play Area
Francombes

Freshbrook Parkway
Gutters Close Field
Haydon Brook Parkway.
Haydon Brook Walk
Highland Close Shaw
Liden Drive Play Area
Liden Park

Mellow Ground Field.(Westfield
Way Field)

Newark Close Play Area
Oasthouse Middleleaze
Oliver Close

Peatmoor Copse.
Peatmoor Lagoon.

Picton Close Middleleaze
Peatmoor Park

Rectory Field

Page 78

Reason

WOWNWWONOWOWODNDNONOWLWWNWWLWDNWDN

SN OWOWODNDNMNNMNNNOOWLWW-_AW-A2DNDN -

NDNOWONNWWW




Function Power / Duty Location Reason

Open Redcap Gardens Shaw
Spaces Richard Jefferies Parkway.
ctd. Riverside Park

Royal Mead Open Space
Shaw Forest Park

Shaw Ridge

Shaw Valley Parkway
Tadpole Brook

Tamworth Drive

The Ridge Woodhall Park.
Westlea Park

Westlea Parkway
Westfields Way Copse
Woodhall & Moredon Parkway

N=2PMNDNDN_2OO2NNNDNONNDW

Reason

1 This indicates a function provided within a Parish by the Borough Council, which
has not been charged specifically to the Parish concerned. These costs have
historically been charged as a general expense and it as proposed that this
should be continued.

2 These are sites provided and maintained as part of the strategic aim of the
Council to enhance the overall environmental look of the Borough and to improve
the quality of life for people seeking a more leisurely way to spend their spare
time. Sites set aside for football, cricket and similar games are part of the
Council’s strategy to encourage outdoor sports and are therefore included in this
category.

3 Play spaces used for informal play, which incur inspection and maintenance
costs.

Page 79



This page is intentionally left blank

Page 80



Supplementary Report - Budget 2015-16 and Beyond

Cabinet Date: 4™ February 2015
Author: Cabinet Member for Finance and Board Director Resources
Wards: All

Locality Affected: All

Parishes Affected: All

1. Purpose and Reasons

1.1 To update Members on the results of the Local Government Finance Settlement
for 2015-16 received on 3™ February 2015 and update the recommendations of
the report accordingly. Changes to the original recommendations are shown in
bold.

2. Recommendations

Cabinet is recommended to note:

2.1 The projected out-turn for 2014-15 and that savings arising from the early
delivery of 2015-16 Budget Proposals will be used to partly finance one-off costs
incurred in-year to deliver the 2015-16 Budget, thus helping to preserve the level
of funding held in reserves for future years’ transformation;

2.2  That the Council does not expect to need to replenish General Reserves as part
of the 2015-16 Budget Setting process;

2.3  That no further consultation feedback has been received in relation to the Budget
proposals presented to Cabinet in October and December 2014;

2.4 The minutes of the consultation meeting held with business
representatives from Swindon, on behalf of non-domestic rate payers, held
on 28th January 2015;

2.5 That in line with the requirements of the Local Government Act 2003, the Board
Director, Resources, in his Section 151 capacity, confirms the robustness of the
estimates underlying the recommended Budget and having reviewed the financial
risks being faced by the Council concludes that the proposed level of General
Reserves (£6m) is adequate in the context of the earmarked reserves held,
specific contingencies and the proposed general contingency of £0.5m.

Cabinet is requested to:

2.6 Agree the 2014-15 virements set out in Appendix 5;
2.7 Endorse the Medium Term Financial Strategy set out in Appendix 9.

2.8 Agree that there are no changes to the proposed fees and charges set out in
Appendix 1 to the report to Cabinet on 10th December 2014;

Further information on the subject of this report can be obtained from Kirsty Cole on (01793)
464610 or Email kcole@swindon.gov.uk

Page 81



Supplementary Report - Budget 2015-16 and Beyond

Cabinet Date: 4™ February 2015

29

2.10

2.1

2.12

213

2.14

Agree the Specific Reserves held in support of the 2015-16 Revenue Budget set
out in Appendix 7;

Agree that the Head of Revenues and Benefits be authorised to increase awards
of Business Rates Retail Relief in accordance with the scheme approved in
March 2014 to £1,500 per annum in 2015-16 and to award ‘transitional relief’
payments that limit increases in Business Rates payments to 15% for small
businesses with rateable values up to £18,000 and 25% for medium sized
business with a rateable value up to £50,000;

Agree the key principles of the Public Power Solutions Limited (formerly Swindon
Commercial Services Ltd (SCS)) Business Plan for 2015-16 on behalf of the
Council in its shareholder capacity and authorise the Board Director Resources,
in consultation with the Leader of the Council, to agree any future changes to the
Business Plan on behalf of the Council in its shareholder capacity;

Agree that a consultation commences on reshaping the Emergency
Assistance Scheme within an on-going base budget envelope of £186k
(currently £321k) using the existing £300k earmarked reserve to cashflow
the transition and supplement the base Budget funding in 2015-16;

Recommend to Council the level of Special Expenses for 2015-16 shall be
£1,041,299 and the areas of land and services that will be charged as special
and general expenses set out in Appendix 10; and

Recommend to Council:-

2.14.1 The 2015-16 Budget be set at £136.740m and the Budget
Requirement for tax setting purposes be set at £134.740m,
recognising the £2m of funding from reserves;

2.14.2 There be no increase in Council Tax for 2015-16, and

2.14.3 It be determined that the proposed increase (that is no increase at all) in
the basic amount of Council Tax for 2015-16 is not excessive in
accordance with Schedule 5 of the Localism Act 2011.

Detail

The assumptions and recommendations set out in the report to Cabinet
published in the main agenda pack were based on the Provisional Local
Government Finance Settlement received on 18" December 2014. That report
recommended a Net Budget for 2015-16 of £136.554m and included a proposal
to commence consultation on the removal of base budget funding for the
Emergency Assistance Fund (Welfare Scheme) following the Government
proposing to withdraw the specific grant funding for this purpose.

Further information on the subject of this report can be obtained from Kirsty Cole on (01793)
464610 or Email kcole@swindon.gov.uk

Page 82



Supplementary Report - Budget 2015-16 and Beyond
Cabinet Date: 4™ February 2015

3.2  Along with a number of other councils, Swindon responded to the consultation on
the provisional settlement and strongly communicated the likely impact on
vulnerable people of the Government’s proposal to remove Government funding
for the Welfare Scheme. In response, through the Final Local Government
Finance Settlement for 2015-16, the Government has announced that it is
providing a further £74 million nationally to upper-tier authorities to recognise that
“councils have asked for additional support, including to help them respond to
local welfare needs and to improve social care provision”.

3.3  The resulting impact for Swindon is that the Formula Grant funding in the final
settlement is £186k higher than the provisional settlement. The Government has
not reinstated the specific grant for the Welfare Fund but it has increased formula
grant funding and articulated a link to recognising the impact of funding
reductions on vulnerable people accessing the fund. This £186k increase should
be considered within the context of the current (2014-15) funding of the
Emergency Assistance Scheme of £321k.

3.4  As this additional funding is not ring-fenced, Members can decide how they wish
to use the extra £186k. However, recognising the previous feedback received
from key stakeholder groups and Members’ concerns reported to Government in
response to the Provisional Settlement, it is recommended that this funding is
reinstated into the Base Budget to fund a reshaped Emergency Assistance
Scheme. The 2014-15 Fund is £321k which mainly funds household heating,
food and furniture plus smaller amounts on bedding, clothing, household goods
and repairs and travel expenses plus the administration of the scheme.

3.5 A £135k reduction in the scheme will require the current parameters to be
reviewed and reshaped with key stakeholders. Based on feedback received to
date, it is proposed that this magnitude of saving could be achieved through a
range of changes to the existing scheme including the following:-

¢ Reducing the types of support offered, recognising they type of support that
can be accessed through other channels and charitable groups in the
Borough

¢ Simplifying the application process, enabling the administration costs to be
reduced

¢ Limiting the number of claims each person can make against the fund each
year.

3.6  Itis proposed that consultation commences on reshaping the Emergency
Assistance Scheme within an on-going base budget envelope of £186k (currently
£321k), which reflects the level of funding the Council will receive in future. In
addition, it is proposed to use the existing £300k earmarked reserve to cashflow
the transition and supplement the base Budget funding in 2015-16.

Further information on the subject of this report can be obtained from Kirsty Cole on (01793)
464610 or Email kcole@swindon.gov.uk

Page 83



Supplementary Report - Budget 2015-16 and Beyond
Cabinet Date: 4™ February 2015

3.7  The receipt of an additional £186k of formula grant results in an increase in
overall net expenditure to £136.740m in 2015-16. Cabinet is asked to
recommend this Net Budget sum to Council, funded as set out in the table below.

Financed By: £000
~ Formula Grant 57,534
~ Council Tax Income 77,544
~ Collection Fund Surplus — Council Tax 1,662
~ Collection Fund Deficit — Business Rates (2,000)
Budget Requirement for Tax Setting Purposes 134,740
~ Reserves Funding (Business Rates Appeals) 2,000
Final Proposed Budget 2015-16 136,740

4. Alternative Options

4.1  Members could decide to spend the extra £186k on different services to the
Emergency Assistance Fund.

5. Implications, Diversity Impact Assessment and Risk Management
5.1  As in the original report.
6. Consultees

6.1  The Board Director, Resources (Section 151 Officer) and Director of Law and
Democratic Services (Monitoring Officer) are consulted in respect of all reports.

7. Background Papers
7.1 None
8. Appendices

8.1  None
9. Key Decision/Decision in Cabinet Work Programme and Forward Plan
9.1  The Council’s Budget will be determined by the full Council on 23" February

2015. This is therefore not a key decision for the Cabinet at this meeting. It is
included in the Cabinet Work Programme and Forward Plan for February 2015

Further information on the subject of this report can be obtained from Kirsty Cole on (01793)
464610 or Email kcole@swindon.gov.uk

Page 84



Capital Programme 2015/16 to 2017/18

Cabinet Date: 4™ February 2015

Author: Cabinet Member for Finance

Board Director, Resources

Wards: All
Locality Affected: All
Parishes Affected: All

1.1

1.2

2.1

2.2

2.3

2.4

2.5

2.6

2.7

Purpose and Reasons

To report new Capital Programme requirements for the period 2015/16 to
2017/18 and beyond.

The effective management of financial resources through robust financial
management processes underpins the Council’s ability to achieve its plans and
priorities.

Recommendations

Cabinet is requested to recommend the Council to:

Include the strategic Highways projects set out in Appendix 5, funded through the
Growth Deal secured by the Swindon and Wiltshire Local Enterprise partnership
(SWLEP), within the Council’s capital programme, noting the related capacity
funding the Council has secured from Government as detailed in Appendix 6;

Note the current position and future budget requirement for the additional
Children’s Services schemes referred to at paragraphs 3.5 to 3.8 below and
detailed in Appendix 1.

Approve a budget of £500,000 for Condition Works, funded from Capital
Maintenance Grant, as referred to at paragraph 3.9 below and detailed in
Appendix 1.

Approve a total budget of £7.927m for the 2015/16 local priority Highways and
Transport schemes referred to at paragraphs 3.10 and 3.11 below and detailed at
Appendix 2.

Approve a total budget of £2m for 2015/16, funded from borrowing, for Repairs
and Maintenance on Corporate Property as referred to in paragraphs 3.12 to 3.13
and detailed at Appendix 3.

Approve a total budget requirement of £1,006,700 for Older Peoples and other
capital schemes referred to in paragraph 3.14 and detailed at Appendix 4.

Approve a budget of £253,000, for refurbishment work to the County Ground
Athletics Track, funded from Section106 Planning Agreement income and

Further information on the subject of this report can be obtained from Paul Smith on
Direct Dial N0.463976, or Email psmith2@swindon.gov.uk.

Page 85



Capital Programme 2015/16 to 2017/18

Cabinet Date: 4™ February 2015

2.8

29

210

2.1

2.12

213

3.1

3.2

3.3

referred to in paragraphs 3.15 to 3.17, subject to discussions with Swindon Town
Football Club if required.

Note the position around future investment requirements at Waterside detailed at
paragraphs in 3.18 to 3.19.

Approve the retention of £30k raised by Wroughton Parish Council in relation to
the purchase of Kingsfarm Wood to be administered through a working party as
detailed at paragraph 3.20.

Authorise the Cabinet Member for the Economy, Regeneration, and Skills, in
consultation with opposition spokespersons and the Board Director, Resources,
to recommend a preferred bidder in relation to Superfast Broadband as detailed
in paragraph 3.21.

Approve a budget of £150,000 relating to feasibility work on Strategic Projects,

forming part of the Strategic Economic Plan and funded from the balance of the
£1m Regeneration Reserve previously approved by the Cabinet, as detailed at

paragraphs 3.22 to 3.24 below.

Note the award of £787,500 of Department for Communities and Local
Government (DCLG) capacity funding as detailed at paragraph 3.4.

Approve a capital budget of £197k for Library IT Equipment as detailed in
paragraphs 3.25 to 3.29.

Detail
Capital Programme 2015/16

The Council approved, on Cabinet’s recommendation, a 2014/15 programme in

February 2014 (Council Minute 94, 2013/14 refers) with indicative costs in years
beyond reflecting the Government’s decision to approve grants on a yearly basis
rather than the previous 3-year period.

This report details the Capital Programme approval requirements for 2015/16,
and indicative requirements beyond 2015/16. There are also a number of
2015/16 requirements where full costs are not known at this stage and will
require a further approval at a subsequent Cabinet meeting.

Growth Deal

In July 2014, the Government announced the successful Growth Deal negotiated
with the Swindon and Wiltshire Local Enterprise Partnership (SWLEP) amounting
to an investment of £129.1 million. £3.75 million was confirmed for 2015/16 for
Swindon with indicative allocations through to 2020/21 of £91.12million. The
successful schemes in Swindon and the annual allocations are shown in
Appendix 5, which Cabinet is asked formally to include within the Council’s

Further information on the subject of this report can be obtained from Paul Smith on
Direct Dial N0.463976, or Email psmith2@swindon.gov.uk.

Page 86



Capital Programme 2015/16 to 2017/18

Cabinet Date: 4™ February 2015

3.4

3.5

3.6

3.7

3.8

capital programme. The schemes relate to New Eastern Villages, Bus Rapid
Transit, Wichelstowe third access, and Sustainable Transport. There are
additional schemes in the Wiltshire Council area. The previously prioritised Local
Transport Board schemes for M4 junctions 15 and 16 have been rolled into the
Growth Deal process.

The level of funding provided for these strategic infrastructure projects is much
greater than Swindon has received for many years and represents a step change
in the scale of the Council’s capital programme. In order to build capacity for the
delivery of New Eastern Villages schemes, Swindon has applied for and been
been successful in attracting £787K of Department of Communities and Local
Government (DCLG) Capacity Funding to complement the existing project team.
The money will help meet our obligations with regards delivery of Eastern
Villages transport schemes and fund legal and other professional advice to
ensure the development is socially and financially sustainable in the long term.
The bid set out the additional skills and capacity required to deliver Eastern
Villages and is set out in detail at Appendix 6.

Children’s Services Schemes

The Government allocates two main capital grants to support expenditure on
school assets: maintenance funding and Basic Need. Maintenance funding is
provided for maintenance and repair to existing school buildings, and Basic Need
funding supports the requirement for providing new pupil places in new or
expanded maintained schools but does not include funding for any Special
Educational Needs places.

In 2014, the Council was allocated Basic Need grant of £1,908,045 for 2014-15,
£157,724 for 2015-16, and £165,610 for 2016-17. The funding allocation at this
time only supports those Primary schemes deemed to have an operational
requirement up to 2016-17 and not funded from Developers Contributions.
Significant Secondary Place pressures exist beyond this date and there is
currently no clarity around the level at which further Basic Need funding may
support these requirements. In addition, if new requirements for schools are met
through Free Schools, then the Council would not receive additional Basic Need
Grant.

Capital Maintenance grant for 2015/16 has not been notified at the date of writing
this report but is estimated at c£1m (2014/15 £1.54m). Notification of the exact
sum is not expected until late January/early February 2015.

Appendix 1 contains a summary of the position on all schemes as at the date of
the writing of this report. However, it is not possible at present to provide robust
cost information around any of the schemes required from September 2015 on
due to a combination of circumstances, namely the timing of the report reviewing
Special Educational Needs requirements (expected in March ’15), outcomes of

Further information on the subject of this report can be obtained from Paul Smith on
Direct Dial N0.463976, or Email psmith2@swindon.gov.uk.

Page 87



Capital Programme 2015/16 to 2017/18

Cabinet Date: 4™ February 2015

3.9

3.10

3.1

3.12

3.13

3.14

feasibility work and the outcome of Free School applications. Once the various
reports and information has been received an update will be provided to Cabinet.
The information included in this report highlights the likely need and provides an
indication only of the potential budgetary requirements for the proposals.

The only approval sought in this report for Children’s Services relates to
£500,000 required for condition works which relates to high priority condition
issues outside of the schools ability to fund from their own delegated funding
(which is fairly small), such as replacement heating systems. This is highlighted
on the attached appendix and a further £500,000 will be sought next year, funded
from capital maintenance grant.

Local Priority Highways and Transport Schemes

The Government has confirmed Local Transport Plan grant funding for 2015/16
of £4,177,000. In addition to this, Local Growth Funding of £3,750,000 has also
been awarded and the proposed Highways programme has therefore been
developed within this total envelope of funding to ensure no further borrowing is
required which would require a subsequent increase in debt charges.

In the absence of any firm funding notification beyond 2015/16, officers are
recommending that Cabinet only make new approvals for 2015/16 although
Appendix 2 shows indicative requirements for future years.

Property and Assets

Appendix 3 contains a summary of the property and assets related capital
schemes requiring approval. The total budget requirement for 2015/16 is
£2,000,000 and relates to Repairs and Maintenance as well as DDA (“Disability
Discrimination Access) requirements on the Council’s general fund Property
portfolio. The backlog requirement is estimated at around £14m and the total
value of the estate c£490m. As no funding is available for this, borrowing of £2m
will be required. Indicative proposals beyond 2015/16 are shown on Appendix 3
but no approval is required at this stage.

The cost to the Revenue Budget in funding this shortfall from increased
borrowing is estimated at £160,000 per annum.

Older People and Other Proposals

Appendix 4 contains details of three new scheme approvals with a total budget
requirement of £1,006,700 fully funded from grants. All of these proposals relate
to expenditure that assists individuals staying in their own homes for longer and
therefore potentially reduce demand on other services. Officers are
recommending that only 2015/16 proposals are approved at this stage due to no
firm funding being available beyond this.

Further information on the subject of this report can be obtained from Paul Smith on
Direct Dial N0.463976, or Email psmith2@swindon.gov.uk.

Page 88



Capital Programme 2015/16 to 2017/18

Cabinet Date: 4™ February 2015

3.15

3.16

3.17

3.18

County Ground Athletics Track

The County Ground Athletics Track facilities are currently being managed by
Swindon Borough Council (the Council) as part of their Leisure portfolio. The
Council’s leisure centres transferred to GLL on 1% November 2014 and the
transfer excluded the athletics track and associated facilities, although it was
previously managed by Croft Leisure Centre staff. It is proposed that the County
Ground Athletics Track is transferred to Swindon Harriers Athletics Club (the
Club), which is the major user of the facility, under a 21-year lease. As part of
any agreement there will be a requirement to support the Club in delivering a
sustainable operation. Phase one of this project requires the provision of a new
track surface, suitable floodlighting, and athletics equipment. The track is now at
the end of its usable life for competitive athletics, the existing floodlights require
essential repairs for safety reasons and some of the equipment inventory needs
replacement for club and school athletics meetings. The estimated cost of this
work is £253,000, which can be funded through Section106 Planning Agreement
income.

As a second phase, the project will provide a clubhouse with changing room
facilities. The new clubhouse is required as the existing changing room block has
subsidence, has reached the end of its useful life and is currently closed, and
temporary toilet arrangements are in place with no mains services. This second
phase of the project will also consider shared occupation by a range of users
across the County Ground to consolidate the land use, parking, utility and social
potential of the site, and will involve a further capital bid.

Swindon Town Football Club (STFC) has long-standing ambitions to develop the
County Ground. If proposed plans come forward to redevelop their stadium that
affect the works undertaken within either phase 1 or any future phase 2 to the
County Ground Athletics facility, then reimbursement of the capital costs incurred
for these works would need to be part of any redevelopment agreement entered
into with the STFC. The Swindon Harriers lease will also include terms that
enable it to be determined to enable the STFC redevelopment to be progressed,
conditional on alternative facilities for athletics being provided.

Waterside Investment

Work is underway to firm up the capital investment requirements at Waterside to
ensure the site is safe, fit for purpose, and able to meet increasing demand on
the services delivered from it. This report does not require any specific approvals
at this stage. However, in order to provide Members visibility around this work
and the potential financial impact, some additional detail is provided as follows:

3.18.1 Drainage work - Unknown risk of layout of drainage systems..

3.18.2 Works required to the access and egress and site circulation to ensure
the site meets Health and Safety and capacity requirements. The

Further information on the subject of this report can be obtained from Paul Smith on
Direct Dial N0.463976, or Email psmith2@swindon.gov.uk.

Page 89



Capital Programme 2015/16 to 2017/18
Cabinet Date: 4™ February 2015

capital programme currently includes a budget of £800k towards this,
but additional funding is likely to be required.

3.18.3 Capital repairs and maintenance requirements identified by condition
surveys in the region of £1.2m.

3.18.4 Accommodation work - Under the Integration Programme a business
case is developing to assess the costs and benefits of improving the
decoration, orientation, equipment etc. of the accommodation to
provide staff with fit for purpose and effective operational
environments, which will meet the future demand on the services,
provided from the depot and are aligned to New Ways of Working.

3.19 Current estimates are in the region of £3m to £4m for the above works with the
largest proportion of expense being on the first three items listed above, but this
is subject to additional work in order to provide a robust requirement and
therefore further detail will be brought back to Cabinet once this is known.

Kingsfarm Woodland

3.20 The Cabinet Member for Finance previously approved Officer’s actions under
delegated powers in November 2012 to purchase Kingsfarm Woodland at a value
of £185,000 funded from a mixture of £130,000 S106 monies and £50,000 from
the Wiltshire Wildlife Trust. In the original proposal, agreement was obtained from
Wroughton Parish Council that it would raise £30,000 to offset these costs as a
gesture, which it has been able to do. Following subsequent discussions with the
Parish, the proposal is for the Parish to retain these funds for the further site
benefit and administer them through a working party (including representation
from the Council) rather than passport these funds back to the Council, and
therefore approval is sought from Cabinet for this proposal.

Superfast Broadband

3.21 Cabinet approved the tendering of the Superfast Broadband Extension
opportunity in June 2014 (Cabinet Minute 8, 2014/15 refers). The project has
subsequently conducted a review of current broadband coverage across the
Borough, verified this coverage and then tendered the opportunity through an
Open OJEU exercise. The bid responses have been received and the bid
evaluation process is due to be concluded by 11" February 2015. The chosen
supplier will increase superfast broadband coverage (>24mbps) from 80% of
Borough premises currently to greater than 95% of premises by 2017. A report
will be brought to Cabinet in due course.

Further information on the subject of this report can be obtained from Paul Smith on
Direct Dial N0.463976, or Email psmith2@swindon.gov.uk.

Page 90



Capital Programme 2015/16 to 2017/18

Cabinet Date: 4™ February 2015

3.22

3.23

3.24

3.25

3.26

3.27

Growth Feasibility Reserve

Since the Strategic Economic Plan was submitted in April 2014, further
opportunities to bid to the Local Growth Fund have emerged and this is likely to
continue irrespective of the outcome of the General Election. In order to
maximise the competitiveness of our bids to government it is essential we meet
their funding criteria to produce outline business cases following Treasury
guidance. This involves specialist economic appraisal including Value for Money
and Benefit Cost Ratios, which it is necessary to buy in from consultants. This
can cost in the region of £20-35K per project depending on the level of detail.

All new growth-related capital projects are derived from the Infrastructure
Delivery Plan that outlines the investment necessary to support the growth of
Swindon as set out in the Local Plan 2026. Next projects for scheme
development include:

3.23.1 the Railway Crossing in Swindon Town Centre,
3.23.2 the “all vehicle” bridge to open up Kingsdown,

3.23.3 District Heating pipes and plant for Wichelstowe, Eastern Villages and
North Star,

3.23.4 Higher Education facilities in Swindon Town Centre, and

3.23.5 The Magic Roundabout and other transport schemes designed to
improve capacity, journey reliability and release land for development.

Cabinet previously approved a sum of £1.079m funding from the Growth
Feasibility Reserve to progress scheme development at Eastern Villages, with
sums of £149k approved in June 2014 and a further £549k approved in July
2014. This request is for £150K of the remaining balance of to work up further
schemes for Growth Deal 2 and beyond.

Library IT Equipment

The Library Service is heavily IT dependent but much of the current infrastructure
is old with outdated software and hardware. It is the single biggest cause of
customer complaints. Updating the IT will improve the customer experience.

Libraries are increasingly involved in delivering digital literacy including running
IT starter courses, job clubs, online job searching, and helping residents access
local and national government information online. We are currently collaborating
with Revenues and Benefits and the Department of Work and Pensions (DWP) to
support residents register for Universal Credits. Without updating the IT
infrastructure we will be unable to continue with this

The scheme will comprise:

Further information on the subject of this report can be obtained from Paul Smith on
Direct Dial N0.463976, or Email psmith2@swindon.gov.uk.

Page 91



Capital Programme 2015/16 to 2017/18

Cabinet Date: 4™ February 2015

3.28

3.29

4.1

5.1

5.2

5.3

3.27.1 Replacing the PN (public PCs) servers: without replacing we cannot
update the public PCs.

3.27.2 Replace the public PCs: the PCs are part of the SBC IT refresh
programme. They currently operate on XP, which will be unsupported
after March 2015.

3.27.3 Install wifi at North, Highworth, West, Moredon and Stratton libraries:
this will not only improve wifi coverage and thus the customer
experience but also allow us to reduce the number of PCs from 180 to
150 as people can use their own devices e.g. smartphones, tablets

3.27.4 Replace 13 of the current self-service (RFID) machines and upgrade
11 others: Many of the machines are obsolete and constantly break
down requiring maintenance. The current company Bibliotheca have
indicated they cannot continue to support these machines.

Many of our smaller libraries operate with single staffing and without self-service
we would need to increase staffing levels at these sites.

The anticipated capital cost £197k would be funded from £71k s106 income,
£51k from existing IT budgets with the balance of £75k to be funded from
borrowing and repaid over 5 years through budget savings due to on-going
maintenance being included within the purchase costs.

Alternative Options
Any alternative options for specific areas are set out within the report.
Implications, Diversity Impact Assessment and Risk Management

Financial and Procurement Implications

These have been reflected in the body of the report.

Legal and Human Rights Implications

All legal and human rights considerations have been taken fully into account in
compiling this report. It is considered that the recommendations of this report are
compatible with Convention rights.

All Other Implications (including Staff, Sustainability, Health, Rural, Crime and
Disorder)

There are no such direct implications.

Further information on the subject of this report can be obtained from Paul Smith on
Direct Dial N0.463976, or Email psmith2@swindon.gov.uk.

Page 92



Capital Programme 2015/16 to 2017/18

Cabinet Date: 4™ February 2015

5.4

7.1

8.1
8.2
8.3
8.4
8.5
8.6

Diversity Impact Assessment (DIA)

The Highways and Transport proposals in this report are under the umbrella of a
DIA covering the Local Transport Plan; this is available from the Service
Manager, Transport Planning. This DIA identified that there was no adverse
impact for any equality group. DIA’s have been carried out for all of the other
proposals requiring 15/16 approval and have identified no adverse impact. These
are held in the respective service areas.

Consultees

The Board Director, Resources (Section 151 Officer) and Director of Law and
Democratic Services (Monitoring Officer) are consulted in respect of all reports.

Background Papers

None.

Appendices

Appendix 1- Children’s Services proposals
Appendix 2 - Highways and Transport proposals
Appendix 3 - Property Proposals

Appendix 4 - Older Peoples & Other proposals
Appendix 5 - Growth Deal allocations

Appendix 6 — Department of Communities and Local Government (DCLG)
Capacity Funding

Key Decision/Decision in Cabinet Work Programme and Forward Plan

This is not a Key Decision and is included in the Cabinet Work Programme /
Forward Plan for February 2015.

Further information on the subject of this report can be obtained from Paul Smith on
Direct Dial N0.463976, or Email psmith2@swindon.gov.uk.

Page 93



This page is intentionally left blank

Page 94



SOWO0JN0 J3Y}o pue spieme juelb ainyny o} 108lans| 169°/6€°2S |lesHoys payiuapl yualing
60£°2EEL s|ejol
yuswaaibe |ebs) 0} Joslang | 986°2/0'G sj0dpel- 901S
Swins payiuap|| 686'0£6 1enoy 901S
G| Aienigad Ae/Aienuer sje| pejoadxa sienjoy| 000°000°L pojews3 souBUSjUE)
abejs sy} je umouyun| - SIEs A ainin pasN JIseq
sjenjoe /1/91 pue 91/G1| yee'eze |enjoy paaN odiseq
Buipung
00006965 S|ejoL
000'005 L1/91 V/N SYIOM\\ UORIpUOD
IVAO¥ddY ONININDIN| 000°00S 9LISL VIN SHJOAN UOIIPUOD
‘Buip|ing |0oyoS A1epuo2ag sy} apiaoid 0} pasu pjnom o ] .
ybnoiog sy} usy} [nySS82NSUN S| 9SBU} JO JOY}0 J0 BUO | ‘G| [Hdy/ydJel AQ pajoadxa awooinNo sy} UM UOIjeIapISUod 000087 81 8L oz-das 02 1des Aq 349 - ¢ $80e|d |0040S Alepucoss
Japun Auaiind aJe yolym s|ooydg 914 Jo} 34a By} O} SPIY PARIWIGNS Yjog ey 959001 [0jslig’g 869100 MSN| 000°L¥E81L L1991 g8l-deg 8l 1dag Aq 34 9 - | sadeld [ooyds Aiepuodag
abe)s siy} Je umousjun Buipuny paaN diseg| 000°667°9 /1/91 /1-deg j00yog Arewld wieq ybnoiogmoy
Mojaq 89s 'd|qe|ieAe Buipuny 901 S| 000'ZHE'9 L9 L}-deg Z 100yog Alewld wie4 sjodpe |
"pasIApe A|snoiAaid Uey) SSa)
Algesapisuod aq |Im pasinbal 3o6png auj yeuy pajedioiue st} "G YdJB\ JO pud Yoeq anp ‘|ooyds aijuad umo} Buisixe
Ue Je uoepowwodoe |euoiippe Buipiroid oy [enusiod sy} mainal o} AJljiqises) e 0} 109[gns S| SSe9 9,0Z YL '9L0Z| 000°/21L'S 9L/SL 9|-deg S90E|d |00YdS Aewlid a1us) umo |
ul Jayjoue pue Aewld ssos) AjoH je papinoid Buiaqg si siy} ‘GL0g Ul Ssejo uoiidadal [euonippe ue Joj juswalinbal
e g AJuo [[IM 813U} }By} UMOUS SBY Bjep Ypig Jusdal ‘Janamoy ‘|ooyds Alewlld 341 e Joj Jybnos sem Buipuny Ajjeniug
"SUORdO By} WO [[IM UYDIYM G, YdJely anp podas NIS ) j .
8y} Jo swo2ino ay} Buniemy ‘uoisinoid spasN Xxa|dwo) [euolIppe Ue Joj pasu e SI 81ay) Jey} SMoys ejep N3S juaung 000042 ok/sk 9}-des uoisinoid G- SpaeN xejduio)
"suondo ay} WIojul [IM YdIUM G |, YDIe\ anp Hodal
N3S 8y} Jo swodyno ay} Buiemy 196pnqg pasibe jauiqe) sy} JaA0 Ul Buiwod aie | aseyd Joj Suinjdl Japus} Jusungd . }
“peysIqINal 8q 0} Sa.nbal YIIYM LOREPOWLIDIR BURSIXe aU} O Jed Ul pejepowWLLOdd. 89 pinom sjuspn;s g}, jsod atg| 000 508 Lol 9i-des 100U0S [e108ds IIH sApmoiD Je uoisinoid 91 1s0d
se ‘pays|dwod Buiaq |00yds [IIH sApmol) Bunsixa ay} jo ped ay} jo uoisinoid | 8seyd uo Juepuadap S| swayds Siy |
‘pauinbai aq |IMm SYI0Mm [eusajul Ajuo jey) pajedioue siy| ‘G, 494 JO pua ay} je 3oeq j
Hoda. 0} anp sI uoiepowwodde Bulisixa ay} malnal o} A|IqISes) v "G, Jaquisjdas 1oy paiinbai aie sade|d jeuonippe 6 vel oSk gl-des as34 (e) seoe(d [euoHIpPE 24T 3S
AJUO BAIEDIPUI D18 pUB JUN 3[IJOW B|gNOP B UO Paseq s}soo jualing “Ajjigises;
8y} Jo swo2INo 8y} uo Buipuadap palinbal agAew uonNn|os wWiBlUI UB YdIYyMm Joj ‘G|, Jaquiaydag oy palinbal ale . }
saoe|d |euonippe G aJe aiay] ‘G|, Aienigad Jo pus ay} Je ¥oeq anp si siy} ‘siaquinu jidnd ui asealoul 8y} 4oy pasinbal 000 0g€ 9L/S) §l-des |00yog [e10ads 19]eYyD 8y} Jo uoisuedx3
UOI}epoLILWLODD. [euohippe 8y} apinoid 0} SI 818y} [eluajod Jeym pue a)is }8|eyQ/uapi Jo mainal 0} Alljigises) v
lejol paiinbay Ag aweN joaloid
S9JON lenoaddy pasinbay

SIDIAYIS SNIHUATIHI - | XIONIddV

510z fenigad uiy Jouiqed

Page 95



[N

000052 000°052 000052 000°052 1e303-qng
"e|oym B[ 000°0GL 000°052 000°052 000°052 sdueUBUIRW Yed Jed

se umo} ay} pue syed Jed Jo uondadiad olgnd annebau e apisbuole sjesse ay) ul uoleloL}ap B i 2Jay) paje|dwiod Jou SHIoM

J| 'spJepue)s Buysixa ulejulew o} JapJo ul syied Jed BuilSIxa Jno Je S}JoM [eIpawal 8y} pue Jiedas mojje o} pasinbai }abpng
B8u10
000°629°L 000°evS 000°€¥S 000°evS 18303-qng
'spiq [nyssa2ons poddns 0} Aiessada| “sjoafoid BuloAo pue Bupjiem ‘snq jo swwelbouid ayy poddns o} 000°80¥ 000 g€l 000°9€l 000°9€} Hodsuel | ajqeureisns

s}obpnq [e20] WoJy [epded Jo Junowe Siy} PaRILWOD pun4 podsuel] djqeule}snS [ed07 pue pun4 ymolo [eoo o} piq buipuny
“ab1aws Aay) se spiezey Ajojes peos ssalppe 0} S|qe 3 Jou [IA\ “Sai|ensed pue sBuissoId peos uo suisouod| 000 |11 000°LE 000°.E 000°LE sBuisso1) ueLysapad

pue sjsanbai a1jgnd pue Jaquia|y 0} puodsal 0} 3|ge 4 jou [|IA\ “UolUSNE Jo pasu ul sjodsioy Juaplode Ajjuspl 0} sonsiels

Ajlenseo peol Jo MalAal [enuuy ‘salioe) Buissold uel)sapad Joj SJUspISal pue s1aquis|y wolj sisanbal Jo MalAal [enuuy
‘UOPUIMS Ul 92IAISS UoNewloul Jodsuel) o1jgnd apim }J0M}daU ou 3g pinom a1y “Buipuny siy) Jnoyum wa)sAs wouy 000°09 000'02 00002 000'02 suRisAg uopeuLiojul odsuel ] dland MS

MBIPUNIM 0} Paau pINopA “(sullenel] pS) wialsAs uonewlopul Hodsuel; o1jgnd [euoibal ui uonedioiued Jo 1$00 pajiWwWod [enuuy
"Buipuny |eusa)xa Joj piq o} Ayljiqe Hwi| AN “Be}s Buippiq je ob 0}] 000°00€ 000°00} 000°00} 000°00} SaWaYDS aInin4 Jo ubisaQ PadUBApY|

Apeal aq 0} paau sawayos ‘ssado.d Buippig ay) Jo ped se sawayos dn 310Mm 0} awi} Moj|e Mou jou op suoladwod Buipuny

|BUIS)X3 ISO|A “S9|BISaWI) Poys uo spiq Buipuny mojje 0) sawayds ,Apeal [aAoys, dn Buisiom punolte Ajuoud Jsquisiy s1oaey
“1eak yoea awayds paseq Ajijeso Jable| e 1oy ssadoid Buippiq annadwos buimojie Ayoud Jaquisiy 18uiged| 000°62z 000°G. 000°G. 000°G. spig - xe|\ Ajijeoo
“Ruoud jednijod pue jusuniLwod| 000°62S 000°S.} 000°G2} 000°S.} sawayds Aeso]

Jayjabo | Jabuons v "sanuoud Ajunwwod o} Buipiodoe siaquia|y [e20] Aq pajedojje aq 0} eale A)ijed0] yoes Joj ed %Gz3
S3WaYDS pajelbaju|
000°609°6 000'720°E 000°L5L°S 000'78€°e 18303-qng
“uondnisip pajeroosse pue iompau Aemybiy auy uo suopounl [eanld je ainjie)| 000°052 000°S. 000°52 000°00} BEUSEET

|eubis 0} pea| pjno yiom siy} a}a|dwod o} ainjie "oy ubisep sy puokaq Apuesyiubis Juswdinba [eubis oyjel; jo Juswade|dey
"swied| 000°5¢6 000°5.2 000°5.2 000°G.€ @oueuLjuiew Akemjoo

SoUBINSUI JO JaquINU Pasealoul Ue pue s)abpng snuaAal uo ainssaid pasealoul o} spes| siy] ‘Aemjoo) sy} ul uoljeiousiap

JayuNy Ul snsal yiom siy) 939]dwod 0) aunjie ‘sadepns yied pajelousiap Bunsixs soe|dal/iiedal 0) paiinbal syuom Aemjood
"SWIe|d 9oueINsul pajeldosse pue sajoyiod Jo Jaquuinu paseasdul| 000°0SE S 000°0S0°1 000°0S0°} 000°0SZ°}L 9oUBUIJUIB)\ PEOY JOUIN

ue pue s}abpng anuanas uo ainssaid pasealoul 0} SPes| SIY| HJOM}BU Peod S} Ul UONIOLS}OP JOUMN) Ul S)NS3J YIOM

siy) 9)9|dwod 0} ain|le4 ‘seale [euapIsal Ul SaoBUNS peod pajeloualap bulsixa aoejdal/liedas o} palinbas sylom Aemabelue)
“seipadoud [enuapisal| 000°002 000°00} 000°00} - abeulelq

pue ainjonyisesjul Aemybiy jo Buipooys Jo 3sU pasealoul Ul s)nsal syIom siy} 939|dwiod o) ainjied “ueld uonoe (SNY4T)

ABajens uswabeue\ ysiy poojd (8907 8y} Ul paluapl seale ysu ybiy ur Buipooyy sjebiiw o) sjuswanoidwi sbeureiq
‘sBuines ABJaus 0} 9)nqLIUOD Jey) SUIBlUE|[ 000°GZY 000°SCH 000°sC) 000°S.} BunybI7 1eans

@37 usios ABiaus Yyim pajly suone|[elsul MaN “SWIe|D adUBINSUl JO sadue)sul Jaybiy Jo ysu [enuajod pue sainjonys ul

UOI)eJOLIR}aP JaYNNY Ul S} NSl }JOM SIU} 9)9|dwiod o} ainjied sy ubisap Jiayy puokaq Apuesyiubis sjybi| 19a1)s Jo Juswade|day
‘sjuswalinbal uonenjen YO\ Hoddns o) spiepue)s wnwiuiw| 000°0S ) 000°0S 000°0S 000°0S SINdMN uswabeue|y uonpuo) JuswWaned

195W }snw ASAINS JO JUNOWE Sy | “UOHIPUOD YJomjau Buissasse pue Bulkanins Joj wajsAs Juswabeuew [euoneu ay) st SINDMN
"SpeoJ 9s0Jo J0 spwi| Jybram aonpouul 0} paau Jo [eluajod pasealdoul ue pue sjabpng anuanal uo| 000°05. 000°G22 000°522 000°00€ 9ouBUSUIB [eINjoNnS

ainssaid pasealoul 0} spes| os|e siy| "sliedal Jaje| Jo SIS0 Jaybiy pajeIdoSSE aY) YIIM 3IOMISU PEOJ 8Y) Ul UOKEIOLISISP Jaylny

ul s)nsaJ 3Iom siy} 8)9|dwiod 0} aunjie ‘sainjonuis Aemybiy pajelousiap Bunsixe aoejdal/redal 0) paiinbal syO0M aINONNS
“AIgessadoe paonpal pue siiedal Jaje| Jo s}s09 Jaybiy pajeloosse sy} uim 3Jomau Aem jo sjybu ayy ur uonelousiap| 000°0Z1 000°0% 000°0F 000°0% ue|d yuawanoidwi Aepn Jo sybry

JBYMN} Ul S)NSal yiom s1y) 939|dwod 0} aunjie “yJompau Aepp Jo sIybry ay) 0) ssao0e anoidwi pue ulejulew o} palinbas syJopn
"SWIe|d 92UBINSUI PajeIdosse pue sajoyjod Jo Jaquinu paseaioul ue pue s}ebpng snusAal uo| 000°6EY'€ 000VEL"L 000°L12°) 000°60°L Buissalp aoepns pue asueusjulew Aemabelue) Jolepy

alnssaid pasealtoul 0} spes| os|e siy| “siiedal Jsje| Jo s1s09 Jaybiy pajeIdoSSE Sy} YIM 3I0MISU PEOJ SY) Ul UONBIOLISISP Jayuny

ul s}|nsal iom siy} 919|dwiod 0} aunjie ‘sadeUns peol pajelouslap bulsixs soejdai/liedal o) palinbas sylom Aemabelue)
uoljewlojul Jo4 leaoaddy Jo4 35UEUUIE[ AeMUBIH
S8jON lejol 8LILL LL/9L 9L/SL awen 30afoid

LYOdSNVYL ANV SAVMHOIH - Z XION3ddV

§10Z Atenigad yiy Jouiqen

(@)

(a)+(e)

Page 96



000'8¢L'S1L 000°298°S 000v¥6°S 000°226°L ONIANNS TV.LOL

000°0S.'€ 000°0GL°€ pun4 yoig [eao7]

000'vEL'Y 000'8.€°} 000°8.¢€'} 000°'8.€°} el pajesdaul 41

000'758°L 0006812 000995°2 000'66.°C JUBIS) SdUBUSUIB d1]

ajewnsy ajewnsy pauLIyuo) Buipung

000'8€L'S1L 000°298°S 000v¥6°S 000°226°L LNINIHINOIY 139dNg TV.LOL

000°0S.°¢ - - 000°0S.°¢ |ej03-qng

497 Pajedlpap WoJj papuny g 0} SYJOM JJo duQ | 000°052°} 000'062°} Hodsuel] s|qeule}sng
3971 pajedIpap WOl papuny aq 0} S}I0M 0 auQ | 000°005 2 000°005°2 sebej[l/\ UIs}SeT 10} SJUSWaoUBYUS UoRounl 617y JO 1S9/

(0)
(@)
(e)

Page 97



00%'0SS 00Z'S6l 00Z'S6l 000°091 w3 Jad %083 ® e'd joedw| }abpng anusnay
000°088°'9 000°0¥¥'Cc | 000°0¥¥'Cc | 000°000°C Buimouiog - ||eyHoys
- - - - jejoL
jejol 8LILL LLI9L 9L/S) Buipuny
000°088°9 000‘'0¥¥‘C | 000°0¥¥‘C | 000°000°C jejol
000°000°'9 000°000'C | 000000 | 000°000°C SHIOM YA [PUl N'RY [eJsus9
000°081 000°06 000°06 uoisinold yied Jed pleipA]
000°00S 000°052 000°05¢ - Juswysiqinjey punoibhelq
000'00¢C 000°001 000001 (012 syded uiyum sabpliq) sainyonays sAemybiH UON
uonewJloyul 104 Jeaoiddy 104
jejol 8LILL LLI9L 9L/S) awe jo9foid

ALY3dO¥d ® S1ISSV - € XIANIddV

G10zZ faeniqa yiy Jauiged

Page 98



002°858°C 000926 000926 002°900°} 18301
000'+9}°L 000'88¢€ 000'88¢ 000'88¢€ jueb oyoads 54Q
00.°08 00.'08 Juesb oyioads ale) [e100g
000119l 000'8€S 000'8€S 000'8€S 19D uopuimg
pajewns3y pawLuo)
lejol 8LILL LLI9L 9LISL Buipung
002°858°C 000°926 000°926 002°900°L 1ejoL
‘suosiad pajgesip Auew 1oy} ay1| Jo Ayjenb sy} sanoidwi pue s}s0d a1ed yjesy
[enuajod saonpal ‘sjuswabuelle aied aAljeuls)je Buipiroid |12UNOD BY) JO S)SOD anuaAal |eusjod
ay} Buionpai ul sisisse ‘saioljod Auunwwo) sy} ul a1en, spoddns josfoid ay) sawoy umo alisy}
ui Buiall urewal o} suosiad pajgesip Buljqeus Ag ‘Juelb Jo pieme sy} JOAO UOIBIOSIP OU Sey [I9unod ( )
oy} souejsisse 1oy Ayijenb syueoidde pue payiuap! uSsq Sey pesu B SISYM H0EF 4o wnwixew| 000'¥9L'L 000'88¢ 000°88¢€ 000°88¢€ +94d.
juelg saljjioe pajgesiq
Kloyepuew ay} 0} ¥ 3 woly abuel ued spuels) ‘salljioe} J0oj punolb jo uoisirold sy} pue syiuiels
‘sanioe} woolyieq isijeroads ‘Buiuspim Joop ‘Buidwel [eussixa spnjoul Ued siy] “Jaidnooo psjgesip
3y} Jo spaau ay} }@aw o} Alessadau Buiaq se jsidessy ] |euoijednaoQ ue Aq papuswiuwodal
S)I0M 8s0U} AJUO puny pue pa}sa} suesw aie (UsJp|Iyd Pa|gesIp Joj 8SOoy} Uey} Jay3o)
sjuesBb yong ‘suosiad ps|gesip jo sawoy ay} jo uoneldepe sy} Joy sjuelb Aiojepuely Jo pieme ay |
‘a|qissod se Buo| se Joj a|qissod se Juspuadapul se pue sawoy
umo J1ay} ul Aeys 0} sjdoad sajqeus jeys Juswdinbs ul sjsaAul [1DUNOY Jey} ainsus o} Alessaoau suoneidepy pue
}l S@¥ewW sJeak maj IXau JOA0 UOPUIMS Ul s10}oe} olydelBowap 0} anp a1ed |eloos Jo) puewap 00208 00208 :
] swdinb3 Ajlunwwo)
ul asu pajedionue ay] ‘|1ouno) ay} Aq papuny 81ed 1o} puewSp 8y} 8o0NpaJ pue souspuadspul
sanoidwi s1aul[oal Jasl pue syi| Jiels ‘sysioy se yons juswdinb3 "ybiy surewsls swoy
e Apuspuadapul aAl| 0} 8nuiuod o} ajdoad mojje o} suoljeyedepe pue juswdinba 10} puewsp sy
"SaN||
Buljjyny Juspuadapul aAl| pue AjjIgesIp WO02I8A0 0} Wy} mo|je o} ajdoad BunoA pue uaip|iyo o}
. o . \ \ jswdinb3 Ajunwwo)
swdinba pue Jieyosj@aym Buipinosd punole osje si Joslold ‘Buiag|am pue yjeay ajdoad spoddns| 000'vL9'L 000'8€S 000'8€S 000'8€S
ylesH pue sileyo|saypa
pue s82IAISS 8JED }NPE UO puewsp sy} seonpal swoy je Ajjuspuadapul aAl| 0} ajdoad Buimoy
‘Buimolb si jeydsoy wouy abieyosip poddns 0y Juswdinba AJlunwwod pue siieys@aym Joy puewaq
uoljew.oul 104 reaoaddy 104
Sjuswwo leyol 8LILL _ LLI9L 9gLiSL awe joafoid

AJ3IHLO ANV S317d03d ¥3A710 - ¥ XIANIddV

510z Arenugag ypp Jouiqed

Page 99



This page is intentionally left blank

Page 100



Cabinet 4™ February 2015 Appendix 5
Swindon Growth Deal Allocations
Confirmed Provisional
Scheme name 2015/16 16/17 — 20/21 LGF total

£m £m £m
Eastern Villages 2.5 46.2 48.7
Sustainable Transport 1.25 2.5 3.75
Rapid Transit 9.9 9.9
Wichelstowe Western 22.9 22.9

Access

M4 Junction 15 3.7 3.7
M4 Junction 16 5.92 5.92
Total 3.75 91.12 94.87

Page 101




This page is intentionally left blank

Page 102



Appendix 6

Cabinet 4™ February 2015
DCLG Capacity Funding
New Eastern Villages sl SRSl FI-.:-:(:?I!I
9 2014115 £ | 2015/16 £ g
Request £
Planning Officer 22,500 45,000 70,000
Highways Development 25,000 50,000 75,000
Management Officer
Major Projects Transport 45,000 90,000 135,000
Engineer (Client Side) and
Project Manager
Infrastructure Delivery and 20,000 40,000 60,000
Sustainability Coordinator
Highways scheme 150,000 200,000 350,000
development
Master planning 25,000 25,000 50,000
Development Economics and 25,000 25,000 50,000
viability
Total 312,500 | 475,000 | 787,500

Page 103




This page is intentionally left blank

Page 104



Treasury Strategy Statement 2015/16

Cabinet Date: 4" February 2015

Author: Cabinet Member for Finance

Board Director, Resources

Wards: All
Locality Affected: All
Parishes Affected: All

1.

1.1.

1.2.

2.1,

2.2.

2.3.

3.2.

Purpose and Reasons

To report the Treasury Management Strategy for 2015/16, including Prudential
Indicators up to 2016/17, the Annual Investment Strategy, and the Minimum
Revenue Provision Policy Statement.

The effective management of financial resources through robust financial
management processes underpins the Council’s ability to achieve its plans and
priorities.

Recommendations

Cabinet is recommended to:

Recommend the Treasury Management Strategy, Minimum Revenue Provision
Policy and Prudential Indicators, as set out in Appendix 1, for approval by Full
Council on 23" February 2015,

Note the position with regard to the Council’s bankers, as detailed at paragraphs
3.11 and 3.12,

Note the position on investment returns detailed in paragraphs 3.13 to 3.16, and
increase investment periods to a maximum of 2 years as detailed in the Treasury
Management Strategy.

Treasury Strategy

Treasury management is defined by the CIPFA Code of Practice for Treasury
Management as the “management of the local authority’s investments and cash
flows, its banking, money market and capital market transactions; the effective
control of the risks associated with those activities; and the pursuit of optimum
performance consistent with those risks”.

The Council is required to operate a balanced budget, which broadly means that
cash raised during the year will meet cash expenditure. Part of the treasury
management operation is to ensure that this cash flow is adequately planned,
with cash being available when it is needed. Available cash (resulting from the
Council’'s day-to-day cash management processes) is invested in low risk

Further information on the subject of this report can be obtained from Paul Smith on
Direct Dial N0.463976, or Email psmith2@swindon.gov.uk.

Page 105



Treasury Strategy Statement 2015/16

Cabinet Date: 4" February 2015

3.3.

3.4.

3.5.

3.6.

3.7.

3.8.

counterparties or instruments commensurate with the Council’s low risk appetite,
providing adequate liquidity initially before considering investment return.

The second main function of the treasury management service is the funding of
the Council’'s Capital plans. These capital plans provide a guide to the borrowing
needs of the Council, essentially the longer-term cash flow planning to ensure
that the Council can meet its capital spending obligations. This management of
longer-term cash may involve arranging long or short-term loans, or using longer-
term cash flow surpluses temporarily in lieu of new loans (e.g. related to reserves
held for future purposes and working capital surpluses). On occasion, any debt
previously drawn may be restructured to meet Council risk or cost objectives,
subject to the cost of so doing.

The Council is required to receive and approve, as a minimum, three main
reports each year, which incorporate a variety of polices, estimates, and actuals.
These reports are required to be adequately scrutinised before being
recommended to the Council. Under the Council’s Constitution, the Audit
Committee scrutinises the treasury management activities undertaken by the
Board Director Resources and his team, including compliance with agreed
policies.

A Treasury Management Strategy Statement (This report) - The first, and most
important report covers:

3.5.1. The Capital spending plans (including prudential indicators) based on
Cabinet and Council decisions;

3.5.2. A Minimum Revenue Provision (MRP) Policy (which details how capital
expenditure funded by borrowing is charged to the revenue budget over
time);

3.5.3. The Treasury Management Strategy, as set out in Appendix 1, which
details how the investments and borrowings are managed overall,
including treasury indicators; and

3.5.4. An Investment Strategy, which sets the parameters around how
investments are to be managed on a day-to-day basis.

A Mid-Year Treasury Management Report — This updates Members on
Treasury Management performance for the first half of the financial year.

An Annual Treasury Management Report — This details the full year Treasury
activity and performance.

The Treasury Management Strategy for 2015/16 covers three main areas:

. Capital Issues:

Further information on the subject of this report can be obtained from Paul Smith on
Direct Dial N0.463976, or Email psmith2@swindon.gov.uk.

Page 106



Treasury Strategy Statement 2015/16

Cabinet Date: 4" February 2015

3.9.

3.10.

3.11.

3.12.

3.13.

3.14.

. the capital plans and the prudential indicators;
. the MRP strategy.

Treasury Management Issues:

. the current treasury position;

. the treasury indicators which will limit the treasury risk and activities of the
Council;

. the prospect for interest rates;

. the borrowing strategy;

o the policy on borrowing in advance of need;

. debt rescheduling;

. the investment strategy;

. the creditworthiness policy; and

o the policy on use of external service providers.

These elements cover the requirements of the Local Government Act 2003, the
CIFPA Prudential Code, the CLG MRP Guidance, the CIPFA Treasury
Management Code and the CLG Investment Guidance.

Banking Arrangements

In reported to Cabinet previously, the Council has been using the Co-Operative
Bank (the Co-Op) as its main banker, with the current contract running until
March 31%1 2015,

Officers have carried out a full procurement to secure new banking arrangements
as soon as practicable and Lloyds Bank was appointed as the preferred supplier
in late 2014. At the time of writing the report, some Lloyds accounts were up and
running with the intention that the full service is operational by March 2015.

Investment Returns

The annual Investment Strategy details priorities when making Investments of
surplus funds as security first, liquidity second, followed by return on investment.
These priorities follow both CIPFA and DCLG guidance.

The impact of this guidance is that the potential return on investments is
secondary to security and liquidity and these parameters have a significant
impact on the interest rate achieved by the Council in comparison with some

Further information on the subject of this report can be obtained from Paul Smith on
Direct Dial N0.463976, or Email psmith2@swindon.gov.uk.

Page 107



Treasury Strategy Statement 2015/16

Cabinet Date: 4" February 2015

3.15.

3.16.

5.1.

5.2.

5.3.

other bodies and individuals as it restricts both to whom the Council can lend,
and for how long.

The current Investment Strategy currently restricts investments to a maximum of
one year, which was a move to mitigate the volatile bank situation over the last
few years. This situation has eased somewhat and therefore the 2015/16
strategy proposed in this report extends the maximum investment period to 2
years. Whilst this will not affect the quality of the counterparties to whom the
Council can lend, it may enable improved investment returns. It is not
recommended to increase this maximum limit beyond this period as interest rates
are likely to rise. The Policy also recommends that investments > 1 year are
limited to £20m in total (approximately 1/3™ of the average portfolio) and £10m to
any one Counterparty. The exact length of any investment will, as always, be
based on rates available at that time, interest rate forecasts, and forward liquidity
requirements.

The Council is part of a benchmarking club, which consists of around 12 to13
other public bodies in the West and Wales, including a variety of Local
Authorities, Fire Authorities etc. As at the date of the last benchmarking exercise,
approximately half of these bodies had investments out for a period in excess of
12 months. Capita Asset Services, our treasury advisors have advised that it is
fairly typical for authorities to lend beyond one year, but it is of course at the
discretion of individual authorities to set their own policies around this.

Alternative Options
Any alternative options for specific areas are set out within the report.
Implications, Diversity Impact Assessment and Risk Management

Financial and Procurement Implications

These have been reflected in the body of the report.

Legal and Human Rights Implications

All legal and human rights considerations have been taken fully into account in
compiling this report. It is considered that the recommendations of this report are
compatible with Convention rights.

All Other Implications (including Staff, Sustainability, Health, Rural, Crime and
Disorder)

There are no such direct implications.

Further information on the subject of this report can be obtained from Paul Smith on
Direct Dial N0.463976, or Email psmith2@swindon.gov.uk.

Page 108



Treasury Strategy Statement 2015/16

Cabinet Date: 4" February 2015

5.4.

7.1.

8.1.

Diversity Impact Assessment

A Diversity Impact Assessment (DIA) is not relevant to this report as this is a
regulatory report, which covers the Councils treasury management processes
and doesn't directly affect any services.

Consultees

The Board Director, Resources (Section 151 Officer) and Director of Law and
Democratic Services (Monitoring Officer) are consulted in respect of all reports.

Background Papers and Appendices
Appendix 1 — Treasury Management Strategy
Key Decision/Decision in Forward Plan

This is not a key decision for the Cabinet (as the approval of the full Council is
required) it is included in the Cabinet Work Programme and Forward Plan for
February 2014.

Further information on the subject of this report can be obtained from Paul Smith on
Direct Dial N0.463976, or Email psmith2@swindon.gov.uk.

Page 109



This page is intentionally left blank

Page 110



Appendix 1- Treasury Management Strategy 2015/16

Cabinet Date: 4™ February 2015

TREASURY MANAGEMENT STRATEGY
2015/16

Swinbon

Further information on the subject of this report can be obtained from BOROUGH COUNCIL
Paul Smith on Direct Dial No. 463976 or Email psmith2@swindon.gov.uk

Page 111



Appendix 1- Treasury Management Strategy 2015/16

Cabinet Date: 4™ February 2015
Contents:

1. Current Portfolio Position

2. Prospect for Interest Rates and Economic Outlook

3. Minimum Revenue Provision Policy Statement

4. Borrowing Strategy

5. Investment Policy, Creditworthiness Policy and Investment

Strategy

e Annex 1 - Prudential Indicators

e Annex 2 - Credit and Counterparty Risk Management, Specified and
Non- Specified Investments

Further information on the subject of this report can be obtained from
Paul Smith on Direct Dial No. 463976 or Email psmith2@swindon.gov.uk

Page 112



Appendix 1- Treasury Management Strategy 2015/16

Cabinet Date: 4™ February 2015

1 Current Portfolio Position

1.1 The capital expenditure plans set in Annex 1 to Appendix 1

summarises the Councils current and future plans. The treasury
management function ensures that the Council’'s cash is organised in
accordance with the relevant professional codes, so that sufficient
cash is available to meet this service activity. This will involve both the
organisation of the cash flow and, where capital plans require, the
organisation of appropriate borrowing facilities.

1.2 The Council’s actual treasury portfolio position at 31 March 2013, with

forward projections are summarised below. The table shows the actual
external borrowing (both relating to the general fund and the HRA),
against the borrowing requirement (shown through the Capital
Financing Requirement or “CFR”), highlighting any over or under
borrowing. The CFR represents the amount of borrowing required to
fund capital expenditure, but not yet taken out.

Table 1 - Portfolio position forecasts

14/15 15/16 16/17 17118
£'000's £'000's £'000's £'000's
Gross Borrowing b/fwd 266,564 255,058 268,557 312,056
New Borroiwng - 20,000 50,000 60,000
Maturing Debt - 11,506 - 6,501 - 6,501 - 1,501
Gross Borrowing c/fwd 255,058 268,657 312,066 370,555
Net Investments c/fwd - 70,000 - 75,000 - 80,000 - 80,000
Net Borrowing c/fwd 185,058 193,557 232,056 290,555
CFR 476,696 475510 484259 502,722

Less PFlliabilities - 55,541 - 54,156 - 52,810 - 51,280

Net Borrowing Requirement 421,155 421,354 431,449 451,442

(Under)/Over borrowing - 236,097 -227,797 -199,393 -160,887

Further information on the subject of this report can be obtained from
Paul Smith on Direct Dial No. 463976 or Email psmith2@swindon.gov.uk

Page 113



Appendix 1- Treasury Management Strategy 2015/16

Cabinet Date: 4™ February 2015

2 Prospects for Interest Rates and Economic Outlook

2.1 The Council has appointed Capita Asset Services (formerly Sector
Group) as its treasury advisor and part of their service is to assist the
Council to formulate a view on interest rates. The following table gives

the Capita central view.

Table 2 — Prospects for Interest Rates

Annual Bank Rate PWLB Borrowing Rates %
Average % % (including certainty rate adjustment)
5 year 25 year 50 year

Dec 2014 0.50 2.50 3.90 3.90
Mar 2015 0.50 2.70 4.00 4.00
Jun 2015 0.75 2.70 4.10 4.10
Sep 2015 0.75 2.80 4.30 4.30
Dec 2015 1.00 2.90 4.40 4.40
Mar 2016 1.00 3.00 4.50 4.50
Jun 2016 1.25 3.10 4.60 4.60
Sep 2016 1.25 3.20 4.70 4.70
Dec 2016 1.50 3.30 4.70 4.70
Mar 2017 1.50 3.40 4.80 4.80
Jun 2017 1.75 3.50 4.80 4.80
Sep 2017 2.00 3.50 4.90 4.90
Dec 2017 2.25 3.50 4.90 4.90
Mar 2018 2.50 3.50 5.00 5.00

2.2 Until 2013, the economic recovery in the UK since 2008 had been the

worst and slowest recovery in recent history. However, growth has
rebounded during 2013 and especially during 2014, to surpass all
expectations, propelled by recovery in consumer spending and the
housing market. Forward surveys are also currently very positive in
indicating that growth prospects are strong for 2015, particularly in the
services and construction sectors. However, growth in the
manufacturing sector and in exports has weakened during 2014 due to
poor growth in the Eurozone.

2.3 There does need to be a significant rebalancing of the economy away

from consumer spending to manufacturing, business investment and
exporting in order for this initial stage in the recovery to become more
firmly established. One drag on the economy is that wage inflation has
been lower than CPI inflation so eroding disposable income and living
standards, although income tax cuts have mitigated this to some
extent. This therefore means that labour productivity must improve
significantly for this situation to be corrected by warranting increases in

Further information on the subject of this report can be obtained from
Paul Smith on Direct Dial No. 463976 or Email psmith2@swindon.gov.uk

Page 114



Appendix 1- Treasury Management Strategy 2015/16

Cabinet Date: 4™ February 2015

pay rates. In addition, the encouraging rate at which unemployment
has been falling must eventually feed through into pressure for wage
increases, though current views on the amount of hidden slack in the
labour market probably means that this is unlikely to happen in the
near future.The US, the main world economy, faces similar debt
problems to the UK, but thanks to reasonable growth, cuts in
government expenditure and tax rises, the annual government deficit
has been halved from its peak without appearing to do too much
damage to growth.

2.4 Borrowing interest rates have been volatile during 2014 as alternating
bouts of good and bad news have promoted optimism, and then
pessimism, in financial markets. During July to October 2014, a
building accumulation of negative news has led to an overall trend of
falling rates. The policy of avoiding new borrowing by running down
spare cash balances has served well over the last few years.
However, this needs to be carefully reviewed to avoid incurring higher
borrowing costs in later times, when authorities will not be able to
avoid new borrowing to finance new capital expenditure and/or to
refinance maturing debt;

2.5 There will remain a cost of carry to any new borrowing which causes
an increase in investments as this will incur a revenue loss between
borrowing costs and investment returns.

3 Minimum Revenue Provision Policy Statement

3.1 The Council is required to charge an element of the accumulated
General Fund capital spend each year (measured through the CFR) to
revenue (the minimum revenue provision or "MRP”), although it is also
allowed to undertake additional voluntary payments if required.

3.2 CLG Regulations have been issued which require the full Council to
approve an MRP Statement in advance of each year. A variety of
options are provided to Councils, as long as there is a prudent
provision. The Council is recommended to approve the following MRP
Statement:

“For capital expenditure incurred before 1 April 2008 or which in the
future will be Supported Capital Expenditure, the MRP will be based
on the CFR. This option provides for an approximate 4% reduction in
the borrowing need (CFR) each year. From 1 April 2008 for all
unsupported borrowing the MRP will be based on the estimated life of
the assets, in accordance with the regulations.

MRP in relation to capital expenditure funded through borrowing
incurred on the Wichelstowe project, will be deferred and the liability
repaid through future capital receipts from the site. Should there be a
shortfall between the debt and eventual receipts, the balance will incur
an annual MRP charge.

Further information on the subject of this report can be obtained from
Paul Smith on Direct Dial No. 463976 or Email psmith2@swindon.gov.uk

Page 115



Appendix 1- Treasury Management Strategy 2015/16

Cabinet Date: 4™ February 2015

This methodology will also be applied to other capital expenditure
funded from borrowing where there is an intention to repay the
borrowing from future receipts and where there is a strong likelihood
that this will happen”

3.3 No revenue charge is currently required for the HRA. However under
HRA reform the HRA will be required to charge depreciation on its
assets, which will have a revenue effect. In order to address any
possible adverse impact on the HRA revenue budget, regulations will
allow the Major Repairs Allowance (MRA) to be used as a proxy for
depreciation for the first five years, which will neutralise any revenue
impact. MRA will continue be applied as a proxy for depreciation in
2013/14.

4 Borrowing Strategy

4.1 The Council is currently maintaining an under-borrowed position. This
means that the there is a shortfall between the amount of long-term
loans required to fund capital expenditure funded through borrowing
(known as the Capital Financing Requirement or “CFR”), and the
actual level of external taken out. The difference is known as “Internal
Borrowing” and represents the temporary funding of capital
expenditure from the Council’s reserves, balances and working capital
due to it currently being a cheaper option while investment rates are
low.

4.2 While the council will maintain an under borrowed position on the
General Fund (the HRA is fully borrowed up to the CFR), the Council
will at some point need borrow to fund its current Capital Programme
as the level of available cash balances reduces. Whilst taking long-
term external borrowing will obviously increase the Councils debt
charges, the benefit is in the medium to longer term as rates are
currently still low historically.

4.3 Against this background and the risks within the economic forecast,
caution will be adopted with the 2015/16 treasury operations. The
Board Director Resources will monitor interest rates in financial
markets and adopt a pragmatic approach to changing circumstances:

o if it was felt that there was a significant risk of a sharp FALL in
long and short term rates (e.g. due to a marked increase of risks
around relapse into recession or of risks of deflation), then long
term borrowings will be postponed, and potential rescheduling
from fixed rate funding into short term borrowing will be
considered.

o if it was felt that there was a significant risk of a much sharper
RISE in long and short term rates than that currently forecast,
perhaps arising from a greater than expected increase in the

Further information on the subject of this report can be obtained from
Paul Smith on Direct Dial No. 463976 or Email psmith2@swindon.gov.uk

Page 116



Appendix 1- Treasury Management Strategy 2015/16

Cabinet Date: 4™ February 2015

anticipated rate to US tapering of asset purchases, or in world
economic activity or a sudden increase in inflation risks, then the
portfolio position will be re-appraised with the likely action that
fixed rate funding will be drawn whilst interest rates are still lower
than they will be in the next few years

Borrowing in Advance of Need

4.4 The Council will not borrow more than or in advance of its needs,
purely in order to profit from the investment of the extra sums
borrowed. Any decision to borrow in advance will be within forward
approved Capital Financing Requirement estimates, and will be
considered carefully to ensure that value for money can be
demonstrated and that the Council can ensure the security of such
funds.

Loan Re-scheduling

4.5 As As short term borrowing rates will be considerably cheaper than
longer term fixed interest rates, there may be potential opportunities to
generate savings by switching from long term debt to short term debt.
However, these savings will need to be considered in the light of the
current treasury position and the size of the cost of debt repayment
(premiums incurred).

4.6 The reasons for any rescheduling to take place will include:

o the generation of cash savings and / or discounted cash flow
savings;

o helping to fulfil the treasury strategy;

o enhance the balance of the portfolio (amend the maturity profile
and/or the balance of volatility).

4.7 Consideration will also be given to identify if there is any residual
potential for making savings by running down investment balances to
repay debt prematurely as short term rates on investments are likely to
be lower than rates paid on current debt.

4.8 All rescheduling will be reported to the Cabinet at the earliest meeting
following its action

5 Investment Policy, Creditworthiness Policy and Investment Strategy
Introduction: changes to credit rating methodology

5.1 The main rating agencies (Fitch, Moody’s and Standard & Poor’s)
have, through much of the financial crisis, provided some institutions
with a ratings “uplift” due to implied levels of sovereign support. More
recently, in response to the evolving regulatory regime, the agencies
have indicated they may remove these “uplifts”. This process may

Further information on the subject of this report can be obtained from
Paul Smith on Direct Dial No. 463976 or Email psmith2@swindon.gov.uk

Page 117



Appendix 1- Treasury Management Strategy 2015/16

Cabinet Date: 4™ February 2015

commence during 2014/15 and / or 2015/16. The actual timing of the
changes is still subject to discussion, but this does mean immediate
changes to the credit methodology are required.

5.2 It is important to stress that the rating agency changes do not reflect
any changes in the underlying status of the institution or credit
environment, merely the implied level of sovereign support that has
been built into ratings through the financial crisis. The eventual
removal of implied sovereign support will only take place when the
regulatory and economic environments have ensured that financial
institutions are much stronger and less prone to failure in a financial
crisis.

5.3 Both Fitch and Moody’s provide “standalone” credit ratings for financial
institutions. For Fitch, it is the Viability Rating, while Moody’s has the
Financial Strength Rating. Due to the future removal of sovereign
support from institution assessments, both agencies have suggested
going forward that these will be in line with their respective Long Term
ratings. As such, there is no point monitoring both Long Term and
these “standalone” ratings.

5.4 Furthermore, Fitch has already begun assessing its Support ratings,
with a clear expectation that these will be lowered to 5, which is
defined as “A bank for which there is a possibility of external support,
but it cannot be relied upon.” With all institutions likely to drop to these
levels, there is little to no differentiation to be had by assessing
Support ratings.

5.5 As a result of these rating agency changes, the credit element of our
future methodology will focus solely on the Short and Long Term
ratings of an institution. “Rating Watch” and Outlook information will
continue to be assessed where it relates to these categories. This is
the same process for Standard & Poor’s that we have always taken,
but a change to the use of Fitch and Moody’s ratings. Furthermore, we
will continue to utilise CDS (“Credit Default Swap”) prices as an
overlay to ratings in our new methodology.

Investment Policy

5.6 The Council’s investment policy has regard to the CLG’s Guidance on
Local Government Investments (“the Guidance”) and the 2011 revised
CIPFA Treasury Management in Public Services Code of Practice and
Cross Sectoral Guidance Notes (“the CIPFA TM Code”). The Council’s
investment priorities will be security first, liquidity second, followed by
return on investment.

5.7 In accordance with the above, and in order to minimise the risk to
investments, the Council has below clearly stipulated the minimum
acceptable credit quality of counterparties for inclusion on the lending
list. The creditworthiness methodology used to create the counterparty
list fully accounts for the ratings and watches published by all three

Further information on the subject of this report can be obtained from
Paul Smith on Direct Dial No. 463976 or Email psmith2@swindon.gov.uk

Page 118



Appendix 1- Treasury Management Strategy 2015/16

Cabinet Date: 4™ February 2015

ratings agencies with a full understanding of what the ratings reflect in
the eyes of each agency. Using the Capita ratings service, banks’
ratings are monitored on a real time basis with knowledge of any
changes notified electronically as the agencies notify modifications.

5.8 Further, the Council’s officers recognise that ratings should not be the
sole determinant of the quality of an institution and that it is important
to continually assess and monitor the financial sector and in relation to
the economic and political environments in which institutions operate.
The assessment will also take account of information that reflects the
opinion of the markets. To this end the Council will engage with its
advisors to maintain a monitor on market pricing such as “Credit
Default Swaps” (similar to insurance policies around debt default) and
overlay that information on top of the credit ratings. This is
encapsulated within the credit methodology provided by the advisors.

5.9 Other information sources used will include the financial press, share
price and other such information pertaining to the banking sector in
order to establish the most robust scrutiny process on the suitability of
potential investment counterparties. The aim of the strategy is to
generate a list of highly creditworthy counterparties which will also
enable diversification and thus avoidance of concentration risk. The
intention of the strategy is to provide security of investment and
minimisation of risk. Investment instruments identified for use in the
financial year are listed in Annex 2 under the ‘Specified’ and ‘Non-
Specified’ Investments categories. Counterparty limits will be as set
through the Council’'s Treasury Management Practices & Schedules.

Creditworthiness Policy

5.10 This Council applies the creditworthiness service provided by
Capita Asset Services. This service employs sophisticated modelling
approach utilising credit ratings from the three main credit rating
agencies - Fitch, Moodys and Standard and Poors. The credit ratings
of counterparties are supplemented with additional data to provide a
weighted scoring system for which the end product is a series of
colour coded bands which indicate the relative creditworthiness of
counterparties. These colour codes are used by the Council to
determine the duration for investments.

5.11 Our creditworthiness service uses a wider array of information than
just primary ratings and by using a risk weighted scoring system, does
not give undue preponderance to just one agency’s ratings.

512 The criteria for providing a pool of high quality investment
counterparties (both Specified and Non-specified investments) is:

Further information on the subject of this report can be obtained from
Paul Smith on Direct Dial No. 463976 or Email psmith2@swindon.gov.uk

Page 119



Appendix 1- Treasury Management Strategy 2015/16

Cabinet Date: 4™ February 2015

e Banks - good credit quality - the Council will only use banks
within the parameters of the creditworthiness service provided
by Capita

e The Council’'s own banker for transactional purposes if the bank
falls below the above criteria.

¢ Building societies - The Council will use all societies which meet
the ratings for banks outlined above;

e Money Market Funds - The council will use AAA rated Money
Markey Funds

e UK Government
e Local authorities, parish councils etc.

e Supranational institutions (See Annex 2 for Details)

Investment Strategy

5.13 In-house funds. Investments will be made with reference to the
core balance and cash flow requirements and the outlook for short-
term interest rates (i.e. rates for investments up to 12 months).

5.14 Investment returns expectations. Bank Rate is forecast to
remain unchanged at 0.5% before starting to rise around June 2016.
Bank Rate forecasts for financial year ends (March) are:

e 2015/16 1.00%
o 2016/17 1.50%
e 2017/18 2.50%

The suggested budgeted investment earnings rates for returns on
investments placed for periods up to 100 days during each financial year
for the next three years are as follows:

e 2015/16 0.90%

e 2016/17 1.50%
e 2017/18 2.00%

Investment Periods

Investment periods are currently restricted to no longer than 12
months, which was primarily introduced in order to limit exposure to
market risk, particular in the light of bank failures. These risks have
reduced substantially over the past 12 months and therefore the
strategy for 15/16 is to increase the maximum lending period to 24

Further information on the subject of this report can be obtained from
Paul Smith on Direct Dial No. 463976 or Email psmith2@swindon.gov.uk

Page 120



Appendix 1- Treasury Management Strategy 2015/16

Cabinet Date: 4™ February 2015

months in order to attract better returns at no additional risk. Lending
to counterparties will still be in line with the creditworthiness policy
detailed above and recommended by Capita and it is proposed to limit
these to a total of £20m. Any investments to banks and building
societies for a period in excess of 365 days would be classed as a
“non-specified investment” as detailed in Annex 2 to this strategy.

6 Policy on the use of external service providers

6.1 The Council uses Capita Asset Services as its external treasury

management advisors. The Council recognises that responsibility for
treasury management decisions remains with the Council at all times
and will ensure that undue reliance is not placed upon our external
service providers. It also recognises that there is value in employing
external providers of treasury management services in order to
acquire access to specialist skills and resources. The Council will
ensure that the terms of their appointment and the methods by which
their value will be assessed are properly agreed and documented, and
subjected to regular review.

Annexes

e Annex 1 - Prudential Indicators.
e Annex 2 - Credit and Counterparty Risk Management, Specified and

Non- Specified Investments

Key Decision / Decision in Forward Plan
This is not a key decision for the Cabinet (as the approval of the full
Council is required) and is included in the Cabinet Forward Plan

Further information on the subject of this report can be obtained from
Paul Smith on Direct Dial No. 463976 or Email psmith2@swindon.gov.uk

Page 121



This page is intentionally left blank

Page 122



Treasury Management Strategy 2015/16 Appendix 1- Annex 1

Cabinet Date: 4" February 2015

Annex 1 — Prudential Indicators

1 Capital Indicators

1.1 The Council’s capital expenditure plans are a key driver of treasury
management activity. The outputs from capital expenditure plans are
reflected in prudential indicators, which are designed to assist the
Members overview and confirm capital expenditure plans.

Table 1 - Capital Expenditure Projections

2015/16 2016/17 2017/18
Capital Expenditure £'000 £'000 £'000
General Fund Approved 66,000 - -
General Fund Estimated New 20,660 41,793 26,713
HRA Approved 15,000 - -
HRA Estimated New 17,800 16,800 16,800
Total 119,461 58,593 43,513

1.2 The figures in this indicator (General Fund approved) include an
assessment of the level of re-phasing of the 2014/15 GF and HRA
capital programmes.

1.3 The second prudential indicator is the Council’s Capital Financing
Requirement (CFR). The CFR is simply a measure of the total
historic outstanding capital expenditure which has not yet been paid
for from either revenue or capital resources (such as grant, S106 etc.)
and is therefore funded from either external loans or from internal
borrowing (the temporary use of balances, reserves and working
capital)

1.4 It is essentially a measure of the Council’'s underlying need to borrow
to fund capital expenditure. Any capital expenditure above, which is
not immediately funded from existing resources, will increase the CFR.
Details of the Council’s projections for actual external debt compared
to the CFR are contained in table 1 of the main Strategy. Note the
figures are estimates, not commitments.

Further information on the subject of this report can be obtained from
Paul Smith on Direct Dial No. 463976 or Email psmith2@swindon.gov.uk

Page 123



Treasury Management Strategy 2015/16 Appendix 1- Annex 1

Cabinet Date: 4" February 2015

Table 2 Capital Financing Requirement

General Fund 14/15 15/16 16/17 17118

CFR b/fwd 270,575 285623 290,822 295917
Spend from borrowing 19,548 10,000 10,000 10,000
Less MRP - 4500 - 4801 - 4905 - 5,007
Sub-total 285,623 290,822 295917 300,910
Add PFI Liability 55,541 54,156 52,810 51,280
Closing CFR incl PFI 341,164 344978 348,727 352,190
HRA 14/15 15/16 16/17 17118

CFR b/fwd 140,532 135532 130,532 135,532
Spend from borrowing - - 10,000 20,000
Less MRP - 5000 - 5000 - 5,000 - 5,000
Closing CFR 135,532 130,532 135532 150,532
Total CFR 476696 475510 484259 502,722

2 Affordability Indicators

2.1 Prudential indicators are required to assess the affordability of the
capital investment plans. These provide an indication of the impact of
the capital investment plans and subsequent finance costs on the
Council's overall finances. Table 4 calculates the impact of new
approvals funded from borrowing on the tax payer, based on
approvals required in the February Cabinet Report.

Table 3 - Estimate of the ratio of financing costs to net revenue stream

14/15 15/16 17118 18/19
General Fund 10.1% 11.1% 12.0% 12.6%
HRA 39.0% 38.2% 38.1% 37.4%

Further information on the subject of this report can be obtained from
Paul Smith on Direct Dial No. 463976 or Email psmith2@swindon.gov.uk

Page 124



Treasury Management Strategy 2015/16 Appendix 1- Annex 1

Cabinet Date: 4" February 2015
Table 4 - Incremental impact of capital investment decisions on the band D
Council Tax
2014/15 2015/16 2016/17 2017/18
Estimate | Estimate Estimate Estimate
£ £ £ £
Current Approved
Programme 5.16 15.90 15.67 15.45
New Proposals 0.00 0.52 1.60 1.58

3 Borrowing Indicators

3.1 The Operational Boundary. This is the limit beyond which external

borrowing is not normally expected to exceed. This limit reflects the
Councils current estimated debt position, with the assumption that
internal borrowing will be reduced as new external borrowing in
introduced of £115m (net of maturing debt) over the next 3 years
(E13m, £44m, £45m). The boundary also includes a further
contingency of £20m.

Table 5 - Operational Boundary

Op Boundary 15/16 16/17 17118

Debt 288,557 332,056 390,555
Other Long Term Liabilities 54,156 52,810 51,280
Total 342,713 384,866 441,835

3.2 The Authorised Limit for external borrowing. A further key

prudential indicator, this represents a control on the maximum level of
borrowing. This represents a limit beyond which external borrowing is
prohibited. This has been set to reflect the Council’s estimate of the
Capital Financing Requirement for borrowing, and for other long term
liabilities (PFlI and other leases) at £5m above the Operational
Boundary (i.e. the expected level)

Table 6 - Authorised Limit

Authorised Limit for External Debt 15/16 1617 17118

Borrowing 421,354 431,449 451,442
Other Long Term Liabilities 59,156 57,810 56,280
TOTAL 480,510 489,259 507,722

Further information on the subject of this report can be obtained from
Paul Smith on Direct Dial No. 463976 or Email psmith2@swindon.gov.uk

Page 125



Treasury Management Strategy 2015/16 Appendix 1- Annex 1

Cabinet Date: 4" February 2015

4 Activity Limit Indicators

4.1 There are three debt related treasury activity limits. The purpose of
these are to restrain the activity of the treasury function within certain
limits, thereby managing risk and reducing the impact of any adverse
movement in interest rates. However, if these are set to be too
restrictive they will impair the opportunities to reduce costs / improve
performance. The indicators are:

« Upper limits on variable interest rate exposure. This identifies a
maximum limit for variable interest rate loans ( based upon the
debt position net of investments)

« Upper limits on fixed interest rate exposure. This is similar to the
previous indicator and covers a maximum limit on fixed interest
rates loans;

« Maturity structure of borrowing. These gross limits are set to

reduce the Council’'s exposure to large fixed rate sums falling due
for refinancing in a single period,;

Table 7-Treasury Management Activity Limits

£m 2015116 | 2016/17 | 2017/18

Interest rate Exposures

Upper Upper Upper
Limits on fixed interest 100% 100% 100%
rates based on net debt
Limits on variable interest 30% 30% 30%

rates based on net debt

Maturity Structure of fixed interest rate borrowing 2014/15

Lower Upper
Under 12 months 0% 15%
12 months to 2 years 0% 30%
2 years to 5 years 0% 40%
5 years to 10 years 0% 40%
10 years and above 0% 80%
In any 10 year period above 10 years 0% 50%

4.2 The maximum amount the council will invest for more than 1 year is
set out in the table below/;

Maximum principal sums invested > 364 days

£m [ 2015116 | 2016117 | 2017/18

Further information on the subject of this report can be obtained from
Paul Smith on Direct Dial No. 463976 or Email psmith2@swindon.gov.uk

Page 126




Treasury Management Strategy 2015/16 Appendix 1- Annex 1

Cabinet Date: 4" February 2015
Principal sums invested > £20m £20m £20m
364 days

Further information on the subject of this report can be obtained from
Paul Smith on Direct Dial No. 463976 or Email psmith2@swindon.gov.uk

Page 127



This page is intentionally left blank

Page 128



Treasury Management Strategy 2015/16 - Appendix 1 Annex 2

Cabinet Date: 4™ February 2015

Annex 2 — Credit and Counterparty Risk Management, Specified and
Non- Specified Investments

1 Treasury Management Practices

1.1 The CLG issued Investment Guidance in 2010, and this forms the
structure of the Council’s policy.

1.2 The key intention of the Guidance is to maintain the current
requirement for councils to invest prudently, and that priority is given to
security and liquidity before yield. In order to facilitate this objective
the guidance requires this Council to have regard to the CIPFA
publication Treasury Management in the Public Services: Code of
Practice and Cross-Sectoral Guidance Notes. This Council adopted
the Code on the 1% April 2008 and will apply its principles to all
investment activity. In accordance with the Code, the Board Director —
Resources has produced its Treasury Management Practices (TMPs).
This part covering investment counterparty policy requires approval
each year.

1.3 The key requirements of both the Code and the investment guidance
are to set an annual investment strategy, as part of its annual treasury
strategy for the following year, covering the identification and approval
of following:

e The strategy guidelines for choosing and placing investments,
particularly non-specified investments.

e The principles to be used to determine the maximum periods for
which funds can be committed.

o Specified investments that the Council will use. These are high
security (i.e. high credit rating, although this is defined by the
Council, and no guidelines are given), and high liquidity
investments in sterling and with a maturity of no more than a
year.

e Non-specified investments, clarifying the greater risk
implications, identifying the general types of investment that
may be used and a limit to the overall amount of various
categories that can be held at any time.

2 Specified/Non-Specified Investments

2.1 The main Investment guidelines are contained in the body of the Treasury
Strategy statement. The paragraphs below detail the Council's use of
Specified and Non Specified Investments

Further information on the subject of this report can be obtained from
Paul Smith on Direct Dial No. 463976 or Email psmith2@swindon.gov.uk

Page 129



Treasury Management Strategy 2015/16 - Appendix 1 Annex 2

Cabinet Date: 4™ February 2015

2.2 Specified Investments — These investments are sterling investments
of not more than one-year maturity, or those which could be for a
longer period but where the Council has the right to be repaid within
12 months if it wishes. These are considered low risk assets where
the possibility of loss of principal or investment income is small. These
would include sterling investments which would not be defined as
capital expenditure with:

e The UK Government (such as the Debt Management Account
deposit facility, UK Treasury Bills or Gilt with less than one year
to maturity).

Supranational bonds of less than one year’s duration.

A local authority, parish council or community council.

Pooled investment vehicles (such as money market funds) that
have been awarded a high credit rating by a credit rating
agency. This covers pooled investment vehicles, such as
money market funds, rated AAA by Standard and Poor’s,
Moody’s or Fitch rating agencies.

A body that is considered of a high credit quality (such as a bank
or building society) in accordance with the Councils
creditworthiness Policy.

2.3 Non-Specified Investments — Non-specified investments are any
other type of investment (i.e. not defined as Specified above). The
Council does not currently hold any non-specified investments
excepting those with its own bankers. Non specified investments that
the Council may make would include any investments with:

Non Specified Investment Category

Supranational Bonds greater than 1 year to maturity

(a) Multilateral development bank bonds - These are bonds defined as an
international financial institution having as one of its objects economic
development, either generally or in any region of the world (e.g. European
Investment Bank etc.).

(b) A financial institution that is guaranteed by the United Kingdom
Government (e.g. The Guaranteed Export Finance Company {GEFCO})

The security of interest and principal on maturity is on a par with the
Government and so very secure. These bonds usually provide returns
above equivalent gilt edged securities. However the value of the bond may
rise or fall before maturity and losses may accrue if the bond is sold before
maturity.

(c) Gilt edged securities with a maturity of greater than one year. These
are Government bonds and so provide the highest security of interest and
the repayment of principal on maturity. Similar to category (a) above, the

Further information on the subject of this report can be obtained from
Paul Smith on Direct Dial No. 463976 or Email psmith2@swindon.gov.uk

Page 130



Treasury Management Strategy 2015/16 - Appendix 1 Annex 2

Cabinet Date: 4™ February 2015

value of the bond may rise or fall before maturity and losses may accrue if
the bond is sold before maturity.

(d) The Council’s own banker if it fails to meet the basic credit
criteria. In this instance any balances will be maintained on an instant
access basis

(e) Any bank or building society that complies with the Council's
creditworthiness policy for deposits with a maturity of greater than one year
(including forward deals in excess of one year from inception to repayment).

(f) Building societies not meeting the basic security requirements
under the specified investments. The operation of some building societies
does not require a credit rating, although in every other respect the security
of the society would match similarly sized societies with ratings. The Council
may use such building societies but will take specific advice before doing so.

(g) Share capital in a body corporate — The use of these instruments will be
deemed to be capital expenditure, and as such will be an application
(spending) of capital resources. Revenue resources will not be invested in
corporate bodies. See note 1 below.

(h) Loan capital in a body corporate. See note 1 below.

(i) Bond funds. See note 1 below.

(j) Pooled property funds — The use of these instruments can be
deemed to be capital expenditure, and as such will be an application
(spending) of capital resources. This Authority will seek guidance on the
status of any fund it may consider using.

Note 1: This Authority will seek further advice on the appropriateness and
associated risks with investments in these categories.

The monitoring of investment counterparties - The credit rating of
counterparties will be monitored regularly. The Council receives credit rating
information (changes, rating watches and rating outlooks) from Capita Asset
Services as and when ratings change, and counterparties are checked
promptly .On occasion ratings may be downgraded when an investment has
already been made. The criteria used are such that a minor downgrading
should not affect the full receipt of the principal and interest. Any counterparty
failing to meet the criteria will be removed from the list immediately and if
required new counterparties which meet the criteria will be added to the list.

Further information on the subject of this report can be obtained from
Paul Smith on Direct Dial No. 463976 or Email psmith2@swindon.gov.uk

Page 131



This page is intentionally left blank

Page 132



(suonouny sa21A195 1oddng usamiaq se8ueyd |eandNLIS 1991434 10U s90Q) Alewwing 91e40302.1Q - ¢ddy

ovL9c] (0gz‘L) (00og) |(czv'e) (6€1‘9) [298‘8 (Lev)  |evs‘z g6zl |(c1L'2)  [899‘zkL |0 899°2vl pung |e1duas 1oy} [ejo |
18£'8¢ (sz2) (002) |0 (9z¢g) 06 (2z2)  [s06 965 0S gsese  [(v2L) z8b'le | Aoaleq do1nes 10) [BJO )
2.2’ 0 0 0 (0¢) GOl (Z1) €Tl /€ 0 ¥50'C ¥50'C sjessy AlaalleQ - 0294d
150'6 0 0 0 0 (G1) (V) 41> L. 0 689'S (62) 8L.'8 poddng g s80IA1eg ssauisng - 0994d
rL'y 0 0 0 (09) (8) (¥€) L L 0 16L'p lBL'Y AioyeinBay % Buluueld - 0594d
/¥8'8 0 (0oz) |0 (69) 0L (98) €12 oLl 0 60.'8 60.'8 Hodsuel] 3 skemybiH - 0¥94d
S92IAIBS
(G19) (z2) 0 0 (201) (ze) (29) €g G8 0 (eze) (zze) papel] '3 8inyng ‘sauelqi] ‘ansioT - 0294d
Les'el 0 0 0 (02) e () 8cL Xe] 0§ 606'C) 606'C) Hewsyeais - 0L.94d
8ylL'L 0 0 0 0 (8) 0 Gl 6l 0 44N (G6) yAYA S9OIAIBS [BIOJBWWOYD - 0£Gdd
KiaAljaq 921A13S - 900dd
05.°L6 (028) (oo1) |(szv'e) (6¥) GlLL'Y (g91) |vs¥L (134 992 oes‘'s6  |(Lvv) LLZ‘'96 |buluorissiwuwio) Joj [ejo ]
L€ 0 0 0 0 (2) (12 €l 0z 0 Zre Zre $90IAISS bUISNOH - 0£94d
G80'LZ (o01) 0 (¢z2) (08) yAYA (02) 102 6.2 861 cL9'6L |62 ¥85'61 salliwe4 pue uaIpiyd - 0094d
G5.'6 0 0 0 (zz)) 1z (Q) L 8¢ 0 z£8'6 z£8'6 YjleaH oljand - 0vS4d
GSY'C 0 0 0 0 ol 0 L v 89 06T (0L¥) 099 Juswureyy / Awouod3 - 0ZG4d
LGE'c9 (022) (ook) |(0ozZ'€) (LL2) 16E'C (VARD) 85T'L Ly 0 cLL'e9 cLL'e9 SHNpY 8 UIp|IYd - 01.54d
1GL 0 0 0 0 € 0 0 vl 0 ov. oyl juswabeuel - 0054d
m:_:o_ww_EEOO - G00dd
(¥81) (sc1) 0 0 (009‘v) [6SL‘S (Z1) 621 902 (62v‘L) |s6¥‘S G9G £€6°,L $92IN0SdY 10 [EJO
Lee 0 0 0 0 G 0 0 1 0 6LE 6LE Wybisu| g uoneduNWWo - Ol 4d
€65'G 0 0 0 (oo0't)  |(9) 0 8 9l 0 Ges'o Ges'9 ¥H % 11 - 0624d
,0Z'0L 0 0 0 0 000°'L 0 0 0 0 102’6 1026 sebieyd 19eq - 0vz4d
105 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 106 10G Aousbunuog syeiodio) - opz4d
(gze'e) 0 0 0 (GLo'¢) |osi'c (o) L L1 (esL'e)  |(bsg'cl) |[ss9 (605'17L) 8jesodiog - Ovzdd
98e'e (gel) 0 0 0 (¥) 0 4 ol vel 1€1°) LE1°) sjjousg g senusAsy - 0l.z4d
102y 0 0 0 Gl 8 (@ €0l o¢ 0 L¥0'Y (06) LEL'Y abuey) % soueuld - 00Z4d
S$921N0S3Y - 200dd
£6. 0 0 0 (rel) (344 (gg) 13 901 0 786 0 786 9A1INI9XJ JOIYD 104 [BJ0 |
(280°¢) 0 0 0 (029) Ly (61) 62 8 0 (zro'e) (zLo'e) SIS 3 Awouod3 - 0cydd
9y 0 0 0 (02) (q) 0 0 €l 0 8¢S 8¢S $a1}l|eo0] - 00v4d
61.'C 0 0 0 (¥6) (+2) (G1) Z €/ 0 1£8'C 1£8'C $90IAI8S Oljeloows( @ MeT - 0LE4d
oy 0 0 0 0 (€) (1) 0 8 0 444 444 HpNny [eutsiul - 0L L4d
661 0 0 0 0 ) 0 0 4 0 161 /6l Jayyebo] sebuons - 00l dd
aAlIN23ax3 a1y - 100dd
000.3 000.3 000.3 000.3 000.3 000.3 | 0003 000.3 000.3 | 000.3 000.3 000.3 000.3
sBuines SL-7102
sobueysy  awodu| uonewlojsues] Koualdiyg /| ainssaid | awoou]  sjpe)UOD Ked Jebpng | syo-auQ | SL-¥102
wrumFON 92IAISS MBN 9210 Juou4 92130 Noeg }so0) = uonjejju) = uolnjeyjujl - uoneyu| wmmm 0%;0>01 wwmﬁv:m
10} }2b6png S)S0D sabueys
pasodoud <-------3WO0JU| M3 *® sbBuireg-------- > Y10 <- uonjepuj--------> Buipung

¢ xipuaddy

71390 19UIg8) Aq panroidde sjesodoid buipnjoul) 8jejojoaiiqjuonound Aq 91-GL0Z 10j }obpng pasodoid Jo Aewwng

Page 133



This page is intentionally left blank

Page 134



COUNCIL

MONDAY, 23%° FEBRUARY 2015
MINUTES FOR CONFIRMATION

CABINET

WEDNESDAY, 4 FEBRUARY 2015

61. Budget 2015/16 and Beyond
(Minute for Confirmation)

The Cabinet Member for Finance and the Board Director, Resources submitted a
joint report concerning (a) the context for the Council’s Budget for 2015/16 and for
the Medium Term Financial Plan, including revised funding assumptions for 2015/16,
(b) the current forecast out-turn position of the Council's Revenue Budget 2014/15,
(c) the provisional Local Government Finance Settlement 2015/16, (d) Council Tax
2015/16, (e) Business Rates Changes 2015/16, (f) New Homes Bonus 2015/16, (g)
Public Power Solution Ltd. (formerly, Swindon Commercial Services Ltd.), (h) the
proposed Council Budget for 2015/16, (i) the relationship between Revenue and
Capital Budgets, (j) Members’ Allowances, (k) Special Expenses, (I) Contingencies
and Risk, (m) One-off Resources commitments, (n) Fees and Charges, (0) General
Reserves, and (p) Budget consultations.

The Chair explained that two supplementary reports had been circulated at
the Cabinet meeting. The first set out Appendix 6 to the joint report that detailed the
outcome of the consultation process held with Non-Domestic ratepayers. The
second referred to the Government's announcement on 3™ February 2015 of the
Final Local Government Finance Settlement for 2015/16 and its implications for
Swindon.

Councillor Russell Holland, Cabinet Member for Finance, introduced the
report and detailed the Budget proposals for 2015/16. He commented on the national
economic situation and the Council’s commitment to providing quality services and
protecting the most vulnerable. He explained the service pressures that the Council
faced particularly in relation to demand in Adult Social Care and in services for
Children and Families and that these were likely to continue for the foreseeable
future. He referred to the hard work undertaken by Council officers and Cabinet
colleagues to control budgets and make savings whilst maintaining the Council’s
commitment to offer quality services to the most vulnerable in Swindon. He
commented on how the final Local Government Finance Settlement for 2015/16
affected Swindon and would enable it to continue to fund, in part, the Council’s
Emergency Assistance Fund. He explained that it would be necessary to consult on
changes to the criteria associated with the use of this Fund given the reduced
funding available to it. However, he was grateful that the Government had listened to

Page 135



the representations made by this Council and other local authorities in respect of the
proposed withdrawal of Welfare Funding.

Council Holland confirmed that the proposed Budget would enable there to
be no increase in the level of Council Tax for 2015/16.

Councillor Jim Grant, Leader of the Opposition, welcomed the proposal to
maintain an Emergency Assistance Fund but noted that there would be a significant
shortfall in the funding available for 2015/16 in comparison with 2014/15. He sought
clarification on whether the underspend in the Fund for the current year would be
used to help support this shortfall. He asked whether more could be done to
encourage take-up.

Councillor Holland explained why it was believed the funding allocation in the
current year had not been fully taken up. He explained that consultation would take
place on the criteria surrounding the future use of this emergency fund and
consideration would be given to the way that the fund was promoted to those most in
need.

Councillor Grant referred to the cost pressures surrounding the increased use
of Agency Staff in Children’s Services.

Councillor Fionuala Foley, Cabinet Member for Children’s Services, and the
Board, Director Commissioning, explained that this was a national trend but that
there had been some recent success in the recruitment of social workers. The
position was being very carefully monitored.

Councillor Holland reiterated his thanks to the Council’s officers, financial
teams, and Cabinet colleagues for their support for the Budget process that had
enabled a robust Budget with a zero rise Council Tax to be recommended to the
Council.

Resolved — (1) That the Cabinet notes:-

(a) The projected out-turn for 2014/15 and that savings arising from the early
delivery of 2015/16 Budget Proposals will be used to partly finance one-off costs
incurred in-year to deliver the 2015/16 Budget, thus helping to preserve the level of
funding held in reserves for future years’ transformation;

(b) The Council does not expect the need to replenish General Reserves as
part of the 2015/16 Budget Setting process;

(c) That no further consultation feedback had been received in relation to the
Budget proposals presented to the Cabinet in October and December 2014;

(d) The consultation undertaken with business representatives from Swindon,
on behalf of non-domestic rate as set out in Appendix 6 circulated at the meeting;

(e) That in line with the requirements of the Local Government Act 2003, the
Board Director, Resources, in his Section 151 capacity, has confirmed the
robustness of the estimates underlying the recommended Budget and having
reviewed the financial risks being faced by the Council, has concluded that the
proposed level of General Reserves (£6m) is adequate in the context of the
earmarked reserves held, specific contingencies and the proposed general
contingency of £0.5m.

Page 136



(2) That the virements as set out in Appendix 5 to the joint report be
approved.

(3) That the Council’'s Medium Term Financial Strategy as set out in Appendix
9 to the joint report be endorsed.

(4) That there be no changes to the proposed fees and charges as set out in
Appendix 1 to the report submitted to the Cabinet on 10th December 2014 (Minute
50(4) refers).

(5) That the Specific Reserves held in support of the 2015/16 Revenue
Budget, as set out in Appendix 7, be agreed.

(6) That the Head of Revenues and Benefits be authorised to increase awards
of Business Rates Retail Relief in accordance with the scheme approved in March
2014 to £1,500 per annum in 2015/16 and to award ‘transitional relief payments that
limit increases in Business Rates payments to 15% for small businesses with
rateable values up to £18,000 and 25% for medium sized business with a rateable
value up to £50,000.

(7) That the key principles of the Public Power Solutions Ltd., (formerly
Swindon Commercial Services Ltd (SCS)) Business Plan for 2015/16, be agreed on
behalf of the Council in its shareholder capacity and that the Board Director
Resources, in consultation with the Leader of the Council, be authorised to agree
any future changes to the Business Plan on behalf of the Council in its shareholder
capacity.

(8) That a consultation commences on reshaping the Council’s Emergency
Assistance Scheme within an on-going base Budget envelope of £186,000 (currently
£321,000) using the existing £300,000 earmarked reserve to cashflow the transition
and supplement the base Budget funding in 2015/16.

(9) That the Council be recommended that the level of Special Expenses
for 2015/16 shall be £1,041,299 and the areas of land and services that will be
charged as special and general expenses be as set out in Appendix 10 to the
joint report.

(10) That the Council be recommended that:-

(a) The 2015/16 Budget be set at £136,740m and the Budget Requirement
for tax setting purposes be set at £134,740m, recognising the £2m of funding
from reserves;

(b) There be no increase in Council Tax for 2015/16, and

(c) It be determined that the proposed increase (that is no increase at all)
in the basic amount of Council Tax for 2015/16 is not excessive in accordance
with Schedule 5 of the Localism Act 2011.

The reasons for the decision and alternative options are as set out in the
report to the meeting.

62. Capital Programme 2015/16 to 2017/18
(Minute for Confirmation)

The Cabinet Member for Finance and the Board Director, Resources
submitted a joint report concerning new Capital Programme requirements for the
period 2015/16 to 2017/18 and including schemes for (a) Highways and Transport,
including strategic Highways projects funded through the Growth Deal secured by
the Swindon and Wiltshire Local Enterprise Partnership, (b) Children’s Services, (c)

Page 137



Property and Assets, (d) Older People, (e) the County Ground Athletics Track, (f) the
Council’'s Waterside Campus, (g) Kingsfarm Woodland, and (h) Superfast
Broadband.

Councillor Russell Holland, Cabinet Member for Finance, referred to the
contents and purpose of the report and, in particular, to the proposed changes to the
Capital Programme. He referred to the proposals regarding Superfast Broadband
and to the actions taken by Councillor Elliott within his ward to promote this as an
issue.

Councillor Jim Grant, Leader of the Opposition, referred to the increasing
pressure for school places and to how these would be funded.

Councillor Holland explained that the provision of school places was a
statutory requirement and required costs would be met from Borrowing.

Councillor Des Moffatt commented on the list of proposed property and assets
related capital schemes and sought clarification on how these were identified. The
Board Director, Resources explained the process adopted and that he was happy to
provide information on the associated condition surveys to Councillor Moffatt.

Resolved — That the Council be recommended to:-

(a) Include the Strategic Highways Projects set out in Appendix 5,
funded through the Growth Deal secured by the Swindon and Wiltshire Local
Enterprise Partnership, within the Council’s Capital Programme, noting the
related capacity funding the Council has secured from Government as detailed
in Appendix 6 to the joint report;

(b) Note the current position and future budget requirement for the
additional Children’s Services schemes as referred to in paragraphs 3.5 to 3.8
and detailed in Appendix 1 to the joint report;

(c) Approve a budget of £500,000 for Condition Works, funded from
Capital Maintenance Grant, as referred to in paragraph 3.9 and detailed in
Appendix 1 to the joint report;

(d) Approve a total budget of £7.927m for the 2015/16 local priority
Highways and Transport schemes referred to in paragraphs 3.10 and 3.11 and
detailed in Appendix 2 to the joint report;

(e) Approve a total budget of £2m for 2015/16, funded from Borrowing,
for Repairs and Maintenance on Corporate Property, as referred to in
paragraphs 3.12 to 3.13 and detailed at Appendix 3 to the joint report;

(f) Approve a total budget requirement of £1,006,700 for Older People’s
and other Capital schemes, as referred to in paragraph 3.14 and detailed in
Appendix 4 to the joint report;

(g) Approve a budget of £253,000, for refurbishment work to the County
Ground Athletics Track, funded from Section106 Planning Agreement income
and referred to in paragraphs 3.15 to 3.17 of the joint report, subject to
discussions with Swindon Town Football Club if required;

(h) Note the position around future investment requirements at the
Council’s Waterside site as detailed in paragraphs in 3.18 to 3.19 of the joint
report;

Page 138



(i) Approve the retention of £30,000 raised by Wroughton Parish Council
in relation to the purchase of Kingsfarm Wood to be administered through a
working party as detailed in paragraph 3.20 of the joint report;

(j) Authorise the Cabinet Member for the Economy, Regeneration, and
Skills, in consultation with opposition spokespersons and the Board Director,
Resources, to recommend a preferred bidder in relation to Superfast
Broadband as detailed in paragraph 3.21 of the joint report;

(k) Approve a budget of £150,000 relating to feasibility work on Strategic
Projects, forming part of the Strategic Economic Plan and funded from the
balance of the £1m Regeneration Reserve previously approved by the Cabinet,
as detailed at paragraphs 3.22 to 3.24 of the joint report;

(I) Note the award of £787,500 of Department for Communities and Local
Government capacity funding, as detailed at paragraph 3.4 of the joint report;
and.

(m) Approve a Capital budget of £197,000 for Library IT equipment, as
detailed in paragraphs 3.25 to 3.29 of the joint report.

The reasons for the decision and alternative options are as set out in the
report to the meeting.

63. Treasury Strategy Statement 2015/16
(Minute for Confirmation)

The Cabinet Member for Finance and the Board Director, Resources
submitted a joint report concerning the Council's proposed Treasury Management
Strategy for 2015/16 including the (i) Annual Investment Strategy, (ii) Minimum
Revenue Provision Policy Statement, and (iii) Prudential Indicators for the Financial
Years up to 2016/17.

Councillor Russell Holland, Cabinet Member for Finance, referred to the
contents of the Treasury Management Strategy for 2015/16. He explained that the
Statement was a statutory requirement. He commented on the background to the
proposal to increase investment periods to a maximum of two years and the reasons
for this action.

The Board Director, Resources referred to the progress made by the Council
in moving its banking from the Co-op to the Lloyds Banking Group following the Co-
op’s withdrawal from the Local Government sector.

Councillor Jim Grant, Leader of the Opposition, noted the increasing amount
of Council debt over the period to 2017/18 and the implications of this level of debt
for the Council’'s Revenue Budget.

Councillor Russell Holland, Cabinet Member for Finance, referred to the need
for the Council to borrow to ensure the essential delivery of the infrastructure that
Swindon needed, such as schools, The Board Director, Resources, explained that
this rise in the level of debt was a consequence of previous decisions associated
with the Capital Programme rather than arising from new schemes.

Resolved — That the Council be recommended to:

Page 139



(a) Approve the Treasury Management Strategy 2015/16, Minimum
Revenue Provision Policy and Prudential Indicators, as set out in Appendix 1
to the joint report;

(b) Note the position with regard to the Council’s Bankers, as detailed in
paragraphs 3.11 and 3.12 of the joint report; and

(c) Note the position on investment returns as detailed in paragraphs
3.13 to 3.16 of the joint report, and the increased investment periods to a
maximum of 2 years as detailed in the Treasury Management Strategy 2015/16.

The reasons for the decision and alternative options are as set out in the
report to the meeting.

Page 140



Agenda ltem 7

COUNCIL TAX RESOLUTION

Council Date: 23rd February 2015
Author: Cabinet Member, Finance and Board Director Resources
Wards: All Wards

Locality Affected: All Locality Areas

Parishes Affected: All Parishes

1. Purpose and Reasons

1.1 To enable Members to formally resolve the Borough's Council Tax for 2015-16
recognising that Billing Authorities have a statutory requirement to set the annual
Council Tax bills by 11" March.

2, Recommendations
Council is recommended to:

2.1 Approve that there will be no increase in the Council Tax levels for the Borough
Council element of the 2015-16 bills in accordance with the budget proposed by
Cabinet on 4th February 2015;

2.2  Determine that the Basic Amount of Council Tax for the Financial Year 2015-16 is
not excessive within the statutory definitions set out within part | of the Local
Government Finance Act 1992 (as amended by the Localism Act 2011) and that
therefore no referendum is required;

2.3 Pass the Resolution set out as Annex 2 to this report covering all aspects of the
bills.

3. Detail

Council Tax Calculations

3.1 The calculations include precept figures from the Police and Crime Commissioner
for Wiltshire and Swindon, the Wiltshire and Swindon Fire Authority and the Town
and Parish Councils within the Borough as well as the Council’'s own budget
requirement.

3.2  The provisional 2015-16 Council Tax calculations and the formal Council Tax

Resolution are set out as Appendix 1 and Annex 2 respectively. These proposals
are based on the budget proposals agreed by Cabinet on 4th February 2015
resulting in a net budget for 2015-16 of £136,740,217 and a zero increase for the
Swindon Borough Council (SBC) element of the Council Tax. Should the
Council’'s Budget for 2015-16 be amended at the Council meeting or any
proposed changes be made to the level of Council Tax for 2015-16, a revised
Resolution and set of Council Tax calculations will be made available at the
meeting.

Further information on the subject of this report can be obtained from Kirsty Cole 01793
464610, kcole@swindon.gov.uk.

Page 141



COUNCIL TAX RESOLUTION

Council Date: 23rd February 2015

3.3  The legal position is set out by the Director of Law and Democratic Services in
Annex 1.

3.4  Table One sets out the provisional precept and budget figures for each element of
the Council Tax bill with a comparison with the previous year. The total bill
including precepts shows a modest 0.4% increase.

3.5 In accordance with Schedule 5 of the Localism Act 2011, the Council has a duty

to determine whether its Council Tax increase is considered to be excessive in
which case it would be required to hold a referendum. For 2015-16, the
Government has set the threshold at 2% for Swindon and, as the Council is
proposing no change to the level of Council Tax in 2015-16, no referendum is

necessary.

Table One — Changes in Budgets and Precepts 2015-16

Element of Council Tax Bill 2015-16 2014-15

£000 £000
Amount of SBC Budget met from Council Tax 77,544 75,923
Police and Crime Commissioner Precept 11,095 10,660
Wiltshire and Swindon Fire Authority Precept 4,390 4215
Total Town and Parish Precepts 1,980 1,896
Total 95,009 92,694
Tax Base 67,660.0 66,245.5
Band D Average Council Tax £1,404.22 £1,399.26

%
Change
21%
4.1%
4.2%
4.4%
2.5%

2.1%
0.4%

3.6
are summarised in Table Two.

Table Two — Headline Band D Council Tax Changes 2015-16

The resulting Council Tax levels and percentage increases for a Band D property

Band D % Increase
Council Tax

2015-16
#Swindon Borough Council £1,146.09 0.0%
Wilts & Swindon Fire Authority £64.88 1.98%
Police and Crime Commissioner £163.98 1.9%
*Average headline charge for £65.53 4.0%
Parish / Town Councils
Total Bill 1,404.22 0.4%

*These figures will differ per parish as set out in Appendices Two and Three

Further information on the subject of this report can be obtained from Kirsty Cole 01793

464610, kcole@swindon.gov.uk.
Page 142




COUNCIL TAX RESOLUTION

Council Date: 23rd February 2015

# The figure of £1,146.09 represents the average Council Tax levied by Swindon
Borough Council, which differs between parished and non-parished areas (the Special
Expense area). The Borough Council’s element of the Council Tax bill will appear as two
separate lines on the bill as follows:-

Table Three — Swindon Borough Council Elements of the Council Tax Bill

Band D % Increase
Council Tax
2015-16
Swindon Borough Council £1,130.70 0.0%
(Basic Charge)
~ Non-Parished Area (Special £27.81 0.0%
Expenses Charge)

~ The Special Expenses element is only chargeable to households within the non-

4.1

5.1

52

5.3

5.4

parished area.

Alternative Options
Not applicable.
Implications, Diversity Impact Assessment and Risk Management

Financial and Procurement Implications

The starting position for the Council Tax calculations is the Council's budget for
2015-16. The Council Tax figures have been calculated based on the precepts
agreed by the precepting bodies and the budget proposed by Cabinet on 4th
February 2015. Should any change be made to the final budget agreed by
Council on the night, the figures will be recalculated and an amended version of
Appendices 1 and 2 and the formal Council Tax Resolution in Annex 2 will be
circulated at the meeting.

Legal and Human Rights Implications

The implications of the Council's 2015-16 Budget are covered by the Revenue
Budget report elsewhere on the agenda.

All Other Implications (including Staff, Sustainability, Health, Rural, Crime and
Disorder)

This report recommends no changes to services and no changes to Council Tax
levels so no other implications are envisaged as a result of the recommendations.

Links to One Swindon, Strategic Objectives, Plans and Policies

A corporate priority is to have affordable Council Tax.

Further information on the subject of this report can be obtained from Kirsty Cole 01793
464610, kcole@swindon.gov.uk.

Page 143



COUNCIL TAX RESOLUTION

Council Date: 23rd February 2015

5.5

5.6

Diversity Impact Assessment

No diversity impact assessment has been undertaken for this report as a Council
Tax has to be set by each Billing Authority and no increase is proposed for 2015-
16.

Risk Management

This report recommends no changes to services and no changes to Council Tax
levels for Council services so no new risks are envisaged as a result of the
recommendations.

Consultees

The Board Director Resources (Section 151 Officer) and Director of Law and
Democratic Services (Monitoring Officer) are consulted in respect of all reports.

Background Papers

« Revenue Budget Report to Cabinet — 4™ February 2015
Appendices

e Annex 1 - Legal Position

e Annex 2 - Council Tax Resolution

¢ Appendix 1 - Council Tax Levels 2015-16

¢ Appendix 2 - Parish Precepts 2014-15 and 2015-16

Further information on the subject of this report can be obtained from Kirsty Cole 01793
464610, kcole@swindon.gov.uk.

Page 144



1.1

2.2

COUNCIL TAX RESOLUTION
Council Date: 23rd February 2015

Annex 1

COUNCIL TAX 2015-16 - LEGAL POSITION

Introduction

A Member is not regarded as having a personal and prejudicial interest in a matter
unless it affects the member “to a greater extent than other council tax payers,
ratepayers or inhabitants” of Swindon, and is so significant that it is likely to prejudice the
Member’s judgment of the public interest. However any Member who is in arrears with
their Council Tax payments needs to give careful consideration to the provisions of
Section 106 of the Local Government Finance Act 1992. This states that if any arrears
remain unpaid for at least 2 months, then the Member must disclose this at the
beginning of any meeting which is to consider any Council Tax calculation or any matter
which might affect the Council Tax calculation, and shall not vote on any such matter. If
any Member is likely to be in such a position, or is concerned as to whether any interest
should be declared, then advice should be sought as quickly as possible from the
Director of Law and Democratic Services.

Statutory Position

The Borough Council is required to maintain a Collection Fund for both Council Tax and
National Non-Domestic (Business) Rates. Any sums paid into an authority's Collection
Fund shall be used in the making of payments which are to be met from that fund or
transfers from it.

The Borough as "billing authority" for the Borough is required, to set an amount of
Council Tax for each financial year and for each category of buildings. In accordance
with the Council’s Standing Order 14(3) and the Local Authorities (Standing Orders)
(England) (Amendment) Regulations 2014, at a meeting of the Council at which it is to
determine its Budget and Council Tax:-

(a) Immediately after any vote is taken at a Budget decision making meeting of
the Council there must be recorded in the minutes of the proceedings of that
meeting the names of the Members who cast a vote for or against the decision or
who abstained from voting.

(b) Reference to a “budget decision making meeting” for the purposes of
Standing Order 14(3) means a meeting where the Council (i) makes a calculation
(whether originally or by way of substitute) in accordance with any of sections
31A, 31B, 34 to 36A, 42A, 42B, 45 to 49, 527F, 527J of the Local Government
Finance Act 1992 (as amended); or (ii) issues a precept under Chapter 4 of Part 1
of that Act,

Further information on the subject of this report can be obtained from Kirsty Cole 01793
464610, kcole@swindon.gov.uk.

Page 145



2.3

24

2.5

2.6

2.7

2.8

COUNCIL TAX RESOLUTION
Council Date: 23rd February 2015

(c) Reference to a “vote” for the purposes of Standing Order 14.(3) are
references are references to a vote on any decision related to the making of the
calculation or the issuing of the precept referred to in (b) above as the case may
be.

The amounts of Council Tax must be set by billing authorities before 11 March in any
financial year, but such amounts are not invalid merely because they are set on or after
that date. No amount may be set before the earlier of the following:-

(a) 1 March

(b) The date of issue to the Council of a precept for the relevant financial year from a
"major precepting authority" (e.g. the Police and Crime Commissioner).

No amount may be set unless the Council has made the calculations required by the
1992 Act (as amended by Section 74 of the Localism Act 2011). Members will recall
that one of the required steps was to determine the respective Council Tax Base for the
Borough and for each parished and non-parished area. The Local Government Act
2003 (section 84) replaces section 67 Local Government Finance Act 1992 which
required full Council to formally approve the Council Tax base for the whole of its area.
Under the new regulations, it is now for each Local Authority to make its own
arrangements for adopting the Council Tax base. The tax base for 2015-16 has been
calculated in accordance with The Local Authorities (Calculation of Council Tax Base)
Regulations 1992 as amended (the 1992 Regulations). The figures within Appendix 3
show the Tax Base for both 2013-14 and 2015-16 as a consequence of following these
rules.

The 1992 Act provides that billing and precepting authorities may make substitute
calculations of their budget requirements and amounts of Council Tax. Except in certain
special cases (e.g. where the previous calculations have been quashed), the substitute
budget requirement cannot be greater than the previous requirement. In the case of
billing and major precepting authorities, any substitute amount of tax calculation as
applicable to any dwelling cannot exceed the previously calculated amount.

If the amount of Council Tax set as a result of substitute calculations is less than the
original amount set, persons who have overpaid may require repayment or may allow
the billing authority to choose whether to repay or credit the overpayment.

Differential charging is provided for within a billing authority's area. These provisions
require the Council to set differential amounts of Council Tax for different parts of the
Borough in response to precepts issued for parts from Parishes and for its own special
expenses. The Borough's Special Expenses for 2015-16, under the 1992 Act, were
agreed by Cabinet on 5th February 2014.

A "major precepting authority" under the 1992 Act includes the Police and Crime
Commissioner, and a Fire Authority whilst a "local precepting authority" includes a parish

Further information on the subject of this report can be obtained from Kirsty Cole 01793
464610, kcole@swindon.gov.uk.

Page 146



2.9

2.10

3.2

3.3

COUNCIL TAX RESOLUTION
Council Date: 23rd February 2015

council and the chair of a parish meeting. In the case of a local precepting authority
(e.g. a parish council) the billing authority has no power to set substitute amounts of
Council Tax if the precept is issued late, but in this event regulations allow billing
authorities to anticipate such precepts.

A billing authority, which has set amounts of Council Tax, is required to publish notice of
the amounts within 21 days of setting them in at least one newspaper circulating in the
area. Failure to do this does not make the amounts invalid.

In accordance with Schedule 5 of the Localism Act 2011, as a billing authority the
Borough has a duty to determine whether its relevant basic amount of council tax for a
financial year is excessive. If, according to the principles approved in Section 527B of
the Local Government Act 1992 the Borough'’s council tax for the year is deemed to be
excessive the Borough will be required to hold a referendum. The Secretary of State
has proposed the Council Tax principles he is minded to set for 2015-16. These are that
authorities will be required to seek the approval of their local electorate if, compared with
2013-14, they set an increase in the basic amount of Council Tax that exceeds 2% for a
billing authority like Swindon.

General Advice

In considering whether to approve any given level of expenditure, Members must be
satisfied that there is evidence which establishes that such a level of expenditure is
necessary to meet the needs of the Borough and to comply with the statutory duty to set
amounts of Council Tax. Members should have particular regard to the effect on
Council Tax payers of various expenditure levels.

Members should consider whether income can reasonably be increased commensurate
with the responsibility to meet what Members perceive are the needs of the community.

Members are advised that the legislation enabling the Business Rates Retention
Scheme and the Council Tax Support Scheme are as yet to be implemented although
the Government expects to do this before the end of this financial year. The estimated
provision in the budget for the retention is subject to the scheme being implemented in
the form indicated by Government

Director, Law and Democratic Services 12" February 2015

Further information on the subject of this report can be obtained from Kirsty Cole 01793
464610, kcole@swindon.gov.uk.

Page 147



COUNCIL TAX RESOLUTION
Council Date: 23rd February 2015

Annex 2

COUNCIL TAX RESOLUTION 2015-16

1 Legal Advice

That it be recorded that the Director of Law and Democratic Services' advice has been
taken into account in the setting of the level of Council Tax for 2015-16.

2 Revenue Budget

That it be noted that the Council's revenue budget is £136,740,217 as recommended by
the Cabinet to this Council on 4™ February 2015.

3 Council Tax Base

That it be noted that in accordance with Section 31B of the Local Government Finance
Act 1992 (as amended) the Council’s Tax Base for 2015-16 is 67,660.0 in total with the
breakdown by Parish set out in Appendix 3.

4 Borough / Parish Council Tax Rates

That the following amounts be calculated by the Council in accordance with Sections 31
to 36 of the Local Government Finance Act 1992, as amended by the Localism Act
2011:-

(a) Borough / Parish Gross Expenditure £470,444,716 being the aggregate of the
amounts which the Council estimates for the items set out in Section 31A(2) of
the 1992 Act taking into account all precepts issued to it by Parish Councils.

(b) Borough Gross Income plus Collection Fund Balance £390,582,095 being the
aggregate of the amounts which the Council estimates for the items set out in
Section 31A(3) of the Act.

(c) Borough/Parish Net Expenditure £79,862,621 being the amount by which the
aggregate at 4(a) above exceeds the aggregate at 4(b) above, calculated by the
Council, in accordance with Section 31A(4) of the Act, as its COUNCIL TAX
REQUIREMENT for the year.

(d) Basic Amount of Tax (including average parish precepts) £1,175.36 being
the amount at 4(c) above divided by the amount at 3 above, calculated by the
Council, in accordance with Section 31B of the Act, as the basic amount of its
Council Tax for the year. In accordance with Schedule 5 of the Localism Act
2011, this sum is not considered to be excessive.

(e) Special Items £3,021,481 being the aggregate of Special Expenses and Parish
Precepts and collectively known as special items and referred to in Section 34(1)
of the Act.

(f) Basic Amount of Tax (Unparished Area) £1,130.70 being the amount at 4(d)
above less the result given by dividing the amount at 4(e) above by the amount at
3, calculated by the Council in accordance with Section 34(2) of the Act, as the

Further information on the subject of this report can be obtained from Kirsty Cole 01793
464610, kcole@swindon.gov.uk.

Page 148



COUNCIL TAX RESOLUTION

Council Date: 23rd February 2015

(9)

(h)

basic amount of its Council Tax for the year for dwellings in those parts of its area
to which no special item relates.

Basic Amount of Tax (Special and Parished Areas) the amounts shown in
Appendix 2, being the amounts given by adding to the amount at 4(f) above, the
amounts of the special items relating to dwellings in the appropriate part of the
Council's area - divided by the appropriate amount at 3 above, calculated by the
Council, in accordance with Section 34(3) of the Act, as the basic amounts of its
Council Tax for the year for dwellings in those parts of its area to which a special
item relates.

Borough/Parish Council Tax Rates the amounts shown in Appendix 1, being
the amounts given by multiplying the amounts at 4(g) by the number which, in the
proportion set out in Section 5(1) of the Act, is applicable to dwellings listed in a
particular valuation band, divided by the number which in that proportion is
applicable to dwellings listed in valuation Band D, calculated by the Council, in
accordance with Section 36(1) of the Act, as the amounts to be taken into
account for the year in respect of categories of dwellings listed in different
valuation bands.

Police and Crime Commissioner for Wiltshire and Swindon That it be noted that for
the year 2015-16 the Police and Crime Commissioner has stated the following amounts

in precept issued to the Council, in accordance with Section 40 of the Local Government
Finance Act 1992, for each of the categories of dwellings shown below:

Band A| Band B| Band C| Band D| Band E| Band F| Band G| Band H

£109.32| £127.54| £145.76| £163.98| £200.42| £236.86| £273.30| £327.96

Swindon and Wiltshire Fire Authority That it be noted that for the year 2015-16 the
Swindon and Wiltshire Joint Fire Authority has stated the following amounts in precept
issued to the Council, in accordance with Section 40 of the Local Government Finance
Act 1992, for each of the categories of dwellings shown below:

Band A| Band B| Band C| Band D| Band E| Band F| Band G| Band H

£43.25| £50.46| £57.67| £64.88| £79.30| £93.72| £108.13| £129.76

Further information on the subject of this report can be obtained from Kirsty Cole 01793
464610, kcole@swindon.gov.uk.

Page 149



This page is intentionally left blank

Page 150



vLvLLC 82'2LEC 86°€00°C 89'G69°} LE°18€E L geeee’t 90'6.0°} L6'v26 ealy paysued
-UON uopuiIms
98'8€6°C S0'6v1'C 16°22LC L6°G6L L ev69v°L 91°90€°L 68°2YL L 29'6.6 uojybno.ip
95°058‘ o'sl€'C v.'850°C LOerL L 8e'ser’lL 16°992°L GG'801L°L 81°056 ybnosoquepp
05°656°C L6°29V‘C €SVELC v1°908°L SLLLY'L GS'ELE’L 9g'6vL L 91°G86 Jebiepy 1S uonens
cerLoge ge'v8e'e v°990°C €58/ L L9°0EY‘L G9'LLZL 69°CLL L v.'€56 ualiemzli4 uojuels
20°L€8°C 8Lv9€E‘C 96°810°C vLEEL L LG 8LY L 06°092°L 82°€0L‘L L9°GY6 uols.iepy Yymnos
2L'€08C €6°GEE'C 81202 2OELLL 9G°1L0v‘L €8°'sve’lL 01060} LE'VEG aYIAN
0b'L8L°C €8°22€C ELELOC LP"€0L L 0L°€6E L v8'8€2’L 66°€80°L €1°626 uolbuippi
ZL6LLe €6°692°C 18°€96 L 69199} 9G°65E} 05°802°} EV° LSO} L€°906 weysajbu|
v€°996°C 19°€91°C vLseL'e G9'908°}L LL8LY L €6°CLE’L 69°6VL°L v1"G86 yuomybiHP
28'18LC 8L'8LEC 01600°C 00°00L°} 16°06€°L 9€°9€2’} 28180} L2°126 oI uopAeH mw
0€°06.°C S TALTA 4 rAA 1A 61°G0LL GL'G6E’L eLove’L LL'G80°L 01°0€6 uolbuiuueH
26°LLLC €6'V1LEC 82°900°C 29°L69°} 96'88€"} €9'vee't 0£°080°} L6°G26 weybuino)
90°€8.°C L2'61EC 66°600°C 9.00L°} €S°16E L 16°9EC L 0€°280°} 89°/26 uop|asiyo
29'€6.L°C 10'82€C 29°L10C L2 L0LL 18°96€‘L 19" LT L L7'980°L 02°1€6 uoje3 ajise)d
85°9G.°C GL°.62°C 18066} 85°¥89°L 62°8.8°L GLgee’L 00°2.0°L 98'816 uopsun|g
82°L6.L°C 90°LEE'T 92°020°C G"60L L v9°86€"L €TeveL €8°280°L rA AN auojsdoysig
d-3 d-3 d-3 d-3 d-3 d-3 d-3 d-3 HOYNO0HO4g
H ) 4 3 a 0 g 3HL 40 v3ydv

aNVE8 NOILVNIVA

| Xipuaddy




Page 15

96°/¢2¢ og'eLe 98'9¢¢ ¢v'00¢ 86°¢€9l 9.°G¥l va'LCl 2¢e'60l1 Auoyiny 81104 a1ysyipn
9/'6¢l €1'801 ¢L'€6 0€'6. 8819 19°/S 9109 gcey Aoyiny 8114 UOPUIMS @ SHINA
08'8G 006V YA A4 €6°G¢ 0¥'6¢ €1'9¢ 182¢C 0961 weybuinod
0’1922 0G'¥88°L €T’ee9’l 16°18¢€°L 0L°0€L'L ,0°G00°L €v'6.8 08'¢G. Sosuadx3 [elausn), UOPUIMS
weybuinod
90'¢€8.C 126LEC 66'600C 9/°00L'L €G'16E'L 16°9€C) 0€'280°L 89,26 INNOIYVY 1119
96°.¢C¢ 0og'c€lLe 98'9¢¢ ¢¥'00¢ 86°¢€9l 9,°G¥l ve'LCl 2601 Auoyiny 801j0d alysyipn
9.'6¢l €1'801 ¢L€6 0€'6.L 88'¥9 19°/G 9%°0G gc'ey Auoyiny aii4 uopuimsg g sHIpA
¥6°€9 8C'¢€S 8l 9¥ L0'6€ /6'1¢€ l¥'8¢C .8'Vv¢C LELe uop|ssiyo
0¥'192°C 0G'¥88°L €T'ee9’l 16718¢'L 0L0€L'L ,0°G00'L €v'6.8 08'¢€4. Ssosuadx3 |elausn), UOPUIMS
uopjasiyp
29'€6.°C 10'82€'C 29°/10°C L2 20L'L 18°96€°L LO'LyT'L L#'980°L 0C'1L€6 INNOIYVY 1119
96°/¢2¢ ogeLe 98'9¢¢ ¢v'00¢ 86°¢€9l 9.°G¥l va'LCl 2¢e'60l1 Auoyiny 81104 a1lysyipn
9/'6¢l €1'801 ¢L'€6 0€'6.L 8819 19°/S 9109 S TAR N 4 Aioyiny 8114 UOPUIMS @ SHINA
0S'¥. 80°¢C9 18°€S AR 14 TAVAS L1°Ee 86'8¢C €8¢ uojeq 3jise)d
0¥'192°C 0G'¥88°L €T’ee9’l 16°18¢€°L 0L°0€L'L ,0°G00°L €v'6.8 08'¢G. Sosuadx3 [elausn), UOPUIMS
uojeg of3sed
8G'9G/.C GlL'/62'C /8066l 8G'¥89'L 62'8/¢'L GlL'Ggee'l 0020l 98'8l6 INNOIYVY 1119
96°.¢C¢ 0og'€lLe 98'9¢¢ ¢v'00¢ 86°¢€9l 9.'G¥l ve'LCl 2601 Auoyiny 81104 a1ysyIpn
9.'6¢l €1'801 ¢L€6 0€'6.L 88'¥9 19°/G 91°0G gc'ey Auoyiny aii4 uopuimg g sHIpA
] VAN ¢c'Le 90°'.¢ 68°¢¢C €L'8l G99l yAR 4" 61 Cl uopsunig
0'192°C 0G'¥88°L €T'ee9’l 16718¢'L 0L0€L'L ,0°G00'L €v'6.8 08'¢€4. ,Ssosuadx3 |elaus9), UOPUIMS
uopsun|g
82°/6.°C 90°1L€€'C 92'020°C Gy'60.L°L ¥9'86¢€'L e eVl €8°/80°L [A AN INNOIYVY 1119
96°/¢2¢ og'eLe 98'9¢¢ ¢v'00¢ 86°¢€9l 9.°G¥l va'LCl 2¢e'60l Auoyiny a1j0d a1lysyipn
9/'6¢l €1'801 ¢L'€6 0€'6.L 8819 19°/S 9109 S TAR N 4 Aioyiny 8114 UOPUIMS @ SHINA
9181 €169 G99 9L Ly 80'6¢€ €L vE 0v'0¢ G092 auojsdoysig
01922 0G'¥88°L €T’ee9’l 16°18¢€°L 0L°0€L'L ,0°G00°L €v'6.8 08'¢q. So9suadx3y [elausn), UOPUIMS
auojsdoysig
d-3 d-3 d-3 d-3 d-3 d-3 d-3 d-3 soysued
H 9 d 3 d 0) g Y

panunuo) | Xipuaddy

pueg uoienjep
ANV4 NOILVNTVA A9 ST119 XVL TIONNOD 40 NMOAaMVv3dg



0v'/8.°C £8'22¢'C cL'eLo’e L'€0L'L 0,L°€6€°L ¥8°8€C'L 66°€80°L €1'626 INNONWY 1119
96°/¢¢ 0g'€le 98'9¢¢ ¢¥'00¢ 86°€9l 9/'G¥l 12°WXA" 2601 Auoyiny a1j0d a1lysyipn
9/'6¢l €1'801 ¢L'€6 0€'6. 889 JASWA®, 9%°0G gecey Aoyiny 814 UOPUIMS @ SHINA
8¢'89 0699 ce6¥ cL'Ly 174 4 y€0¢ 9G9'9¢ 9/°'¢¢c uoybuippi
0¥'192°C 0G'¥88°L €Tee9’l 16°18¢€°L 0L°0€L'L ,0°G00°L €v'6.8 08'¢G. Sosuadx3 [elausn), UOPUIMS
uojbuippr]
ZL'6LLe €6°G92'C 18°€96'L 69°199°L 9G'6G¢€'L 0G°802'L €' /G0°L /€906 INNOWNWY 1119
96°/.¢c¢ 0g'€le 98'9¢¢ ¢¥'00¢ 86°'¢9l 9/L°Gvl 12°WXA" 2601 Auoyiny a1j0d a1lysyipn
9/'6¢l €1'801 ¢L'€6 0€'6. 889 JASWA®, 9%'0G gecey Aoyiny 814 UOPUIMS @ SHINA
000 000 000 000 000 000 000 000 weyss|bu|
0¥'192°C 0G'¥88°L €C’ee9’l 16°18¢€°L 0L°0SL‘L ,0°G00°L €v'6.8 08'¢G. Sosuadx3 [elausn), UOPUIMS
weysa|bu|
¥€£'9G6'C L9'€9¥'C yL'GEL'C G9'908°L L8 €6°CLEL 69°6¥1'L ¥¥'G86 INNOWNWY 1119
96°.¢C¢ 0og'€lLe 98'9¢¢ Z¥00c 86°'¢9l 9/.°Gv1 12°WXA" 2e60l Auoyiny 801j0d aysyipn
9/'6¢l €1'801 ¢L'€6 0€'6. 889 19°/S 9109 S TAR N 4 Auoyiny aii4 uopuimsg g sHIpA
c¢eclec 89°/61 celLLl 96l 19°8L1L €¥'Gol 9¢'¢6 L0'6. yuomybiH

0¥'192°C 0G'¥88°L €T'ee9’l 16°18¢€°L 0L°0€L L ,0°G00°L €¥'6.8 08°'¢G.L S9suadx3 |elousD, UopUIMS{3

UHOMUBIH

(@]

28'18.°C 818LE'C 016002 00°00.°L 16°06E°L 9€°9¢Z'L 28°180°L YRAPRES INNOWY TG
96°/¢c¢ 0g'€le 98'9¢¢ ¢¥'00¢ 86°¢9l 9/L°GvlL 12°WXA" 2601 Auoyiny ao1j0d a1ysyipn
9/'6¢l €1'801 ¢L'€6 0€'6. 8819 19°/G 9% '0G gecey Aioyiny 814 UOPUIMS @ SHINA
0429 TAYA 6C'G¥Y 1 €8¢ ge'Le 98°'/¢ 6EvC 06°'0¢C YOIM UopAeH
0¥'192°C 0G'¥88°L €T’ee9’l 16°18¢€°L 0L°0€L‘L ,0°G00°L €v'6.8 08'¢q. So9suadx3y [elausn), UOPUIMS
)OIM UOpAeH
0£°06.°C GZ'Gee'e 22GL0C 61°G0L'L GlL'G6E'L cLove'lL 11°G80°L 01°0€6 INNOWNWY 1119
96°.¢C¢ 0og'€lLe 98'9¢¢ Z¢¥00c 86°'¢9l 9/.°Gv1 12°WXA" 2e60l Auoyiny 801j0d a1lysyipn
9/'6¢l €1'80l1 ¢L'€6 0€'6. 8819 19°/S 9109 TN 4 Auoyiny aii4 uopuimsg g sHIpA
8L'LL 2’69 L¥V'LSG os'cy 69°G¢ €9'L¢e 89°/¢ €L'ee uojbuiuuen
0'192°C 0G'¥88°L €T'ee9’l 16°18¢€‘L 0L°0€L L ,0°G00°L €¥'6.8 08°'¢cG.L Ssosuadx3 |elausn), UOPUIMS
uojbuiuueq
26°1..°C €6 VLE'C 82'900°C 29'/69°L 06'88¢'L covee'L 0£°080°L /6°'GC6 1NNOWY 1119
d-3 d-3 d-3 d-3 d-3 d-3 d-3 d-3 saysLed

H 9 d 3 a 0) g "4

pueg uoljenjep




age 154

96°/2¢ 0€'€.2 98'9¢2 Z°002 86'¢9l 9/'Gvl ¥G/2) 2601 Ryioyny 201104 dIYSHIAN
9,621 €1'801 2.'€6 0£'6. 88'¥9 191§ 9%'0S GTey Aioyiny aii4 uopuims @ sHIM
vy LEl €G'601 €676 2e08 2.'S9 L85 ZL'Ls 18°CY ybnoioquepp
0v'192'C 0S5'¥88°L €T'ee9’l 16'18¢€'1 0,°0€L’) 20'G00'1 €'6.8 08'€S. S$3suadx3 [esaua9, UOPUIMS
ybnoioquepp
05°'G56'C 16°29%'C eS¥EL'T ¥1°908'} GL LIV GGeLe'l 9L'6YL L 91686 INNOWY 1119
96°/2¢ 0€'¢/2 98'9¢2 2002 86'€91 9G¥l ¥G/2) 2601 Ryioyny 201104 dIYSHIMN
9.'621 €1'801 2.'€6 0€'6. 88'¥9 191G 9%'0S GTey Aioyiny ai14 uopuims @ sHIM
8€°9¢2 86961 2L0L) S vl 61811 GOS0l €6'L6 6.8/ Josebiey 1S uopeng
0v'192'C 0G'¥88°L €T'ee9’l 16'18¢€'1 0,°0EL’) 20°G00'1 €'6.8 08'€S. S$9suadx3 [esoua9, UopUIMS
jolebie|y 1S uopens
22198'C GE'¥8E'T ¥'990'C £G'8v/L L 19°0S¥'L G9'L/2'L 69CLLL v/ €56 INNOWY 1119
96°/2¢ 0€'¢/2 98'9¢2 2002 86'€91 9G¥l ¥G/2) 2601 Ryioyny 201104 dIIYSHIMN
9.'621 €1'801 2.'€6 0£'6. 88'¥9 191G 9t'0S GTey Aioyiny ai14 uopuims @ sHIM
0lLZrl Zr8ll €9'201 ¥8'08 GO'L. GlL'€9 9Z'SS YASWA 2 usllemz)l4 uojuels
0v'192'C 0S5'¥88°L €T'ee9’l 16'18¢€'1 0L°0EL’) 20'G00'1 €'6.8 08'€S. S$9suadx3 [esoua9, UOpPUIMS
uallemzii4 uojuels
20°/£8'C 81 ¥9¢'C 96'870'C v.'€SL'L 1G8LY'L 06092} 82°¢0L'L 19'G¥6 INNOWY 1119
96°/2¢ 0€'€/2 98'9¢2 2002 86'€91 9G¥l ¥G/2) 2601 Ryioyny 201104 dIIYSHIMN
9.'621 €1'801 2.'€6 0€'6. 88'%9 191G 9%'0S GZey Aioyiny ai14 uopuims @ sHIM
06'LL1 GZ'86 GlL'G8 602, G6'8S 0v'2S G8'GY 0€'6¢ uojsiely yinos
0v'192'C 0G'¥88°L €T'ee9’l 16'18¢€'1 0L°0EL’) 20'G00'1 €'6.8 08'¢S. S$3suadx3 [esoua9, UOpPUIMG
uojsieN yinos
21'€08'2 £6'GEE'T 8Y'720'C 20cLL'L 95°L0%'L €8'S¥T | 0L°060°'L LE'¥E6 INNOWY 1119
96'/2¢ 0€'€.2 98'9¢2 2002 86'€91 9G¥ ¥S/21 2601 Ayioyiny 801104 S1YSHIAN
9/'621 €180l 2L'€6 0€'6. 88'%9 1915 9t'09 GZ'ey Aioyiny aii4 uopuims @ sHIM
00'¥8 000 /909 €e'1Ls 00°Z¥ XA 19C¢ 0082 SUMN
0¥'192'C 0G'#88'L €T'ce9’l 16'18€'1 0,°0EL’L ,0°S00°L €'6.8 08'€S. ,S9suadx3y [eJoUSD, UOPUIMS
3YIAN
d-3 d-3 d-3 d-3 d-3 d-3 d-3 d-3 saysued
H ) 4 3 a ) g Y

pueg uoljenjep



Page 155

V. ¥ 82CLE'C 86'€00'C 89'G69'| 1€°/8¢€°L 2T eeT’ | 90'6/0°L 16726 INNOWY 1119
96'/2¢ 0€'€/2 98'9¢2 2002 86'€91 9G¥l ¥G/21 2601 Aioyiny 821104 SYSHIMN
9/'621 €L'80l 2.'€6 0€'6. 8879 1915 9t 09 GZ'eY Aioyny aii4 uopuims @ sHIM
29'GS GEop LL0Y 66'€E 1812 2Lt €912 ¥G'8l sosuadx] |eloadg
0’192 0G'#88'L €T'ee9’l 16'18¢€'L 0,°0EL’L ,0°G00°L €'6.8 08'¢S. ,S9suadx3y [eJoUSD, UOPUIMS
ealy paysiied-uUoON UOPUIMS
paly asuadx3y [e1dads
98'8€6'C G0'6¥¥'C 162212 16'G6/L'L Sy 697 L 91'90¢'} 68°ZrL L 29'6/6 INNOWY 1119
96'/2¢ 0€'€.2 98'9¢2 2002 86'€91 9G¥ ¥S/21 2601 Ayioyiny 801104 S1YSHIAN
9/'621 €180l 2L'€6 0€'6. 8879 1915 9t 09 GZ'eY Aioyiny aii4 uopuims @ sHIM
v, 612 zL'esl 0.'8S1 8T ¥El /8601 99'/6 91'G8 Gzel uoyBNoIAA
0¥'192'C 0G'#88'L €T'ce9’l 16'18€'1 0,°0EL’L ,0°S00°L €'6.8 08'€S. ,S9suadx3y [eJoUSD, UOPUIMS
UoIyBNOIM
95°058'C 9r'G/E'T ¥/'850'C x4 7N" 82'GZ'L 16°992"L GG'80L°L 81056 INNOWY 1119
d-3 d-3 d-3 d-3 d-3 d-3 d-3 d-3 saysued
H ) 4 3 a ) g Y

pueg uoljenjep




%vv £66'€83
%070 03

%8¢ 26023
%S°L GOL'LL3
%89 [A4&]
%0°G 1963
%0°00L  991°L€3
%E'S 1623
%00 03

%V'8 000°2Z3
%8l G6Z'¥3
%E Ly LELL3
%00 03
%10~ (440
%6°0¢ €043
%0°¢- 00023~
%6’ L €¢c3

91-5102 03 SI-¥102
abueys jdasaid

Z Xipuaddy

%0°v GS'C3 652'968L3 1'80L°0¢  86'Z93 ZST'086°L3 2'61Z°0€ €593
%2C'6 92’63 G/T'86C3 L'¥96'C 190013 G/T'86C3 8VvLLT /860L3
%0°L G9'03 vi1'GS3 v'.l¥8 10'993 9€T'/S3 608 ¢.'993
%0°CL 19CL3 €GL'VLL3 9€LE'L ¢s'soL3 8G1'€8/3 88299 618LL3
%9'€ 6¥'C3 00593 8'v6 19'893 Zv6'93 L'/6 G0'LL3
%S¢ vyL3 25613 g'oge 1G°L93 €Le'0C3 9'vve G6'853
%0°00L 0023 V/N 00 0003 991°2€3 6'¥88 00¢¥r3
%60 L€03 19G°G3 A €8'¢e3 8G8'G3 9'LLL rL've3
%0°0 0003 03 ocy 0003 03 414 0003
%6°€ crv3 000°'02€3 ¥'208°C 6L¥LL3 000°.¥€3 9626’ 198LL3
%00 0003 86€'GEC3 €'805'L Ge'Les €69'6£C3 L'SY9'L GELET
%S'9¢ 1663 \w.'T3 L's0olL 80'9¢3 T/8'e3 8'80l 65'G€3
%60~ §2'03F 00€'9€3 e G9'6C3 00€'9€3 8veC'L 0v'6C3
%L L- 9903 AAVRAK C'¥86 KA 000°2€3 8'000°L /L6'LEJ
%cC 0L 144 %; L9g'€3 ¥'66 18'€€3 ¥90'v3 L'60lL STAVAK
%91 0€'03 000863 v'LLE'S €¥'8l3 000963 6'GCL'S €L8L3
%0°0 0003 258113 g'eoe 80'6€3 GL0CL3 0'60¢ 80'6€3
916102 03 §1-¥102 Sl-¥102 Sl-¥102 Sl-¥102 91-6102 9L-GL0C 91-510¢
abueys abieyn g pueg jdadaid aseg xe] abueyo q pueg jdasaid aseg xe] abieyn g pueg

lejol

uowybnoipn
ybnoioquepp
10.ebiepy 1S uopess
ualiemz)jl{ UOJUE}S
uojsiepy yinos
SUMN

uojbuippI
weysajbu|
uHomybiH

¥OIN\ UopAeH
uoibuluueH
weybuinon
uopjesiyd

uoje3 sjisen

uopsun|g

auojsdoysig

Page 156



%9°€

LGC'9E3

%0°0

0003

8/6'700°'L3 8'9€L'9¢

18,23

009929

62C'LY0°L3  80vY'LE 18/T3

3svd Xv1

ealy payslied-UoN

Page 157



This page is intentionally left blank

Page 158



Agenda ltem 8

Housing Revenue Account (HRA) - Rents and Charges

2015/16
Cabinet Date: 4" February 2015
Author: Cabinet Member for Housing and Public Safety
Board Director, Commissioning
Wards: All
Locality Affected: All

Parishes Affected: All

1.1

1.2

1.3

2.1

2.2

2.3

2.4
2.5

Purpose and Reasons

To present the proposed rents, service charges and support charges for 2015/16
and the proposed Housing Revenue Account (HRA) budget for 2015/16.

The effective management of financial resources through robust financial
management processes underpins the Council’s ability to achieve its plans and
priorities.

The additional funding that will be provided by the higher rent increases will be of
direct benefit to all tenants as it will ensure that the housing stock is maintained in
both the short and long term. This will promote the corporate priorities of
“Working with residents to create well cared for neighbourhoods” and “Together,
finding new ways to reduce vulnerability and improve health for all.”

Recommendations

Cabinet is invited to recommend to the Council as follows:

The proposed average rent for Housing Revenue Account (HRA) dwellings for
2015/16 of £81.34 per week (52 week basis), which is an increase of 2.2%, be
approved. This will be an average increase of £1.96 per week (52 week basis).
The range of increases is shown in paragraph 3.15.

To authorise the Board Director, Commissioning to seek authority from the
Secretary of State to extend the permission for the use of the Housing Revenue
Account for payments to the Council’s tenants under the Discretionary Housing
Payments scheme, and provide a budget of £300k in 2015/16 as detailed at
paragraphs 3.23.

The housing related support charges for 2015/16 and service charges for
2015/16 as outlined in Appendix 2 are approved.

Leaseholder service charges are set for 2015/16 as shown in Appendix 3.

Based on the proposals set out within this report that the Housing Revenue
Account (HRA) proposed budget 2015/16, shown in Appendix 4, be approved

Further information on the subject of this report can be obtained from Paul Smith, 01793
463976, psmith2@swindon.gov.uk.

Page 159



Housing Revenue Account (HRA) - Rents and Charges
2015/16

Cabinet Date: 4" February 2015

and that the HRA Capital Budget and Funding be approved as shown in
Appendix 5.

2.6 That a budget of £1m is approved to acquire properties as detailed at paragraph
3.39 below, and to authorise the Board Director, Commissioning in consultation
with the Board Director, Resources to commit this expenditure.

2.7 That the draft 3 year capital projects and planned maintenance programme be
approved at an indicative funding level of £16.8m (2015/16 prices) per annum for
each of the years 2015/16 through to 2017/18 as shown in Appendix 6.

2.8 Rents charged on General Fund properties are increased by an average
increase of 2.2% and the service charges for Christopher House and David
Murray John Apartments, as shown in Appendix 7, be approved.

2.9 Rents charged for plots at the Hay Lane Residential Gypsy Site are increased by
£1.07 per week (2.2%) to £49.81 per week (52 week basis) and the rents for
workpens, as shown in Appendix 7, are approved.

2.10 The charges for Private Sector Leased (PSL) accommodation for those accepted
as homeless outlined in Appendix 7 are approved.

2.11  Any underspend on the 2014-15 Housing Revenue Account is added to revenue
reserves.

3. Detail

3.1 The Housing Revenue Account (HRA) is a statutory account set up in
accordance with the Local Government and Housing Act 1989. This is a
significant budget for the Council amounting to £50.4m of Gross Income in
2014/15 (a budget overview is provided at Appendix 1). The account is ring
fenced and cannot be subsidised by the General Fund or vice versa.

3.2 The HRA contains all expenditure relating to the Council’s landlord function of
circa 10,350 dwellings, supported housing schemes, sheltered schemes,
commercial premises and garages. Income is generated through rents, charges
and interest received on balances.

Housing Revenue Account (HRA) Rents and Charges

3.3 Swindon’s Housing Revenue Account (HRA) receives the majority of its income
from the charges it levies upon its tenants. Tenants can pay up to 3 elements for
their homes:

3.3.1 Rent - a charge for the occupation of a dwelling. Rents pay for the
management and maintenance of the properties.

Further information on the subject of this report can be obtained from Paul Smith, 01793
463976, psmith2@swindon.gov.uk.

Page 160



Housing Revenue Account (HRA) - Rents and Charges

2015/16

Cabinet Date: 4" February 2015

3.4

3.5

3.6

3.7

3.8

3.3.2 Service charge - additional services which may not be provided to every
tenant, or which may be connected with communal facilities e.g. a
caretaker service.

3.3.3 Support charge - additional services to help tenants maintain their
tenancies i.e. the warden service in sheltered accommodation and the
Homeline alarm system.

Dwelling Rents and Capital Investment

Government rent policy guidance, introduced nationally for local authorities in
April 2002, has in previous years established the local authority average
guideline rent increase by applying Retail Price Index (RPI) inflation at the
previous September plus 0.5%, and a convergence factor of up to £2 per week.
The £2 per week convergence factor cap reflected the policy objective of
increasing Local Authority rents to similar levels to those charged by Registered
Providers (Housing Associations). Under self-financing, the Government
calculated an allocation of debt to Swindon of £138.6m on the basis that this
would be affordable given rents would increase per the policy in place at the time
and detailed above.

Following consultation the Government has announced that from 2015/16 this
guidance will be replaced by new guidance that requires rent increases to be via
a formula of September Consumer Price Index (CPI) + 1% for the next 10 years.
Historically CPI has been lower than RPI, so the expected impact of this policy
would be to reduce annual rent increases, and therefore significantly reduce the
rental income predictions on which our business plan is based. (estimated loss of
2015/16 income alone is over £2m)

To illustrate the difference, the comparative inflation indices for September 2014
and resultant formula rent increase are as follows:

Inflation Index Formula Increase (RPI + 0.5% / CPI + 1%)
RPI -2.3% 2.8% (+ up to £2 per week)
CPI-1.2% 2.2%

On the introduction of its new guidance the Government’s existing rent
restructuring policy will cease from 2015/16, with the exception of re-letting
properties at the converged rent level on re-let.

Whilst the move to the new social rent policy represents potentially lower rent
increases for tenants, the removal of rent convergence and change in formula

Further information on the subject of this report can be obtained from Paul Smith, 01793
463976, psmith2@swindon.gov.uk.

Page 161



Housing Revenue Account (HRA) - Rents and Charges

2015/16

Cabinet Date: 4" February 2015

3.9

3.10

3.11

3.12

represents a real, and significant, loss of rental income to the Council. More
importantly it maintains the situation where existing tenancies are being charged
considerably less rent than incoming new tenants. The difference between rents
for neighbouring properties is on average around £4 per week, with the maximum
difference at over £12 per week.

With the introduction of HRA Self-Financing in March 2012, the settlement that
resulted in loans of £138.6m being taken on by the Council was calculated on the
basis of projected income from rent convergence level increases, albeit with
adjustments recognising the impact of the £2 above inflation increases.
Therefore, rents were increased to meet interest and debt repayment
requirements in accordance with the projected levels in the Business Plan.

The level of rent directly affects the amount of funding available to run housing
services and service the debt, but also importantly for capital investment as
demonstrated below. The higher the rental income, then the more funding that is
available ultimately for capital investment once operational costs have been
taken into account. This becomes increasingly important because of the much
needed investment required in the Council’s non- traditionally built homes and
upgrades required to the sheltered housing stock. Cabinet previously approved a
3-year programme from 2014/15 to 2016/17 of £16.8m per annum in order to aid
certainty and allow longer-term investment planning rather than the previous
annual approach.

A summary of the proposed 2015/16 budget is shown below:

Provisional budget for 2015-16 £m

Rent (£43.98m) & other income £50.378
Less Operational Costs (£12.111)

Repairs Service (£ 12.167)

Debt Interest (net of interest received) (£ _4.300)

Available for investment £ 21.800
Debt Repayment (£ _5.000)
Available for Capital Investment £ 16.800

Investment requirements

RAND Associates were contracted in 2011 to identify the HRA capital investment
requirements for the HRA stock for the next 30 years. This included an
assessment of the required investment in bathrooms and kitchens, heating, and
structural repairs to the non-traditionally built stock, as well as modernisation of
sheltered housing. RAND recommended investment of £108.176m over the first
5 years of the business plan. Up to and including these 15/16 proposals
£61.027m will have been provided, which leaves a £47.149m shortfall to be

Further information on the subject of this report can be obtained from Paul Smith, 01793
463976, psmith2@swindon.gov.uk.

Page 162



Housing Revenue Account (HRA) - Rents and Charges
2015/16

Cabinet Date: 4" February 2015

funded in 2016/17 to meet the 5 year recommendation. Assuming that a further
£16.8m is available to support this in 16/17 then the overall shortfall in
investment over 5 years will be in the region of £30m.The detailed long term
future requirements outlined in the RAND report will be considered as part of the
Medium Term Financial Plan that will be presented to the March Cabinet

meeting.

3.13 Table 1 below shows the effect of the different rent proposals on average rents,
total rent income and the amount available to invest in homes.

Table 1 Investment in property based on different rent levels

2015/16
Proposed Increase 1.20% 2.20% 3.20%
Rent Income £50.0m £50.4m £50.8m
Cost (£33.6m) (£33.6m) (£33.6m)
Balance for Capital £16.4m £16.8m £17.2m
Required Budget £16.8m £16.8m £16.8m
Surplus/(Shortfall) (£0.4m) Nil £0.4m
Average Rent (52 week basis) £80.55 £81.34 £82.14

3.14 A capital budget of £16.8m in 15/16 would equate to the 14/15 budget although
in real terms is a reduction due to the impact of inflation.

3.15 Table 2 below shows the rent increases by property size and the range of
increases within that band. The historical rent calculation formula means that
there is no “average” property within the stock as the rent for each property is
based on a combination of number of bedrooms and 1999 property value.
Previous Government policy was that rents would converge in line with a formula
towards “target rents,” which would result in more consistency between
properties. However as this process stopped before all properties reached their
target rent, there is still a wide range of actual rents being paid.

Further information on the subject of this report can be obtained from Paul Smith, 01793
463976, psmith2@swindon.gov.uk.

Page 163



Housing Revenue Account (HRA) - Rents and Charges
2015/16

Cabinet

Date: 4" February 2015

Table 2 Average and range of rent by property size

No of Bed room size Final Rent for Rent for Lowest Highest
properties position existing new rent per rent per
at Dec 14 at year tenants tenants week week

end for for
2014/15 2015/16  2015/16

277 Bedsits £64.74 £66.96 £68.69 £60.58 £75.43
3,247 1 £71.22 £73.13 £77.50 £64.24 £86.90
2,840 2 £79.67 £81.65 £84.73 £72.73 £99.40
3,824 3 £86.14 £88.13 £92.69 £80.20 £114.28
192 4 £98.40 £100.55 £107.11 £83.16  £111.77

4 5 £105.20 £107.52 £115.20 £85.26  £118.87

2 >5 £107.21 £102.05 £114.52 £98.81 £105.29

10,386 OVERALL £79.38 £81.34 £85.40

3.16

3.17

3.18

3.19

Rent Proposals 2015/16

As detailed in earlier paragraphs, the debt allocated to Swindon was based on an
assumption that rents would rise faster under previous policy and could support
the repayment of the debt and the related interest

As cost inflation is likely to outstrip CPI inflation, officers are recommending that
rent increases of 2.2% (i.e. CPI plus 1%) are applied in line with Government
guidance in order that funding available for investment, although much lower
than that required, is held at the sum previously approved by Cabinet in February
2014, being £16.8m

Rent increases affect not only the annual budget proposals but also all future
years of the business plan due to the cumulative nature of the impact on the
starting budget for future years. The HRA business plan makes assumptions
over 30 years, in line with the original debt calculation, around operational costs,
rent income (including the effect on voids and bad debts), debt charges and
inflation in order to ascertain whether capital investment plans are affordable not
just in the short term, but over the medium and long term.

As costs increase (most likely in line with RPI) and rents increase in line with
CPI, there is likely to be a widening gap in the funding available to support capital
investment unless rents are increased by CPI plus 1%. Although officers are
always looking to improve the value for money from available budgets through
improved procurement, a reduction in the available funding will increase the
difference between the investment need and that which can be delivered. Whilst
the Government continues to apply a borrowing cap to the HRA there is only a

Further information on the subject of this report can be obtained from Paul Smith, 01793
463976, psmith2@swindon.gov.uk.

Page 164



Housing Revenue Account (HRA) - Rents and Charges
2015/16

Cabinet Date: 4" February 2015

limited amount of capacity to fill this through increased borrowing, as well as the
budget having to bare increased debt costs if this were the case.

3.20 The HRA 2014/15 budget is currently projecting a revenue underspend in year
due mainly to unforeseen savings on staff vacancies around on-going
organisational review. However, due to the adverse weather conditions over the
previous 12 months the demand continues for additional roof repairs and
improving certain grassed areas damaged by off road parking due to wet ground
conditions. Therefore, these funds will be diverted towards these additional
requirements.

Affordable Rents

3.21 There are different guidelines that cover affordable rent properties, these are set
out below

The maximum annual rent increase on an Affordable Rent property will be
RPI + 0.5 per cent. However associations will be required to rebase the
rent on each occasion that a new tenancy agreement is issued (or
renewed) for an Affordable Rent property. This requirement, which
overrides the RPI + 0.5 per cent limit, is designed to ensure that the rent
set at the beginning of each new tenancy is no higher than 80 per cent of
the market rent.

Source House of Commons Library Affordable Rent Model Standard Note: SN/SP/5933
18 March 2013

3.22 In light of the discussions around rents that are applied to social rent levels it is
proposed that the rent increase for affordable rent properties is kept in line with
the social rents at 2.2%.

Discretionary Housing Payments Fund (DHP)

3.23 In 2014/15 the Council obtained permission from the Secretary of State to
provide Discretionary Housing Payments Fund (DHP) of up to £420k through the
HRA. This funding is only for the benefit of HRA tenants to ensure that sufficient
funding is available to support those affected by Welfare Reform. The current
permission is valid for the financial year beginning 1% April 2014. Given that
current forecasts indicate that it is unlikely that the full £420k will have been
spent by 31 March 2015, authority is sought for the Board Director,
Commissioning to write to the DCLG for permission to extend the arrangement
into 2015/16 and a budget of £300k has been earmarked to support this
arrangement.

Further information on the subject of this report can be obtained from Paul Smith, 01793
463976, psmith2@swindon.gov.uk.

Page 165



Housing Revenue Account (HRA) - Rents and Charges

2015/16

Cabinet Date: 4" February 2015

3.24

3.25

3.26

3.27

3.28

3.29

Support and Service Charges

As part of rent setting in previous years all service charges were re-calculated to
ensure that they fully recovered their costs, a policy which has continued this
year. The main cost pressures this year have come from increases in the cost of
utilities which are continuing to rise above the rate of inflation (Gas and electricity
are predicted to rise by 5%-10%). These increases have to be passed on via
increases in the service charges; however, where there has been an over
recovery of service charges in earlier years this has been used to reduce the
impact of the increases. Full details of all service charges can be found in
Appendix 2.

Leaseholder Service Charges

Leaseholders are recharged the full cost of providing services. The charges
proposed for leaseholder are shown in Appendix 3.

It is proposed to increase the charge for the costs of the administration involved
in the resale of leases, to cover officer time in processing these applications.
Currently leaseholders are charged for the Council’s legal fees, but not for other
admin costs. The proposed charge is £155 per transaction and is included in
Appendix 3.

Garage Rents and Parking Charges

Garage and parking space rents for tenants have been held this year due to the
level of demand as demonstrated by the level of voids. Cross over charges and
premium parking provision have been increased in line with inflation. Details are
shown in Appendix 2.

Consultation

The rent setting presentation explained the options available when setting the
budget this year. 3 different rent options were presented these were:

. CPl only — a 1.2% increase.
. CPl + 1% — a 2.2% increase (Recommended)
. CPI + 2% — a 3.2% increase.

Two general rent consultation meetings were held, and the Housing Advisory
Forum was asked for its views. An extract has also been circulated via ehousing
and the housing Facebook page for comments. An online survey was undertaken
and feedback cards were also provided. The outcome of all the preferences
expressed from the various consultations are given below.

Further information on the subject of this report can be obtained from Paul Smith, 01793
463976, psmith2@swindon.gov.uk.

Page 166



Housing Revenue Account (HRA) - Rents and Charges
2015/16

Cabinet Date: 4" February 2015

Option 1 1.2% Option 2 2.2% Option 3 3.2%
Survey Monkey 28 20 27
Housing Sounding Board 31 36 44
Rent Consultations 5 8 0
TOTAL 64 64 71

3.30 The above table shows that there was a fairly even split between each of the
options, it was made clear to tenants during the consultations that Option 1 would
result in a reduction in capital funding. Addresses were checked for those taking
part to see if they were tenants. A cross check also found several individuals
making multiple returns, this is accounted for in the results. Twenty responses
were anonymous, eight stated a preference for option 1, four for option 2 and
eight for option 3,

Housing Revenue Account (HRA) Budget 2015/16

3.31 The HRA budget for 2015/16 is dependent upon the decisions Members make
around changes to rents, service charges, support charges, and capital
investment.

3.32 Appendix 4 shows the proposed HRA budget for 2015/16 assuming Members
agree to the recommendations on rents and charges set out in this report. The
following paragraphs outline the major movements (key variances) from the
2014/15 base budget to the proposed 2015/16 budget. This section will also
bring to Members’ attention the short term and medium financial implications and
challenges facing Swindon’s HRA.

3.33 The current HRA debt will stand at £135.5 million on 31 March 2015 and the
average interest rate for this is 3.32%. Interest on this borrowing for 2015/16 is
£4.50m (item 26, Appendix 4).

3.34 The budgeted cost of revenue repairs (item 3&4, Appendix 4) has remained at a
similar level to last year at £12.167m in 2015/16. The intention is to increase the
size of this team to enable them to undertake some of the smaller capital works
that would have historically been carried out by contractors. The cost of these
works will be charged to the capital programme. Re-tendering exercises have

Further information on the subject of this report can be obtained from Paul Smith, 01793
463976, psmith2@swindon.gov.uk.

Page 167




Housing Revenue Account (HRA) - Rents and Charges
2015/16

Cabinet Date: 4" February 2015

resulted in a reduction in the cost of vacant property repairs, this has allowed
additional spend in other areas.

3.35 The proposed budget includes a decrease in bad debt provision from 3.5% of
rents to 1.55%, which has resulted in a decrease in the provision of £530k (item
10, Appendix 4).

3.36 The HRA Capital Improvement Programme covers 3 major areas, these are:

. Capital projects i.e. kitchens & bathrooms, insulation improvements
etc.

. Planned maintenance programme i.e. fencing, paths, electrical
maintenance, heating etc.

. Regeneration & acquisition / new build programme.

3.37 The capital projects and planned maintenance programme has been maintained
at £16.8m (item 1, Appendix 5). This reflects additional funding to address some
of the items identified in the latest stock condition survey and will provide
approximately 530 kitchens and 200 bathrooms as part of the on-going
maintenance programme.

3.38 Currently the Right to Buy legislation has resulted in an increase in the number of
properties being sold. However, due to current economic conditions and the
changes in the discounts, the net receipt to the Council has reduced. It is
anticipated that there will be an additional receipt available for investment under
the Government’s new Right to Buy mechanism of circa £0.5m per annum,
although this is ring-fenced to new build, and/or acquisition of properties and
must be match funded by the HRA. It is anticipated that there will be circa £1.2m
available to spend at the end of March 2015.

3.39 ltis proposed to provide an additional £1m on top of that budgeted for in
2014/15, to enable the purchase of 1 and 2 bedroom properties within the HRA
estate areas. In addition, this funding stream will also be used to acquire
properties that are suitable to support Adult Social Care clients who need
accommodation, (item 2, Appendix 5). This will provide options for those tenants
who need to downsize due to the introduction of the Welfare Reforms. Appendix
5 items 17 -20 provide a summary of the retained Right To Buy (RTB) income
that is available for investment in new build programmes. It is anticipated that this
funding, referred to in the previous paragraph, will be used to help fund this.

3.40 Any other new build and major regeneration programmes will be brought to
Cabinet for separate approval and will take account of the Housing Strategy
2015-26. Regeneration and new build opportunities can take advantage of the
borrowing headroom available to the HRA.

Further information on the subject of this report can be obtained from Paul Smith, 01793
463976, psmith2@swindon.gov.uk.

Page 168



Housing Revenue Account (HRA) - Rents and Charges
2015/16

Cabinet Date: 4" February 2015

3.41 A draft 3 year capital programme is attached at Appendix 6. The purpose of
recommending a 3 year programme rather than the usual 1 year is to enable
better forward planning and provide certainty. Any future decisions around rent
increases will increase the base amount available. It is recommended that the
indicative level of spend outlined in Appendix 6 be approved.

3.42 The proposals contained in this report will produce a balanced HRA budget in
2015/16.

General Fund Rents and Service Charges

3.43 It has been agreed in previous year that the rent increases for the residential
properties owned by the General Fund (including the David Murray John Tower -
DMJ) would follow the same rent setting approach as used for HRA properties.
Appendix 7 shows the proposed service charges for the DMJ and Christopher
House (Flats over the shops at Marlowe Avenue) and it is recommended that
these be approved.

Hay Lane Residential Gypsy Site

3.44 There are 37 plots at Hay Lane and a rent of £48.74 per week was charged in
2014/15. It is proposed to increase this charge for 2015/16 in line with other
general fund properties to £49.81 per week, an increase of 2.2%.

3.45 Workpens at Hay Lane vary in size and each has a separate charge. It is
proposed that the charges are increased by 2.2% for 2015/16 and it is therefore
recommended that charges for Hay Lane outlined at Appendix 7 be approved.

3.46 The Council does not charge for its transit Gypsy and Traveller site so as to
encourage illegal encampments to move on. No change to this is proposed.

Homelessness Contributions

3.47 The level of homelessness contributions for private accommodation are linked to
the Local Housing Allowance that is payable for each size of property. The
details of these charges are shown on Appendix 7 but should be noted that these
charges are subject to any changes to Local Housing Allowances made by
Government.

4. Alternative Options

4.1  The setting of local authority rent is a local decision. Central Government
provides guidance that increases should be based on CPI + 1%. The Council
does however need to be mindful of its duty as a landlord to provide and maintain
a decent standard of accommodation for its tenants and for future generations in
need of affordable housing.

Further information on the subject of this report can be obtained from Paul Smith, 01793
463976, psmith2@swindon.gov.uk.

Page 169



Housing Revenue Account (HRA) - Rents and Charges
2015/16

Cabinet Date: 4" February 2015

4.2  The Council has chosen to use a level of rent increase that is in line with
Government guidance. This will enable the properties to be maintained at the
decent homes standard, but will not address the major repairs that were
recommended in the RAND survey, such as sheltered housing improvements
and extending the kitchen and bathroom programmes.

4.3  The Council could choose a much higher rent than that given under the formula;
this could cause severe financial hardship for some of our poorest tenants.

4.4  Alternatively the Council could set a much lower rent increase. A 1.2% increase
would result in a reduction of £400,000 in 2015/16 which would reduce the
allocation for kitchens and bathrooms from £2.42m to £2.02m. Due to the
subsequent reduction in the base budget in future years, there would be a loss of
income in excess of £12m over the 30 year life of the HRA business plan.

5. Implications, Diversity Impact Assessment and Risk Management

Financial and Procurement Implications

5.1  These have been reflected in the body of the report.

Legal and Human Rights Implications

5.2  Alllegal and human rights considerations have been taken fully into account in
compiling this report. It is considered that the recommendations of this report are
compatible with Convention rights.

All Other Implications (including Staff, Sustainability, Health, Rural, Crime and
Disorder)

5.3  There are no such direct implications.

Diversity Impact Assessment

5.4 A thorough Diversity Impact Assessment was carried out in support of the HRA
Business Plan in 2012. This has been updated annually to reflect the changes in
rents and identified no adverse impact for any protected characteristic. A copy
can be obtained from the report author.

5.5  Setting of local authority rents is largely determined by Government formula. Any
significant departure from the recommendation will not be in the best interests of
tenants. Significant changes would constitute an adverse impact as the Council
is proposing increases in charges that relate to Government guidelines. Tenants
who are eligible for Housing benefit will continue to be able to claim their full
entitlement under the national scheme, and support to enable them to do this is
provided both by housing officers and benefits advisers. Housing staff are aware
that a large proportion of Council tenants are on low incomes and that these

Further information on the subject of this report can be obtained from Paul Smith, 01793
463976, psmith2@swindon.gov.uk.

Page 170



Housing Revenue Account (HRA) - Rents and Charges
2015/16

Cabinet Date: 4" February 2015

increases in charges could cause hardship in some cases. Any tenants who feel
that proposed increases in housing and support costs will cause them hardship
will be able to seek advice from Tenancy Sustainment Officers and their local
Neighbourhood Housing Officers as well as from the Citizens Advice Bureau.

5.6  Information regarding Housing Benefit and the support available from Housing
will be provided to all tenants when they receive notification of new rents for
2015/16. Tenants who fall into rent arrears will be managed according the
Council's Rent Arrears Policy for which a Diversity Impact Assessment has also
been completed.

5.7  The additional funding that will be provided by the higher rent increases will be of
direct benefit to all tenants as it will ensure that the housing stock is maintained
in both the short and long term.

Risk Management

5.8  The main risks facing the HRA are the impending introduction of Universal
Credits. Universal credit seeks to empower benefit claimants by paying all
benefits to the claimant and then allowing them to pay for the services they
receive. Currently all housing benefit entitlements are paid directly to the Council,
thus safe guarding the cash flow from this benefit source, under Universal Credit
this funding would need to be paid by the tenant to the Council in arrears. This
will mean that housing officers will need to arrange and manage the payment
arrangements for a significantly higher number of tenants. Currently around 70%
of tenants have all or some of their rent paid directly by housing benefit.
Universal Credit will commence in Swindon in February 2015 for single person
households. Housing staff will be carefully monitoring the impact of this change
and taking action as required.

6. Consultees

6.1  The Board Director, Resources (Section 151 Officer) and Director of Law and
Democratic Services (Monitoring Officer) are consulted in respect of all reports.

7. Background Papers

7.1 None

8. Appendices
Appendix 1 — Proposed HRA Budget Overview 2015/16.
Appendix 2 — Service charges for 2015/16
Appendix 3 — Leaseholder charges for 2015/16

Further information on the subject of this report can be obtained from Paul Smith, 01793
463976, psmith2@swindon.gov.uk.

Page 171



Housing Revenue Account (HRA) - Rents and Charges
2015/16

Cabinet Date: 4" February 2015

Appendix 4 — Detailed HRA Budget 2015/16
Appendix 5 — Proposed HRA Capital Budget 2015/16
Appendix 6 — Proposed HRA 3 year Capital Programme
Appendix 7 — Proposed HGF Rents & Service Charges 2015/16
9. Key Decision/Decision in Cabinet Work Programme and Forward Plan

9.1  This is not a key decision to be made by Cabinet because the final decision on
setting Housing Revenue Account rents and charges for 2015/16 and approving
the HRA budget for 2015/16 are to be made by full Council on 23™ February
2014. At this meeting, Council will also be asked to approve the General Fund
rents and charges for the David Murray John Tower, the Hay Lane Residential
Gypsy Site and homelessness contributions.

9.2 This item is included in the Cabinet Work Programme and Forward Plan for
February 2015.

Further information on the subject of this report can be obtained from Paul Smith, 01793
463976, psmith2@swindon.gov.uk.

Page 172



Appendix 1 — Overview of HRA Revenue Budget

Expenditure
Management ( staff, overheads and service charge costs)
Repairs (incl. staff costs)
Rent, Rates and Taxes
Debt Management fees and Debt Rescheduling Premium

Gross Expenditure

2014/15 2015/16
Budaet Proposed
d Budget
£ £

11,944,500 11,974,700
12,176,900 12,167,000
76,000 76,700
60,000 60,000
24,257,400 24,278,400

Income
Rents
Voids and Bad debt
Senvice Charges
Other Income (garages, commercial property, Homeline)

(43,031,200)
1,871,400
(4,115,800)
(3,440,600)

(43,980,000)
1,139,800
(4,049,100)
(3,489,600)

Gross Income

(48,716,200)

(50,378,900)

Net Cost of Services

(24,458,800)

(26,100,500)

Net Interest costs ( after interest receivable has been deducted

4,561,700

4,300,500

Projected (surplus) / deficit for the year

(19,897,100)

(21,800,000)

Use of operating Surplus with £56m Loan Repayment
Contribution to capital expenditure and loan repayment
Depreciation Charges = transfer to Major Repairs Resene to
fund capital

Revenue Surplus used in Capital Programme (RCCO)

Use of Operating Surplus

5,000,000 5,000,000
14,400,000 14,400,000
497,100 2,400,000
19,897,100 21,800,000

Page 173




Appendix 2 — Service charqges for 2014/15

Flats (Communal entrance)

Service Charge - Staircase Lighting

Multi Storey service charge

Neighbourhood Wardens Low & medium rise blocks service charge
Neighbourhood Wardens General stock service charge

Sheltered Housing

Sheltered service charge
Heating charge - private use
Heating charge - communal use
Water charge

Guest room charge
Guest flat charge

Other

Cable TV charge

Communal TV aerials

Home contents insurance (per £100 of cover)
Grass Cutting

Hedge

Support Charges

Sheltered housing support charge
Sheltered transitional protection
Homeline Charge

Homeline transitional protection
Homeline Charge - private tenants
Homeline Plus level 1

Homeline Plus level 2

Homeline Plus level 3

Page 174

Current

Charge

2014/15
£

0.64
14.35
1.99
1.17

24.87
11.44
3.76
3.61

13.00
15.00

2.00
1.10
0.11
1.27
1.27

3.10
-1.67
415
-0.30
5.57
12.85
14.30
16.22

Proposed
Charge
2015/16

£

0.59
14.04
1.99
1.17

25.11
11.58
3.80
3.65

13.00
15.00

2.00
1.12

1.30
1.30

3.10
-1.67
4.15
-0.30
5.69
12.85
14.30
16.22



Garage / Parking Charges

Garage rent

Account Garage + VAT

Parking space

Cross over - existing tenants

Cross over - new tenants

Cross over - new build properties (2 spaces)
Account parking space + VAT

Premium Garage + VAT

Premium parking space + VAT

Supported Housing

Service Charge

Heating charge - private use
Heating charge - communal use
Water charge

Electricity

Small Housing Schemes

Service charge - Moredon Road

Service charge - William Robins Court - LD clients

Service charge - William Robins Court - General needs
Service charge - Baileys Farm Gardens - General needs
Service charge - Baileys Farm Gardens - General needs water
Service charge - Marlowe Avenue

Service charge - Twyford Close

Service charge - Evelyn House

Service charge - Tyndale Gardens

Service charge - Kimmerfield Court (SBC element)

Service charge - Kimmerfield Court - Private heating charge
Service charge - Kimmerfield Court - Communal heating charge

Page 175

Current

Charge

2014/15
£

7.51
8.30
2.54
2.21
4.32
8.64
2.83
9.96
6.23

37.59
10.90
3.83
5.80
6.75

34.62
27.02
11.25
13.92
3.82
24.03
8.63
21.74
27.07
7.55
8.40
2.10

Proposed
Charge
2015/16

£

7.51
8.30
2.54
2.26
442
8.83
2.83
9.96
6.23

38.42
9.55
3.36
4.40
8.46

35.26
25.21
11.48
14.23
3.65
24.36
8.24
22.22
27.67
7.65
8.61
2.84



Appendix 3 - Leaseholder Charges

Ground Rent - Annual Charge

Leaseholder management charge - all properties

Leaseholder management charge - properties with communal areas
Service Charge - Staircase Lighting adjusted to actual charge during
annual review

Multi Storey service charge

Administration charge for dealing with the re-sale of leasehold interest

Current
Charge
2014/15
£
10.00
143.68
172.06

40.31

599.59
150.00

Proposed
Charge
2015/16

£

10.00
152.28
182.36

27.90

607.79
155.00

In addition leaseholder pay property insurance based on the insured value of their property and a

contribution to any repairs carried out on their block of flats

Page 176



Appendix 4 - Detailed HRA Budget 2014/15

2014/15 2015/16
Item Budget Proposed
Budget
£ £
EXPENDITURE
1 S&M General 6,152,400 6,286,800
2 S&M Special 5,792,100 5,687,900
3 Repairs Administration 1,284,700 1,472,700
4 Contribution to Repairs Account 10,892,200 10,694,300
5 Rent, Rates & Taxes 76,000 76,700
Capital Financing
6 Capital Charges - depreciation council dwellings 14,400,000 14,400,000
7 Capital Charges - debt rescheduling premium 0 0
8 Revenue Contribution to Capital Outlay (RCCO) - Charged 497,100 2,400,000
9 Debt Management 60,000 60,000
10 Provision for Bad Debts 1,230,000 700,000
11 TOTAL EXPENDITURE 40,384,500 41,778,400
INCOME
Rent income
12 Dwellings (43,031,200) (43,980,000)
13 Less woids 641,400 439,800
14 Garages (1,056,300) (1,056,300)
15 Shops / Commercial (172,300) (252,700)
16 Support charges - Sheltered (216,000) (216,000)
17 Sheltered Housing Senice Charges (2,428,700) (2,312,500)
18 Homeless Hostel Senice Charge (483,200) (454,300)
(46,746,300) (47,832,000)
19 Miscellaneous Properties Rent (95,000) (94,400)
20 Senvice Charges - Flats (78,400) (78,400)
21 Sheltered Housing Heating Charges (909,500) (987,900)
22 Homeline (861,300) (892,800)
23 Other Senice Charges / Other income (1,255,700) (1,193,400)
(3,199,900) (3,246,900)
24 TOTAL INCOME (49,946,200) (51,078,900)
25 NET COST OF SERVICES (9,561,700) (9,300,500)
26 Loan Charges - Interest 4,665,700 4,497,500
27 Interest on balances (interest receivable) (104,000) (197,000)
28 Right to buy mortgage interest (interest receivable)
29 NET OPERATING EXPENDITURE (5,000,000) (5,000,000)
30 Loan repayments 5,000,000 5,000,000
31 PROJECTED (SURPLUS) / DEFEICIT FOR THE YEAR 0 0

Page 177




Appendix 5 - Proposed HRA Capital Budget 2014/15

2014/15 2015/16
Item Budaet Proposed
9 Budget
£ £
HRA Capital Schemes
1 Capital Projects and Planned Maintenance Programme 16,802,800 16,800,000
Slippage from 2013/14 Programme 13,853,000
2 Regeneration and Acquisition Programme 1,000,000 1,000,000
3 Non-Core Works: 0 0
4 Total Capital Programme 31,655,800 17,800,000
HRA Capital Funding Applied
5 Depreciation - transfer to MRR to fund capital 14,400,000 14,400,000
In year Capital receipts 1,228,900
6 S$106 Funding 0
7 Direct Revenue Financing 497,100 2,400,000
8 In year resources available 16,126,000 16,800,000
HRA Capital Reserves
9 Usable Capital Receipts
10 Prudential Borrowing
11 RTB Funding Used 262,000 390,000
12 HRA Capital Resenes 15,267,800 610,000
15,529,800 1,000,000
13 Total HRA Capital Funding 31,655,800 17,800,000
14 Revenue
15 Repairs Budget 12,176,900 12,167,000
16 Total Revenue and Capital Repairs 42,832,700 28,967,000
RTB retained funding
17 Brought forward 1,199,300 1,238,300
18 Used in year (262,000) (390,000)
19 Additional funding from in year sales 301,000
20 Resources carried forward 1,238,300 848,300

Page 178




Appendix 6 - Proposed 3 year Capital Programme

2014/15 2015/16 2016/17 2017/18
Element £ 000's £ 000's £ 000's £ 000's

1|Planned maintenance - Fences & paths 525 500 500 500
2|Planned maintenance - Cyclical 1,675 1,831 1,831 1,831
3|Roofs 1,685 1,927 1,927 1,927
4|Windows 625 972 972 972
5|External / entrance doors 780 804 804 804
6[Central heating 2,335 2,880 2,780 2,780
7|Electrics 1,260 1,295 795 795
8|Kitchens 2,800 1,804 1,804 1,804
9(Bathrooms 740 619 393 393
10|External walls - Repairs 90 90 90 90
11|External walls - Internal Wall Insulation 0 188 563 563
12|Environmental & communal areas 190 200 200 200
13|Related assets 305 264 264 264
14|Contingent major repairs 1,125 193 193 193
15|Exceptional extensive - Encapsulation 1,290 1,575 2,275 2,275
16|Improvements 515 699 449 449
17{Major aids & adaptations 803 900 900 900
18|Environmental improvements 60 60 60 60
TOTAL: 16,803 16,800 16,800 16,800

All budgets are shown in 2014/15 prices.

Page 179




Appendix 7 - Proposed HGF Rents & Service Charges

Hay Lane Caravan Site

Caravan Site Pitch Rent

Caravan Site Workpen Rent Size 1
Caravan Site Workpen Rent Size 2
Caravan Site Workpen Rent Size 3
Caravan Site Workpen Rent Size 4
Caravan Site Workpen Rent Size 5

Christopher House, Marlowe Avenue

Service Charge

David Murray John Building

Heating charge - 1 bed property
Heating charge - 2 bed property

Service charge - 1 bed property
Service charge - 2 bed property

PSL rents

1 Bed
2 Bed
3 Bed
4 Bed

2014/15

Current

Charge

2014/15
£

48.74
415
8.30

10.37

12.44
1.04

19.35

11.17
13.14

26.13
30.74

148.28
169.04
195.00
200.00

Proposed
Charge
2015/16

£

49.81
4.24
8.48

10.60

12.71
1.06

19.35

11.17
13.14

26.13
30.74

148.28
169.04
195.00
200.00

These charges are subject to any changes to Local Housing Allowances made by Government

Page 180



COUNCIL

MONDAY, 23%° FEBRUARY 2015

MINUTES FOR CONFIRMATION

CABINET

WEDNESDAY, 4 FEBRUARY 2015

64. Housing Revenue Account - Rents and Charges 2015/16
(Minute for Confirmation)

The Cabinet Member for Housing and Public Safety and the Board Director,
Commissioning submitted a joint report concerning the proposed budget for the
Housing Revenue Account (HRA) for 2015/16, including proposals for rents, service
charges and support charges for 2015/16.

Councillor Emma Faramarzi, Cabinet Member for Housing and Public Safety,
presented the report and explained how the report set out the context and
background to the proposed Housing Revenue Account Budget for 2015/16 and for
rent levels and service charges. She referred to the outcome of the consultation that
had taken place with tenants groups, the Housing Advisory Forum, and other
stakeholders on the proposals for the HRA and rents and charges. She noted that
there had been a better response to the consultation than in previous years and she
thanked the officers for their efforts in encouraging more tenant involvement. She
commented on the findings of the consultation and the view expressed by the
Housing Advisory Forum. She highlighted the Government’s changes to its Rent
Policy Guidance and to the implications of this for the Council and its tenants. She
emphasised the importance for tenants of the Council seeking to invest in its housing
stock. She believed that the proposed recommendations offered the best outcomes
for both the Council and its tenants.

Councillor Des Moffatt referred to the cost to the Council to repay Government
debt on the HRA. He believed these figures were different from the costs originally
quoted at the time of the proposed Housing Transfer Ballot. He asked for the position
to be clarified.

Councillor Faramarzi advised that she would arrange for Councillor Moffatt to
be provided with the required information.

Resolved — That, subject to the confirmation of the Council —

(a) The proposed average rent for Housing Revenue Account (HRA)
dwellings for 2015/16 of £81.34 per week (52 week basis), which is an increase
of 2.2%, be approved (This will be an average increase of £1.96 per week (52
week basis). The range of increases is shown in paragraph 3.15 of the joint
report.);

Page 181



(b) The Board Director, Commissioning be authorised to seek authority
from the Secretary of State to extend the permission for the use of the Housing
Revenue Account for payments to the Council’s tenants under the
Discretionary Housing Payments scheme, and provide a budget of £300,000 in
2015/16 as detailed in paragraphs 3.23 of the joint report;

(c) The Housing related support charges for 2015/16 and service
charges for 2015/16 as outlined in Appendix 2 to the joint report, be approved;

(d) Leaseholder service charges be set for 2015/16 as shown in
Appendix 3 to the joint report;

(e) Based on the proposals set out within the joint report, the Housing
Revenue Account (HRA) proposed budget for 2015/16, as shown in Appendix
4, and the HRA Capital Budget and Funding as shown in Appendix 5 to the
joint report, be approved;

(f) That a budget of £1m be approved to acquire properties as detailed
in paragraph 3.39 of the joint report, and the Board Director, Commissioning in
consultation with the Board Director, Resources be authorised to commit this
expenditure;

(g) That the draft Three Year Capital Projects and Planned Maintenance
Programme be approved at an indicative funding level of £16.8m (2015/16
prices) per annum for each of the years 2015/16 through to 2017/18 as shown
in Appendix 6 to the joint report;

(h) Rents charged on General Fund properties be increased by an
average increase of 2.2% and the service charges for Christopher House and
David Murray John Apartments, as shown in Appendix 7 to the joint report, be
approved;

(i) Rents charged for plots at the Hay Lane Residential Gypsy Site be
increased by £1.07 per week (2.2%) to £49.81 per week (52 week basis) and the
rents for workpens, as shown in Appendix 7 to the joint report, be approved;

(i) The charges for Private Sector Leased (PSL) accommodation for
those accepted as homeless as outlined in Appendix 7 to the joint report, be
approved; and

(k) That any underspend on the 2014/15 Housing Revenue Account be
added to revenue reserves.

The reasons for the decision and alternative options are as set out in the
report to the meeting.

Page 182



Agenda ltem 9

COUNCIL

MONDAY, 23%° FEBRUARY 2015
MINUTES FOR CONFIRMATION

CABINET

WEDNESDAY, 4 FEBRUARY 2015

65. Strategy to Prevent Child Sexual Exploitation
(Minute for Confirmation)

The Cabinet Member for Children’s Services and the Head of Children, Families and
Community Health submitted a joint report concerning a proposed Strategy to
Prevent Child Sexual Exploitation and setting out an associated delivery plan and
“Zero Tolerance Pledge”.

Councillor Fionuala Foley, Cabinet Member for Children’s Services, advised
that Child Sexual Exploitation was among the most serious and challenging issues
that any Council would face. The proposed strategy set out how the Council would
further enhance its work in responding to this issue. She referred to reports of recent
high profile cases across the Country and how she and senior Council officers and
representatives of partner agencies, including the Police, had recently visited
Rochdale to learn of their experiences in responding to Child Sexual Exploitation and
developing new ways of preventing its occurrence. She stressed that the issue did
not just affect “Looked after Children”, as many nationally reported cases involved
children not in local authority care. She highlighted the play “Chelsea’s Choice” that
highlighted the issue and that was being presented across Swindon’s schools. She
emphasised the importance of everyone remaining vigilant and acting to prevent all
the various strands of Child Sexual Exploitation. She hoped that all Councillors
would fully support the adoption of the Strategy and agree to sign-up to the “Zero
Tolerance Pledge”.

The Chair expressed his support for the strategy and the hope that all
Councillors would sign the “Pledge”. He stressed the need for all Swindon residents
to be vigilant and to act to prevent Child Sexual Exploitation.

Resolved — That the Council is recommended to: -

(a) Approve the Child Sexual Exploitation Prevention Strategy for
Swindon Borough Council as set out in Appendix 1 to the joint report;

(b) Note the associated Child Sexual Exploitation Prevention Delivery
Pan that will be monitored and updated at regular intervals;

(c) Agree to support the introduction of a pledge: Zero Tolerance of
Child Sexual Exploitation in Swindon;

(d) Authorise the Cabinet Member for Children’s Services to sign the
Zero Tolerance of Child Sexual Exploitation in Swindon pledge on behalf of
Swindon Borough Council and invite other Councillors to do so.

Page 183



The reasons for the decision and alternative options are as set out in the
report to the meeting.

68. Anti-Social Behaviour Crime and Policing Act 2014
(Minute for Confirmation)

The Cabinet Member for Housing and Public Safety and the Board Director
Commissioning submitted a joint report concerning the provisions of the Anti-Social
Behaviour, Crime and Policing Act 2014 and the implications and opportunities these
provisions provided for the Council to work with partners to deal with day to day
incidents of crime, nuisance and disorder that could have a substantial impact on
local residents’ lives and feeling of wellbeing.

Councillor Emma Faramarzi, Cabinet Member for Housing and Public Safety,
introduced the report and explained how the Council, through taking up the new
powers and working with partners, could have a real impact to improve the lives of
local residents effected by anti-social behaviour. She emphasised that the Council
always attempted to exhaust all other options before taking legal action to resolve
problems. However, the use of these powers would have a direct effect on the
wellbeing of local residents.

Resolved — That the Council be recommended that:-

(a) The Head of Housing Management and Community Safety, Director
of Public Health and the Head of Planning, Regulatory Services, Heritage and
Libraries in consultation with the Director of Law and Democratic Services,
each be authorised to serve Community Protection Notices in accordance with
Part 4 of the Anti-Social Behaviour, Crime and Policing Act 2014 and in the
event of a breach serve fixed penalty notices;

(b) The Director of Law and Democratic Services, at the request of the
Head of Housing Management and Community Safety, be authorised to seek
Civil Injunctions and where appropriate make applications for breach in
accordance with Part 1 of the Anti-Social Behaviour, Crime and Policing Act
2014;

(c) The Head of Housing Management and Community Safety and the
Head of Planning, Regulatory Services, Heritage and Libraries, in consultation
with the Director of Law and Democratic Services each be authorised to make
Public Space Protection Orders in accordance with Chapter 2 of the Anti-
Social Behaviour, Crime and Policing Act 2014 and in the event of a breach
serve fixed penalty notices;

(d) The Head of Housing Management and Community Safety, in
consultation with the Director of Law and Democratic Services, be authorised
to issue Closure Notices and apply for Closure Orders in accordance with
Chapter 3 of the Anti-Social Behaviour, Crime and Policing Act 2014;

(e) The Director of Law and Democratic Services be authorised to make
the necessary changes to the Council’s Constitution and Scheme of
Delegations, as referred to in the joint report.

The reasons for the decision and alternative options are as set out in the
report to the meeting.

Page 184



MINUTE TO NOTE

CABINET

WEDNESDAY, 4 FEBRUARY 2015

59. Motion at Council - Use of Police Community Support Officers in
Supporting Council Parking Enforcement (Minute for Council to Note)

The Cabinet Member for Strategic Planning, Sustainability and Transport, the
Cabinet Member for the Economy, Regeneration, and Skills, the Board Director,
Service Delivery and the Service Manager, Parking submitted a joint report setting
out a response to a Council Motion of 18" September 2014 concerning parking
enforcement and the involvement of Police Community Support Officers (PCSOs) in
this process (Council Minute 43 refers).

Councillor Garry Perkins, Cabinet Member for the Economy, Regeneration
and Skills, referred to the contents of the report and the problem of indiscriminate
parking that occurred across the Borough and in particular in areas near schools. He
drew attention to the response received from the Wiltshire and Swindon Police and
Crime Commissioner and the view of Wiltshire Police. He explained the statutory
position regarding parking enforcement powers and their use, and the joint working
being developed between Parking Services and the Police.

Councillor Stan Pajak, Leader of the Minority Group on the Council, referred
to the problems of indiscriminate parking around schools and similar public buildings
in his ward. He believed that the problems would really only be overcome if Police
Community Support Officers had the power to act against individual perpetrators. He
was supportive of the recommendation within the report to press again the Police
and Crime Commissioner to consider the greater involvement of PCSOs in parking
enforcement. He believed that with the establishment of the new Town Centre Hub
on the Civic Campus, it was the right time for a joint approach to enforcement to be
introduced.

Councillor Jim Grant, Leader of the Opposition, welcomed the Cabinet’s
support in seeking to encourage the Wiltshire and Swindon Police and Crime
Commissioner and Wiltshire Police to reconsider their approach to the involvement
of PCSOs in parking enforcement. He believed that if PCSOs had additional powers
enabling them to issue penalties, this would act as a deterrent to indiscriminate and
often dangerous parking.

The Chair referred to the excellent work undertaken by PCSOs in many local
communities across the Borough. He referred to the response of the Police and
Crime Commissioner and of Wiltshire Police and that he would be happy to ask them
to reconsider their position with regard to adopting a joint “One Swindon” approach
to enforcement in areas suffering significant problems.

Resolved — (1) That it be noted that that the Leader of the Council wrote to the
Wiltshire and Swindon Police and Crime Commissioner on 11" September 2014 and
that the response received from the Police and Crime Commissioner dated 1%

Page 185



October 2014, was circulated to all Councillors at the Council meeting on 6™
November 2014.

(2) That the work undertaken to move Parking Enforcement officers and the
Police to the former Plus One building on the Civic Campus to enable the teams to
work more closely together on local priorities which are identified in local
neighbourhoods, be noted.

(3) That that the Cabinet Member for the Economy, Regeneration, and Skills,
be requested to invite the members of the Wiltshire and Swindon Police and Crime
Panel to consider the issues highlighted in the Council’s motion on 18" September
2014 and the subsequent response of the Police and Crime Commissioner.

(4) That the Leader of the Council be requested to again contact the Wiltshire
and Swindon Police and Crime Commissioner regarding the content of the letter
dated 1% October 2014 to ask him to reconsider the issue of the involvement of
Police Community Support Officers (PCSOs) in parking enforcement in specific
areas where it has been identified as a neighbourhood priority.

(5) That the Council be advised of the contents of this minute and report
in response to the Motion at the Council meeting on 18" September 2014.
(Council Minute 43 refers.)

The reasons for the decision and alternative options are as set out in the
report to the meeting.

Page 186



Agenda ltem 11
Pay Policy Statement

Cabinet Date: 4™ February 2015

Author: Head of People and Change and Cabinet Member for
Corporate Services

Wards: All

Locality Affected: All

Parishes Affected: All

1.1

1.2

3.2

Purpose and Reasons

The Localism Act 2011 requires local authorities to agree and publish a Pay
Policy Statement by 1% April each year. This report sets out the Council’s Pay
Policy Statement 2015/16 for consideration by Cabinet, prior to referral to Council
for approval.

The Council’s policies in respect of pay and terms and conditions support the
Council’s strategic objectives as part of ensuring that services to the community
can be delivered to the required standards and with due regard to economy,
efficiency and effectiveness.

Recommendations

Cabinet is recommended to:

Review the Council’'s Pay Policy Statement for 2015/16, as set out in Appendix 1
to the report, and recommend it to the Council for approval.

Detail

Section 38 of the Localism Act 2011 placed a requirement on local authorities to
prepare a pay policy statement for each new financial year. The Pay Policy
Statement for 2014/15 has been updated for 2015/16 and must be approved by
the full Council before 31% March 2015. It must be published as soon as is
reasonably practicable after approval including on the authority’s website. The
Statement must set out the Council’s policies relating to the:

3.1.1 Remuneration of its Chief Officers,
3.1.2 Remuneration of its lowest paid employees,

3.1.3 The relationship between the remuneration of its Chief Officers and the
remuneration of its employees who are not Chief Officers, and

3.1.4 The Pay Policy Statement does not cover or include school staff and is not
required to do so.

Each Council is an individual employer in its own right and has the autonomy to
make decisions on pay that are appropriate to local circumstances and which

Further information on the subject of this report can be obtained from Nicola Houwayek,
Head of People & Development, 07824 550456, nhouwayek@swindon.gov.uk.

Page 187



Pay Policy Statement

Cabinet Date: 4™ February 2015

3.3

3.4

3.5

3.6

3.7

3.8

deliver value money for local taxpayers. The provisions of the Localism Act do
not seek to change this or determine what decisions on pay should be taken.
They do however require councils to be open about their policies in relation to
pay and how decisions are made.

The proposed Swindon Statement has been put together taking into account the
relevant sections within Chapter 8 “Pay Accountability” of the Localism Act 2011.
In its development, consideration has also been given to the guidance produced
by the Department for Communities and Local Government - Openness and
Accountability in Local Pay (February 2012) - guidance under Section 40 of the
Localism Act” and the Code of Recommended Practice for Local Authorities on
Data Transparency.

The Statement is broadly the same as that published for 2014/15, with the
following changes and updates having been made:

3.4.1 Page 3: Structure Overview — this section gives an overview of the current
structure of the organisation.

3.4.2 Pages 6 and 7: The pay figures shown are those as at November 2014
and will be updated as at 1% April 2015, to reflect the actual figures at that
time.

The proposed Pay Policy Statement 2015/16 is attached as Appendix A. The
Statement sets out the Council’s policies in relation to the pay of its workforce,
particularly its Chief Officers.

The Statement aims to ensure the Council’s approach to pay and reward attracts
and retains a high performing workforce whilst ensuring value for money. The
Council has previously published information on pay as part of its responsibilities
under the Code of Practice for Local Authorities on Data Transparency.

The Council is required to approve the Statement before 31 March each year
and may be amended by resolution of full Council during the year to which it
relates.

The Pay Policy Statement references a number of existing Council policies and
other information that will be linked to the statement on the internet. These links
will be made available as soon as the statement is made available on the internet
in April. The majority of these are already available to Members and staff via the
intranet.

Alternative Options

As this is a requirement under the Localism Act 2011, there are no alternative
options being put forward.

Further information on the subject of this report can be obtained from Nicola Houwayek,
Head of People & Development, 07824 550456, nhouwayek@swindon.gov.uk.

Page 188



Pay Policy Statement

Cabinet Date: 4™ February 2015

5.1

5.2

5.3

5.4

5.5

7.1

8.1

9.1

Implications, Diversity Impact Assessment and Risk Management

Financial and Procurement Implications

There are no direct financial implications arising from this report as the Pay
Policy Statement sets out the Council’s existing policies relating to remuneration.
It does not serve to set or agree specific rates or numerical amounts.

Legal and Human Rights Implications

The attached Pay Policy Statement complies with Sections 38-43 of the Localism
Act 2011. All other legal and human rights implications have been considered in
the preparation of this report. It is considered that the report and its
recommendations are compatible with Convention Rights.

All Other Implications (including Staff, Sustainability, Health, Rural, Crime and
Disorder)

There are no other implications arising from this report.

Diversity Impact Assessment (DIA)

The Pay Policy Statement is not a policy in its own right but brings together and
references existing policies. All these existing policies are currently being
reviewed and a full diversity impact assessment will be completed on each of
these.

Risk Management

No other risks have been identified other than those mentioned in the body of the
report.

Consultees

The Board Director, Resources (Section 151 Officer) and Director of Law and
Democratic Services (Monitoring Officer) are consulted in respect of all reports.
The Pay Policy Statement has been consulted on with the trade unions

Background Papers

LGA and ALACE Pay Policy Statement Guidance.
Appendices

Appendix 1 — Draft Pay Policy Statement

Key Decision/Decision in Forward Plan

This is not a Key Decision for the Cabinet (as adoption is by the Council) and is
included in the Cabinet Work Programme / Forward Plan for February 2015.

Further information on the subject of this report can be obtained from Nicola Houwayek,
Head of People & Development, 07824 550456, nhouwayek@swindon.gov.uk.

Page 189



This page is intentionally left blank

Page 190



Appendix 1

Swindon Borough Council
Pay Policy Statement 2015

| Introduction

This statement sets out the Council’s policies in relation to the pay of its workforce
(excluding schools), particularly its Chief Officers, in line with Section 38 of the
Localism Act 2011. The statement is approved by Full Council each year and
published on the Council’'s website demonstrating an open and transparent approach

to pay policy.

This statement draws together the Council’s policies relating to the payment of the
workforce particularly

e Chief Officers;
¢ |ts lowest paid employees; and

¢ The relationship between the pay of Chief Officers and the pay of other
employees.

This statement sets out the Council’s key policy principles in relation to pay
evidencing a transparent and open process. It does not supersede the
responsibilities and duties placed on the Council in its role as an employer and under
employment law. These responsibilities and duties have been considered when
formulating the statement.

This statement aims to ensure the Council’s approach to pay attracts and retains a
high performing workforce whilst ensuring value for money. The Council’s aims are
to ensure that remuneration policies are fair to staff, across all posts, and that they
comply with all legal obligations, such as the Equality Act 2010. It sits alongside the
information on pay that the Council already publishes as part of its responsibilities
under the Code of Practice for Local Authorities on Data Transparency. Further
details on this information can be found on the Council’'s website under Open Data
and Transparency.

| Transparency and Autonomy |

The Council recognises and welcomes the aim behind this pay policy statement to
ensure that its approach to pay is accessible for all and to enable local people to
take an informed view of whether local decisions on all aspects of remuneration are
fair and make the best use of public funds.

It also welcomes the Government’s recognition that each local authority remains an
individual employer in its own right and, as such, has the autonomy to make

decisions on pay that are appropriate to local circumstances and deliver value for
money for local taxpayers.

November 2014 1

Page 191



Appendix 1

The Council is under statutory duty to appoint on merit and has to ensure that it
complies with all appropriate employment and equalities legislation e.g. The
Equalities Act. The Council will always seek to appoint the best available candidate
to a post who has the skills, knowledge, experience, abilities and qualities needed for
the post. The Council will therefore consider all applications to try to ensure the best
available candidate is appointed.

If a candidate is a former employee in receipt of a Local Government Pension
Scheme pension or a redundancy payment this will not rule them out from being re-
employed by the Council. Clearly where a former employee left the Council on
redundancy terms then the old post has been deleted and the individual cannot
return to the post as it will not exist. The Council will apply the provisions of the
Redundancy Payments Modification Order regarding the recovery of redundancy
payment if this is relevant. Pensions Regulations also have provisions to reduce
pension payment in certain circumstances to those who return to work within the
local government service.

Amendments to the Pay Policy Statement

This pay policy statement relates to the financial year 2015/16. Information on the
Council's workforce will be published after 1% April 2015 for the financial year.

The statement will be updated annually but may be amended during the year, with
agreement by Full Council, if the need arises.

Publication of and Access to Information

The Council will publish this pay policy statement on its website at
www.swindon.gov.uk as soon as is reasonably practicable after it has been
approved by Full Council. Any subsequent amendments to this pay policy statement
made during the financial year to which it relates will also be similarly published.

For further information about this pay policy statement please contact the Council’'s
Head of Human Resources at nhouwayek@swindon.gov.uk.

November 2014 2

Page 192



Appendix 1

| Structure Overview

As of 24" November 2014 the Council employs 2443 employees (excluding schools)
and provides a wide range of functions.

With effect from 1% October 2014, 239 employees from the Swindon Capita
Partnership were transferred to the Council under Transfer of Undertakings
(Protection of Employment) Regulations (TUPE). These employees were integrated
into the various service areas according to their roles and responsibilities.

With effect from 1% November 2014, 266 employees from the Council’s leisure
function were transferred from the Council under Transfer of Undertakings
(Protection of Employment) Regulations (TUPE) to Greenwich Leisure Limited and
Twigmarket.

The service areas are gathered together in the following groupings:

Chief Executive

The Chief Executive is the lead policy advisor to the Council and supports
Councillors to make decisions on behalf of the community, and to develop plans for
the future of Swindon. Further information about the Chief Executive can be found
on the Council’'s website.

The following services, Internal Audit; Economy, Skills and Property Development;
Law and Democratic Services; and Localities, Community Involvement and
Volunteering; report directly to the Chief Executive.

Commissioning

Commissioning is the process of identifying the needs and resources within the
population and developing policy direction, service models and the market to meet
those needs in the most appropriate and effective way. Effective commissioning is a
key route to achieving the Council’s Priorities.

The service areas that support Commissioning include Public Health,
Commissioning Children and Adults, Children’s Social Care, Community Health and
Family Services, Housing Management and Community Safety, Education Services
and Partnerships and Strategic Commissioning.

The current Board Director Commissioning also holds statutory roles and risk as
Director of Adult Social Services (DASS) and Director of Children Services (DCS).

Service Delivery

Service Delivery is accountable for joined-up delivery across all service areas,
partners and providers leading to effective delivery of statutory, support and
commercial services to agreed outcomes.

The service areas that support Service Delivery include StreetSmart, Delivery

Assets, Planning, Regulatory Services, Libraries and Heritage and, Business
Services Support.

November 2014 3

Page 193



Appendix 1

Resources
Resources are the enabling function of the Council.

The service areas that support Resources include Finance and Change,
Performance, People and Engagement, Information and Technology, Customer and
Business Services and Strategic Project (Wichelstowe)

The current Board Director Resources also holds the statutory role as the Council’'s
Section 151 (S151) Officer for the Council.

The Council's organisation chart can be found on the Council’'s website.

| Senior Officers

This section provides information on the Council’'s Senior Officers.

e Definition
¢ New Appointments and Pay
e Terms and Conditions

Definition
Senior Officers have been defined as the posts of:

e Chief Executive — Head of Paid Service
e Statutory and non-statutory Chief Officers (a person for whom the Head of
Paid Service has direct responsibility), i.e.:

Board Director — Commissioning (DCS/DASS)

Board Director — Service Delivery

Board Director — Resources and Section 151 Officer

Director of Law and Democratic Services — Monitoring Officer
Head of Localities, Community Involvement & Volunteering
Head of Internal Audit

Director of Public Health

O O O O O O O

o All Deputy Chief Officers (a person who reports directly to or is directly
accountable to one or more of the statutory or non-statutory Chief Officers),
ie:

o All Tier 2 posts at Head of Service Level

Identified Chief Officer roles and salaries can be found on the Council’'s website
under Open Data and Transparency.

November 2014 4

Page 194



Appendix 1

New Appointments and Pay

In relation to Senior Officers, legislation requires the Full Council or a meeting of
Members to be offered the opportunity to vote before large salary packages are
offered in respect of a new appointment. For this purpose, salary packages should
include salary, any bonuses, fees or allowances routinely payable to the appointee to
which the officer is entitled as a result of their employment. The Secretary of State
considers that £100,000 is the right level for that threshold to be set.

In Swindon, this approach will be applied for all roles graded at Director 5 and above.

There are 5 levels in Swindon’s Executive pay structure as detailed below (as from
2011/ 2012):

Level Salary Range
Minimum Maximum
CEO £147,400 £183,700
Board Director £115,200 £138,000
Director 5 £95,100 £113,900
Director 4 £78,500 £94,000
Director 3 £64,900 £77,700

This applies to the Chief Executive and all Board Directors for new appointments
made after 1" April 2012.

The Council’'s Special Committee has delegated powers to make decisions on behalf
of the Full Council, on the advice of the Chief Executive, on any policy or particular
matters that are urgent and considered necessary in the best interests of the
Council.

Process for Setting Pay

As agreed by Full Council in June 2005 and updated by the Special Committee in
November 2013, pay for Senior Officers is set in line with the Executive Pay
Strategy. A copy of the Executive Pay Strategy can be found on the Council’s
website.

In addition, any new appointments at Level Director 5 and above, from 1% April 2012,
will have their salaries agreed by Members.

| Pay Relationships \

This section provides information on the following:

Gender Ratio

Lowest Paid Employees

Highest to Lowest Paid Employees
Pay Increases and Pay Progression
Living Wage

November 2014 5

Page 195



Appendix 1

e Terms and Conditions
e Job Evaluation

Gender Ratio
The table below reflects the Council’s Male / Female ratio on our current National
Joint Council (NJC) and Hay Evaluation Scheme (Hay) Grades:

Grade Female Male Total
J 44 10 54
K 289 159 448
L 144 171 315
M 224 189 413
N 167 125 292
Q 217 95 312
R 79 71 150
S 19 25 44
T 13 16 29
U 12 10 22

Other pay bands with the current Council structure include those who were
transferred from the former Swindon Primary Care Trust (PCT) and those who are
paid at Advisory level. Employees who were transferred from the Swindon Capita
Partnership are not included in the above table as NJC / Hay Grades have not been
allocated.

Lowest Paid Employees

It was nationally agreed that with effect from 1%t October 2013, Spinal Column Point
(SCP) 4 would be removed from the pay scales, making the minimum of the national
NJC scale (SCP 5) £6.44per hour. The Council has implemented a higher minimum
salary point (Point 2 of our Grade J), which equates to £6.58 per hour or £12,702 pa,
based on a 37 hour standard working week. This is above the national minimum
wage of £6.50 per hour. Should the minimum wage be increased to a level above
the minimum rates outlined above, a new minimum level of pay will be negotiated
and implemented.

The definition of the lowest-paid employees adopted by the Council for the purposes
of this statement is as follows:

“The lowest paid employees within the Council are those substantive employees who
are paid on the minimum salary point of the Council’s substantive pay structure.”

The Council considers this to be the most appropriate definition as this is the lowest
pay point and pay level on its substantive pay structure and which normally applies
to new entrants to the lowest graded jobs within the organisation. The exception is
employees who are employed on a Government sponsored apprenticeship
programme that allows for them to be paid at nationally agreed apprenticeship rates.

November 2014 6

Page 196



Appendix 1

Apprentices are paid from the first day of their apprenticeship and they’re entitled to
the National Minimum Wage. The current National Minimum Wage rate for an
apprentice is £2.73 per hour. This rate applies to apprentices aged 16 to 18 and
those aged 19 or over that are in their first year. Apprentices aged 19 or over who
have completed their first year must be paid at least the minimum wage rate for their
age. Please see the table below:

Year Age 21 and | Age 18 — 20 Under 18 | Apprentice *
over
October 2014 £6.50 £5.13 £3.79 £2.73

*This rate is for apprentices under 19 or those in their first year. Those aged 19 or
over and past the first year will receive the rate that applies to their age.

A copy of the Council’s pay scales can be found at Appendix 1 at the end of this
statement.

Highest to Lowest Paid Employees

The tables below indicate the relationship between the highest and lowest paid
employees.

The Chief Executive’s substantive rate of pay is £178,457. He has, however, taken
a voluntary reduction in pay and the table below reflects this (implemented from 1%
April 2012). However, if the Chief Executive was in a redundancy situation, then any
financial calculations would be based on his substantive rate of pay.

Highest Pay £161,003.00

Mean Pay £25,294.83

Median Pay £22.,073.00

Lowest Pay £12,702.00

Ratio of Mean to Highest 1:6.4

Ratio of Median to Highest 1:7.3

Ratio of Lowest to Highest 1:12.7

Definitions

Mean Total pay for substantive employees divided by the number of

substantive employees.

Median | The middle amount of pay of Swindon Borough Council (between the

highest and lowest amounts).

The above rates of pay do not include any pension contributions. Information about
the pension schemes and contribution rates can be found on pages 12 - 14.

The recommendation of the Hutton Report into “Fair Pay in the Public Sector”, as
recognised by the Government in the Code of Recommended Practice for Local
Authorities on Data Transparency, was that a pay ratio of the salary of the Chief
Executive compared to the median average salary in the organisation should be
published.

November 2014 7

Page 197




Appendix 1

The ratio between the highest paid salary and median average salary, the ‘pay
multiple’ is 1:7.3. The Council does not have a policy on maintaining or reaching a
specific ‘pay multiple’. However, the Council is conscious of the need to ensure that
the salary of the highest paid employee is not excessive but is consistent with the
needs of the Council as expressed in this policy statement.

The Hutton Review raised concerns about multiples in the order of 1:20 or higher,
between the lowest and the highest paid employees in local authorities. The
Council’s current ratio of lowest to highest is 1:12.7 and so is well below that level.

Pay Increases and Pay Progression

Where it has been recognised that a role has changed due to responsibilities, job
content, redesign of the post, for example, a revised role profile will be submitted for
re-evaluation in accordance with the Council’s approved job evaluation schemes.
Further information about the Council’'s approved job evaluation schemes can be
found on pages 9-10.

National Pay
The Council will apply any annual pay increases that are agreed by relevant national
negotiating bodies.

The 2014 / 2015 pay award has been agreed nationally and has two elements:

1. Lump sum payments of between £100 and £325 to be paid in full in
December 2014 (pro rata for part time workers);

2. The long term deal is for a 2.2% increase which applies to grade K and above
to run from 1 January 2015 (and is not backdated to April 2014).

Higher amounts will be paid to grade J of between 2.32% and 7.93%.

This will mean pay increases for all staff on local government terms and conditions,
including employees that have recently transferred back from the Swindon Capita
Partnership. A change from previous years is that the on-going increase will not be
backdated to April; this is reflected in the lump sum payments being made in
December 2014 in accordance with the national agreement.

Local Pay

In November 2014, the Council’'s Cabinet approved a sum of £700,000 within the
2015/16 Budget proposals (subject to the approval of the Full Council in February
2015) and we have been working with staff and unions on how the Council should
best use this money to reduce salary differentials. In the same way as incremental
progression would have done in the past, staff at the top of the grade will not qualify
for any increase in April 2015 through any local pay progression arrangements and
12 months service as at 1 April 2015 is also required.

The result of a union ballot confirmed that the option of a 1.6% pay increase for staff

received the majority vote. This will be applied from April 2015 and is additional to
the payments outlined in the National Pay update.

November 2014 8

Page 198



Appendix 1

Executive Contracts
Pay progression for those on Executive Contracts is outlined in The Executive Pay

Strategy.

Living Wage

Swindon Borough Council has not implemented the Living Wage. We are keen to
support lower paid staff, as demonstrated by our lowest rate of pay being higher than
the minimum wage and the national minimum for NJC graded staff. However, the
Council is in an on-going, challenging financial position and is required to manage its
budgets as effectively as possible. As the Living Wage is set externally, to commit to
the Living Wage would mean that the Council has no control over any future
increases. We will keep this position under regular review.

Terms and Conditions

The Council reviewed its employees’ pay, grading and terms and conditions when it
implemented a new pay structure in 2010. The Council wanted to ensure that the
new pay structure and terms and conditions were modern, fair and compliant with
equal pay legislation. It was applied to all groups of employees, with the exception
of:

Chief Executive, Board Directors and Directors
Staff employed on Soulbury Evaluation Scheme terms and conditions
Youth workers on Joint Negotiating Committee for Youth and Community
Workers terms and conditions

e Teachers

All other groups of employees are covered by separate national terms and conditions
of employment.

Job Evaluation

The Council’'s approach to pay is that pay related to a job grade which will be
determined using a recognised job evaluation scheme. Jobs evaluated using either
the Hay Evaluation Scheme or the National Joint Council (NJC) job evaluation
scheme.

In the sections below, it indicates the differences between these two schemes and in
what circumstances they are used.

Hay

The Hay Job Evaluation Scheme is widely used in both public and private sectors,
primarily for managerial, administrative and clerical roles, but in some cases for all
jobs within user organisations.

Jobs have been evaluated by trained assessors. A trained evaluation panel
evaluates jobs against each of the elements within the scheme using detailed role

November 2014 9

Page 199



Appendix 1

profiles. The outcome of the evaluation assigns a profile and points score that
shows the total size of the job.

All jobs from Q Grade and above, including Chief Officers, are graded using the Hay
Job Evaluation scheme.

National Joint Council (NJC) Evaluation Scheme

The NJC scheme comprises thirteen factors of various weightings. The scheme was
jointly developed and agreed between the local authority employers and the trade
unions. A trained evaluation panel evaluates jobs against each of the elements of
the scheme using detailed job descriptions. The outcome of the evaluation assigns
a points score that shows the total size of the job. The points score enables jobs to
be placed in a rank order with other jobs in the organisation.

All jobs from grade N and below are graded using the NJC Evaluation Scheme.

All roles are evaluated using either scheme; however the Council sets its own pay
line.

A copy of the Council’s pay scales can be found at Appendix 1 at the end of this
statement.

| Pay Policies and Procedures

The following section provides information on the pay policies and procedures that
the council have in place. This includes the following:

Allowances

Reimbursement of Subsistence or other Expenses

Flexible Retirement, Early Retirement and Redundancy Payments Policy
Termination Payments

Relocation Expenses

Honorariums and Higher Duty Pay

Election Payments

Market Factor Supplements.

Allowances

An allowance is a payment made to staff by the Council that is not part of the basic
contracted salary. Allowances are subject to taxation rules provided by the Inland
Revenue and some are pensionable.

As part of the new pay and grading structure that was implemented in April 2010,
allowances paid to employees were also reviewed and a new allowance structure
was put into place.

A copy of the Allowances Guidance can be found on the Council’s website.

November 2014 10

Page 200



Appendix 1

Reimbursement of Subsistence or Other Expenses

In accordance with the requirements of the National Conditions of Service, the
Council makes provision for the reimbursement of approved expenses. The Council
has produced guidance for employees on travel and subsistence and this applies
equally to all staff, irrespective of grade.

A copy of the Travel and Subsistence Policy can be found on the Council’s website.

Flexible Retirement, Early Retirement and Redundancy Payments Policy

On termination, redundancy payments and any discretion exercised in relation to
retirement or redundancy will be paid in line with the Council’s Policy on Flexible
Retirement, Early Retirement and Redundancy Payments Policy. A copy of which
can be found on the Council’s website.

The Council may, in certain circumstances, also apply its discretionary powers in
relation to premature retirements and redundancies for Chief Officers. This
approach is in line with Part 4 paragraph 85 of the Chief Officers of Local Authorities,
Constitution Conditions of Service Salaries which states that “Authorities should bear
in mind the possible application of discretionary powers of premature retirement and
permissible enhancements of benefits or redundancy payments”.

Termination Payments

The Council does not provide any further payment to employees leaving the
Council’'s employment other than in respect of payment for accrued leave, if agreed
that it is not possible to take this leave before the date of leaving. Any other
payments that are agreed or negotiated will be done so in line with current
employment law practices.

Relocation Expenses

The aim of the scheme is to provide financial recompense to employees who need to
move their main residence to take up an appointment with the Council. This scheme
does not cover the purchase of a second property. Eligibility criteria will also apply,
including the decision to offer relocation will be made prior to the post being
advertised, with Board Directors having discretion to offer relocation. Relocation
expenses limited to below £8,000 may be offered but this should be stated when the
post is advertised. The Council’s policy requires repayment in part or in full if the
employee leaves within 3 years of appointment.

A copy of the Relocation Policy can be found on the Council’s website.

Honorariums and Higher Duty Pay

Employees on any grade may be awarded an honorarium payment or a higher duty
allowance if they meet the criteria for either payment. The Council has a policy
covering Honorariums and Higher Duty Pay. This does not apply to Chief Officers.

November 2014 11

Page 201



Appendix 1

A copy of this policy can be found on the Council’s website.

Election Payments

Payments made to employees (including the Returning Officer and the Deputy
Returning Officer) working during local, parliamentary or European elections or
referenda are made in line with either the statutory fees or a local scale of fees
agreed in consultation with Wiltshire Council. This could apply to Chief Officers.

Market Factor Supplements

All employees are appointed to posts, which have been evaluated and graded
through either the NJC or Hay job evaluation schemes. Salaries are linked to the
grading structure.

External labour market conditions can produce a situation in which staff with scarce
skills and expertise can command higher salaries than the maximum provided under
the current grading mechanism for that post. In these circumstances, based on
evidence from the relevant labour market, it may be deemed appropriate to pay an
additional Market Factor Supplement in addition to basic pay.

The relevant labour market may include another local authority or elsewhere in the
public or private sectors. Market factor supplements are not linked to an individual’s
actual or anticipated performance within the role. They are linked to the difficulty in
recruiting to certain posts requiring specific skills or qualifications. The Council has
produced guidance for employees on Market Factor Supplements which can be
found on the Council’s website. The policy is not applicable to Chief Officers.

| Pensions

This section includes information the following:

e Auto-Enrolment

e Local Government Pension Scheme

¢ Changes to the Local Government Pension Scheme
¢ National Health Service (NHS) Pension Scheme.

Auto Enrolment

Due to recent legislation (The Pensions Act 2011) there is a requirement for all
employers in the UK to automatically enroll their workers into a qualifying pension
scheme where they are not currently a member. Employees, who meet the criteria
below and are currently not in a workplace pension, will automatically be enrolled
into the Local Government Pension Scheme (LGPS) or Teacher’'s Pension Scheme

(TPS):

e Earn over £10,00 per year (or pro-rata pay period) (April 2014);
e Are age 22 or over; and

November 2014 12

Page 202



Appendix 1

e Are under State Pension Age.

The aim of the legislation is to encourage people to save towards their retirement
and have enough income to enjoy it.

Swindon Borough Council will be implementing auto-enrolment in September 2017.
However, employees can still opt to join the relevant pension scheme at any time.
This has been clearly communicated to employees.

Any employee who transferred from the Swindon Capita Partnership to the Council
on 1% October 2014, who were not in any pension at all, were automatically enrolled
into the LGPS on 1% October 2014 unless they decided to opt out. Employees who
were currently in the Capita Pension Scheme were given the option to either freeze
their Capita Pension or transfer the value into the Local Government Pension
Scheme.

Pension Schemes

Local Government Pension Scheme (LGPS)

The Council offers all its employees access to the Local Government Pension
Scheme (LGPS), in accordance with the statutory provisions of the scheme.

Any pension payments made on termination of employment either on grounds of
redundancy, in the interests of the efficiency of the service or on grounds of ill health
will be made within the statutory terms of the LGPS.

The discretions which the Council is able to apply under the scheme upon
termination of employment are the same for senior employees as for all other
employees who are LGPS members.

Changes to the Local Government Pension Scheme (LGPS)

With effect from 1%t April 2014 the Local Government Pension Scheme changed.
The table below shows the main provisions of the new 2014 scheme compared with
the 2008 scheme.

LGPS 2008 LGPS 2014
Basis of pension Final salary Career Average Revalued
Earnings (CARE)
Accrual rate 1/60" 1/49"
Pensionable pay Pay excluding non- Pay including non-
contractual overtime and contractual overtime and
non-pensionable additional additional hours for part
hours. time staff.
Contribution Yes, members can pay
flexibility No 50% contributions for 50%
of the pension benefit.
Normal pension age 65 Equal to the individual
member’'s State Pension
November 2014 13

Page 203




Appendix 1

Age (minimum 65).

Qualifying period for

benefits 3 months 2 years
Contribution rates Pay Bands Contribution
Pay Bands Contribution Ratgs
(the new rates have not rates Up to £13,500 5.5 OA’
yet been confirmed and £0 1o 5.5% £13,501 - 5.8%
are included as a £13,500 £21,000 5
> £13 501 - 5.8% £21,001 - 6.5%
guideline only. Please £15 800 £34 000
note: 2008 contribution £15 801 - 5 9% £34.001 - 6.8%
rates are based on whole- £20 400 ' £43.000
time equivalent pay £20’;101 - 6.5% £43 001 - 8 5%
whereas the 2014 £34.000 £60,000
contribution rates will be £34.001 - 6.8% £60,001 - 9.9%
based on actual salary). £45 500 £85,000
£45 501 - 7.2% é?g,oogg 0— 10.5%
£85,300 :
Above 7 5% £100,001 - 11.4%
£85,300 £150,000
More than 12.5%
£150,000

Lump sum option

Trade £1 of pension for £12
tax-free lump sum

Trade £1 of pension for £12
tax-free lump sum

Death in service lump
sum

3 x pensionable pay

3 x pensionable pay

Death in service
survivor benefits

1/160™ accrual based on
Tier 1 health pension
enhancement

1/160™ accrual based on
Tier 1 ill health provision
enhancement.

lll health provision

Immediate access to
benefits depending on
severity of the condition.

Immediate access to
benefits depending on
severity of the condition.

These changes only apply to England and Wales. All Local Government Pension
Scheme pensions built up before 1% April 2014 will be protected. Further information
about the changes can be found on the Local Government Pension Scheme website.

NHS Pension Scheme

The Council also have employees who were transferred from the NHS. As part of
the transfer agreement (TUPE), these employees were able to keep their NHS
pension scheme and continue to contribute into that scheme.

The NHS Pension Scheme has undergone significant changes that became effective
on 1 April 2008. Members Guide - SD Guide (PDF 919kb) provides further

information on this.

Further information about the NHS Pension Scheme can be found on their website.

November 2014

Page 204

14




Appendix 1

Pay Scales: 2013 /2014

NJC Pay Grades 2013-14
Grade . Payroll New Rate Hourly
Point . Rate
Point
J 1 1 12,266.00 6.36
2 2 12,702.00 6.58
3 3 13,139.00 6.81
4 4 13,574.00 7.04
5 5 14,009.00 7.26
K 1 6 14,383.00 7.46
2 7 15,072.00 7.81
3 8 15,761.00 8.17
4 9 16,449.00 8.53
5 10 17,138.00 8.88
L 1 11 17,546.00 9.09
2 12 18,370.00 9.52
3 13 19,193.00 9.95
4 14 20,017.00 | 10.38
5 15 20,840.00 | 10.80
M 1 16 21,218.00 | 11.00
2 17 22,073.00 | 11.44
3 18 22,927.00 | 11.88
4 19 23,781.00 | 12.33
5 20 24.636.00 | 12.77
N 1 21 25,094.00 | 13.01
2 22 25,962.00 | 13.46
3 23 26,829.00 | 13.91
4 24 27,696.00 | 14.36
5 25 28,563.00 | 14.80
November 2014

Page 205

Appendix 1

Removed:
01/10/2013

15



Hay Pay
Grades
Q Q1 28,920.00
mid
33,5687.00 | point
38,254.00
R R1 32,671.00
mid
38,158.00 | point
43,643.00
S S1 37,132.00
mid
43,426.00 | point
49.719.00
T T1 43,372.00
mid
49748.00 | point
56,123.00
U U1 48,821.00
mid
55,660.00 | point
64,741.00
Executive
Pay Scales
2013/14
Level Salary Range
From To
CEO £147.4k £183.7k
Board Director £115.2k £138.0k
Director 5 £95.1k £113.9k
Director 4 £78.5k £94.0k
Director 3 £64.9k £77.7k
November 2014

Page 206

Appendix 1

16



COUNCIL

MONDAY, 23%° FEBRUARY 2015

MINUTES FOR CONFIRMATION

CABINET

WEDNESDAY, 4 FEBRUARY 2015

66. Swindon Pay Policy Statement
(Minute for Confirmation)

The Cabinet Member for Corporate Services, and the Head of People and
Change submitted a joint report concerning the proposed Swindon Borough Council
Pay Policy Statement for 2015/16.

The Head of People and Change, in the absence of the Cabinet Member for
Corporate Services, explained that the Council was required under Section 38 of the
Localism Act 2011 to agree and publish a Pay Policy Statement by 1st April each
year. This was the Council’s fourth Pay Policy Statement and was put forward for
consideration prior to its submission to the Council for approval. She explained the
further changes and additional information that would be required to be added to
prepare the final Statement for publication on 1 April.

Resolved — That the Council’s proposed Pay Policy Statement for
2015/16, as set out in Appendix 1 to the joint report, be endorsed and
submitted to the Council for approval.

The reasons for the decision and alternative options are as set out in the
report to the meeting.

Page 207



This page is intentionally left blank

Page 208



Agenda ltem 12

Polling Districts and Places Review

Council Date: 23" February 2015

Author: Electoral Registration Officer and Returning Officer, and
Leader of the Council

Wards: Wroughton and Wichelstowe

Locality Affected: Wroughton

Parishes Affected: Wroughton

1.1

1.2

1.3

2.1

3.2

Purpose and Reasons

At its meeting on 10" December 2014 , Cabinet considered a report by the
Electoral Registration Officer, Returning Officer and Leader of the Council
relating to the Polling Districts and Places Review. At that meeting it was agreed
to adopt the recommendations contained in the Polling Districts and Places
Review Report and this was subsequently confirmed by Council at its meeting on
22" January 2015 (Minute 66(1) refers)

The report highlighted the problems faced by electors in the Alexandra Park
(WWE Polling District) area of the Wroughton and Wichelstowe ward where it
was noted that electors would have to travel over a mile to their nearest polling
station. At the meeting, the Director of Law and Democratic Services advised that
the Council’s Elections team was actively exploring the possible use of a building
within the WWE area as a polling station, but that no agreement had yet been
reached. If a location was identified he would report this to a future meeting of
the Council.

This report provides an update on the negotiations that have taken place and the
recommendations that are now being put forward in relation to the WWE polling
district.

Recommendations

The Council is recommended to:

Amend the polling place for the WWE polling district in the Wroughton and
Wichelstowe ward from the Ellendune Hall (Christine Spooncer Suite) to the
empty shop unit next to the Alexandra Park Convenience Store.

Detail

At the meeting of the Cabinet on 10" December Members considered a report in
relation to the Polling Districts and Places Review.

The report highlighted the problems faced by electors in the Alexandra Park
(WWE Polling District) area of the Wroughton and Wichelstowe ward where it
was noted that electors would have to travel over a mile to their nearest polling
station. The Director of Law and Democratic Services advised that the Council’s

Further information on the subject of this report can be obtained from Sally Sprason,
Direct Dial 01793 463999, email ssprason@swindon.gov.uk.

Page 209



Polling Districts and Places Review

Council Date: 23" February 2015

3.3

4.1

5.1

5.2

5.3

5.4

5.5

5.6

Elections team was actively exploring the possible use of a building within the
WWE area as a polling station, but that no agreement had yet been reached

Since that meeting the Elections team have undertaken negotiations with the
owner of the Alexandra Park Convenience Store who has agreed that the empty
shop unit adjacent to the Convenience Store could be used as a polling station
for the WWE polling district. The Elections Team have visited the proposed
polling station and agreed some improvements with the owner to ensure the
venue is suitable for use as a polling station.

Alternative Options
Retain the arrangements agreed by Council on 22" January 2015.
Implications, Diversity Impact Assessment and Risk Management

Financial and Procurement Implications

The cost of the polling station will be paid from existing budgets.

Legal and Human Rights Implications

Legal and Human Rights implications were taken fully into account in the
preparation of this report and it is believed the recommendations are compatible
with Convention rights.

The Returning Officer has a statutory duty to provide adequate voting facilities for
all electors.

All Other Implications (including Staff, Sustainability, Health, Rural, Crime and
Disorder)

No other specific implications were identified during the preparation of this report.

Diversity Impact Assessment

A Diversity Impact Assessment has not been completed in relation to this report.
Good practice has been implemented through good and appropriate consultation
in relation to all proposals. Good inclusion practice has been implemented when
considering changes in polling venues to ensure they are accessible for voters.
This demonstrates our duty to advance equality of opportunity.

Risk Management

Risks are considered when looking at the possibility of moving to an alternative
polling place. It is believed there are no unmitigated risks. The polling station
has been visited and agreement made regarding improvements to ensure the
venue is suitable for use as a polling station. Electors will be notified of any
changes to polling places through clear messaging on poll cards.

Further information on the subject of this report can be obtained from Sally Sprason,
Direct Dial 01793 463999, email ssprason@swindon.gov.uk.

Page 210



Polling Districts and Places Review
Council Date: 23" February 2015

6. Consultees

6.1  The Board Director, Resources (Section 151 Officer) and the Director of Law and
Democratic Services (Monitoring Officer) are consulted in respect of all reports.
In addition, the Ward Councillors have been consulted on the proposal.
Councillor Richards and Councillor Ford have responded that they are happy
with the proposal and wish to support it.

7. Background Papers

7.1  Electoral Commission Guidance — Reviews of polling districts, polling places and
polling stations.

8. Appendices

None

Further information on the subject of this report can be obtained from Sally Sprason,
Direct Dial 01793 463999, email ssprason@swindon.gov.uk.

Page 211



This page is intentionally left blank

Page 212



	Agenda
	3 Minutes
	6 Council Budget 2015/16
	Appendices 1a and 1b - Forecast Out-turn By Directorate and Service Type, 04/02/2015 Cabinet
	Appendix 2 - Summary of Budget By Group - Appendix 3 - Summary by Directorate - Appendix 4 Detailed Budget Proposals By Group, 04/02/2015 Cabinet
	Appendix 5 - virements, 04/02/2015 Cabinet
	Appendix 6 - Budget Consultation - National Non-Domestic Ratepayers, 04/02/2015 Cabinet
	Appendix 6 - Budget Consultation - National Non-Domestic Ratepayers - Appendix, 04/02/2015 Cabinet
	Appendix 7 - Reserves, 04/02/2015 Cabinet
	Appendix 8 - Councillors Allowances 2015-16, 04/02/2015 Cabinet
	Appendix 9 - Medium Term Financial Strategy 2015 - 2020, 04/02/2015 Cabinet
	Appendix 10 - Special Expenses - Appendix 10a, 04/02/2015 Cabinet
	Appendix 10 - Special Expenses - Appendix 10b, 04/02/2015 Cabinet
	Appendix 10 - Special Expenses - Appendix 10c, 04/02/2015 Cabinet
	Appendix 10 - Special Expenses - Appendix 10d, 04/02/2015 Cabinet
	Supplementary Report - Budget 2015-16 and Beyond, 04/02/2015 Cabinet
	Capital Programme 2015-16 to 2017-18, 04/02/2015 Cabinet
	Appendices  1 to 4 - Capital Programme - Scheme Proposals, 04/02/2015 Cabinet
	Appendix 5 - Swindon Growth Deal Allocations, 04/02/2015 Cabinet
	Appendix 6 - Department for Communities and Local Government Capacity Funding, 04/02/2015 Cabinet
	Treasury Strategy Statement 2015-16, 04/02/2015 Cabinet
	Appendix 1 - Treasury Management Strategy 2015-16, 04/02/2015 Cabinet
	Appendix 1 - Annex 1 Œ Prudential Indicators, 04/02/2015 Cabinet
	Appendix 1 - Annex 2 - Credit and Counterparty Risk Management, Specified and Non- Specified Investments, 04/02/2015 Cabinet
	Copy of Proposed Budget 2015-16
	Budget Minutes Confirmation

	7 Council Tax Setting, 2015/16
	Copy of Council Tax Calculation documents 2015-16

	8 Housing Revenue Account - Rents and Charges 2015/16
	Appendices 1 - 7 - Rents and Charges 2015-16, 04/02/2015 Cabinet
	HRA Minute Confirmation

	9 Minutes for Confirmation
	11 Swindon Pay Policy Statement
	Appendix 1 - Draft Pay Policy Statement, 04/02/2015 Cabinet
	Pay Policy Minute Confirmation

	12 Polling Districts and Places Review

